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Criminal Cases of Bangladesh and

its Undiscovered Shadow : A Statutory Review

1. Preface:

The Criminal Litigations are not
impounded within any specific statu-
tory or procedural law. Different

offences have been defined and cate-

gorized in different Criminal laws.
Some Codes relating criminal justice
system have been introduced but
were not complete and uniform. In
1898, the existing Code of Criminal
Procedure was enacted. It is one of
the oldest Code of this sub-continent
as well as one of the best synchro-
nized and systematic procedure.
Before that the Penal Code was
incorporated in 1960 to secure the
definitions and punishment of differ-
ent offences. There are some cohabi-
tations between the Penal Code, 1860
and the Code of Criminal procedufc,
1898 in respect of their operation.
Side by side, some special laws relat-
ing to different offences have been
focused due to the divergence of
crimes and variations of criminals.
The special criminal laws are typical-
ly introduced to address the vacuums
of Penal Code and to supress the ren-
ovated crimes. Oftenly the procedure
of those special criminal laws rely on
the Code of Criminal Procedure and
sometimes those are self contained.
Each and every step of a criminal lit-
igation is compact with the procedure
described either in the Code or the
laws. Now a days if we analyze the
Code and the laws critically, it is
noticed that unquestionably the Code
or the laws themselves and those

practitioners are lingering the process
to dispense justice and to dispose lit-
igations. On the other hand, the Code

or the laws are not completely self-

determining in their functions as
because those have to depend on the
procedure of other laws, e.g. The
Evidence Act-1872, The Court fees
Act-1870, The Criminal Rules and
Orders-1935 and etc. In the present
context of a criminal litigation, dif-
ferent laws themselves are facing
some haziness and shortcomings. The
procedural protractive system of a
criminal Iitigation is not only creating
a over burden to the shoulder of
Judiciary but also creating sufferings
to the litigant people. Thus the liti-
gant fails all of their attention as the
cases are connecting the generations
together.

2. What
Offence?

A crime or offence means any
harmful act or omission against the
public which the State wishes to pre-
vent by imposing punishment. The
Penal Code, 1860 provides the types
of punishment which are of five kinds
i.e. forfeiture of property, fine, life
imprisonment, imprisonment for a
term and capital punishment. Most
importantly, no conduct constitutes a
crime unless it is declared criminal in
the laws (general or special) of the
country. '

is a Crime or

The Penal Code 1860 affirmed

*Joint Metropolitan Session Judge, Chittagong.

vl o d

—Sk M Tofayel Hasan*

the word "Offence” under section 40

-as- Except in the chapters and sec-

tions mentioned in clauses 2 and 3 of
this section, the word "offence"

denotes a thing made punishable by

this Code.

In Chapter TV, Chapter VA and
in - the following sections, namely,
sections 64, 65, 66, 67, 71, 109, 110,
112, 114, 115, 116, 117, 187, 194,
195, 203, 211, 213,.214, 221, 222,
223, 224, 225, 327, 328, 329, 330,
331, 347, 348, 388, 389 and 445, the
word "offence" denotes a thing pun-
ishable under this Code, or under any
special or local law as hereinafter
defined.

And in sections 141, 176, 177,
201, 202, 212, 216 and 441 the word
"offence” has the same meaning
when the thing punishable under the
special or local law is punishable
under such law with imprisonment
for a term of six months or upwards,
whether with or without fine.

In- the Code of Criminal
Procedure, 1898 the word "Offence"
has been defined under section 4(0)
as- any act or.omission made punish-
able by any law for the time being in
force; .

It also includes any act in

respect of which a complaint may be

made under section 20 of the Cattle-

" trespass Act, 1871..
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The General Clauses Act, 1897

in section 3(37) defines offence as

any act or omission made punishable

by any law for the time being in'

force.

In contrast, the special laws are
providing the definition of distinct
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-special offences in the society
accordmg 1o their meaning, ‘objec-
tives, nature and character.

"3 Wses of Criminal
Litigations in Bangladesh:

In Bangladesh, the Code of

68 DLR (2016)

Criminal Procedure, 1898 is consid-
ered as the fundamental procedure of
criminal litigation. Apart from the

- cases instituted in the Supreme Court

or different Tribunals the criminal lit-
igations are of 4 (four) categories.
Those are—

Criminal Litigation

General Register

Complaint Register Non-FIR Case or
Case (CR Case) Case or (GR Case) (Non GR Case)

i. Complaint Register Case:

When a case is initiated on the
basis of a complaint, it is called com-
plaint case and such a case is regis-
tered in the complaint register and for
this reason such a case is also known
as Complaint Register Case (CR
Case). The Magistrate takes cog-
nizance in a CR Case under section
190 of the Code of Criminal
Procedure 1898.

ii. Géhera] Register Case (GR
Case)/FIR Case:

When a case is lodged on the
basis of an information of cognizable
offence to the Police Station under
section 154 of the Code of Criminal
Procedure, 1898 it is called General
Register Case (GR Case) or FIR
Case. This is also called Police Case
as it is to be filed in the Police Station
through  FIR(First  Information
Report)/Ejahar and such a case is reg-
istered in a General Register of Police
Station.

Unnatural Death
Case (UD Case)

iii. Non-GR Case/ Non-FIR
Case:

A case is lodged on the basis of
an infonn'éiioﬁ of non cognizable
offence to the Police Station under
section 155 of the Code of Criminal
Procedure, 1898 is called Non-GR
Case or Non- FIR Case. This is also a
Police Case as it is to be filed in the
Police Station through GD ' (General
D:ary)flnformanon and such a case is
recorded in a Non-GR Register of
Police Station. After that the Officer
in Charge of the Police Station shall
forward;@w infprn;atien to the com-
pclent Mag_i_sl;rate for. further neces-

iv. Ulmafural Death Case/ UD
Case:

‘When a first information is
received by the Offcer-m-charge ofa
Police statmn or such other officer
empowered by the government about
commission of suicide or someonc
has been killed by another or by an

animal or by an accident or has died
under circumstances raising reason-
able suspicion that someone has com-
mitted an offence, that Police officer
will record the information in the B.P
Form No.48 and also proceed the
Unnatural Death Case (UD Case)
under section 174 of the Code’ of
Criminal Procedure, 1898 and rule
299 of the Police Regulations of
Bengal, 1943. After that the Officer
in Charge of that Police Station shall
forward the information to the near-
est Executive Magistrate for further
necessary legal action. The first
information of an UD Case is not an
FIR.

4. Litigations of Different
Tribunals in Bangladesh:

Bangladesh legal system is also
familiar with different tribunals
established under diverse contents of
special laws. There are some statuto-
ry distinct designations that exist
between a court and a tribunal.
Sometimes the tribunals hold trials
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about rights and sometimes about the
offences. Statutory tribunals deal the
litigations of public concern e.g. Tax
Appeal Tribunal tries the tax claims
between the state and individual,
Administrative Tribunal deals with
the dispute relating to employment
between the Government and its
employees, Labour ' Appellate
Tribunal is concerned with the indus-
trial disputes. Only the Adminis-tra-
tive Tribunal and the Administrative
Appellate Tribunals have the consti-
tutional recognition. On the other
hand, there are some other statutory
tribunals which has no relation to
public concern. They mainly relate to

Criminal Cases of Bangladesh and its Undiscovered Shadow

the offences against private personal-
ities i.g. = @ fre Frfrew 7 Gz,
oy W BRgAm, fre Wi
Bz, ""Sbiéla! Tribunals estab-
llShDa%r‘ section 26 of the Special
Powers Act, 1974 and under Article
152(1) of the Constitution of
Republic of Bangladesh,1972 etc.
Except Special Tribunals established
undei':"'?e'%il'b'n 26 of the Special
Poweﬁ Iét,‘ 1974, other tribunals
have @'ME establishment and
are. Sometime the offences
have | g Mmd both in the Penal
Code m the Special Laws but the
Special Laws preserve privileges due
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to its statutory supremacy and time of
enactment. There are also some in-
house (Domestic) tribunals that are
constituted within the meaning of
their delegated legislation i.e. The
Bar Council, The Bangladesh
Medical = Association, BGMEA,

‘Bank, Universities etc.

5. Stages of Different Criminal
Litigations at a momentary look:

If we survey the flow chart of
different criminal litigations then it
will be easy to find out the procedur-
al lengthiness and also to identify the
mysterious causes of delay in crimi-
nal justice system. :

CR Case GR Case ~ Non-GR Case
Submission of Complaint Lodging FIR Lodging GD
Examination of the complainant Investigation Permission of Investigation
Investigation/Inquiry choﬁ Police _Report Police Report
(If any) b '
Taking Cognizance by the Taking Cognizance by the Taking Cognizance by the
‘Magistrate Magistrate Magistrate '
Send for Trial __ Send for Trial Send for Trial
Taking cognizance by the Court of Tuﬁmg‘ubgmzahce by the Court of Charge hearing
Session (if necessary) - Sé‘ssfon ([f necessary)
Charge hearing ' Chargc hearing Framing of Charge
Framing of Charge Framing of Charge
Examination and Cross mgn and Cross Examination and Cross
Examination of Witnesses - Examination of Witnesses Examination of Witnesses
Examination of the Accused E&é’m;ﬁaﬁm of the Accused Examination of the Accused
Defence Witnesses (if any) m Witnesses (if any) Defence Witnesses (if any)
Argument Lo Argumcnt Argument
Judgement ~_Judgement Judgement
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6. Main obstacles to d:sipose
Criminal litigations:

Delay is the mother of all bottle-
necks. Presently the most popular
axiom of the law of equity “justice
delayed justice denied” has become
futile although the essential prerequi-
site of justice is that it should: be dis-
pensed with as quickly as possible. In
different stages of a criminal litiga-
tion, both the parties try to take the
privilege of adjournment on a fragile
ground to linger the procedure and
the Courts also usually allow the peti-
tions of adjournment repcated ly with-
out any reasonable excuse.

Despite that, the foremost caus-
es of delay may be summed up as fol-
lows:

6.1 Legal ]iivergenpe and
ambiguity:

a) There are some laws which
define the same offence but prescribe
different punishments and procedure.
The laws certainly have the common
characteristics and the supremacy of
those laws are generally ignored.
Though the common principale
stands in favour of the.supremacy of
special laws but the divergence often-
ly creates binary  problems.
Illustration by way of examples-

i. Section 2 of The Dowry
Prohibition Act, 1980 and the
section 2(j) of The Al ¢ fre
Frfe v wigs, 2000 commonly
recite the definition of ‘dowry'.

ii. The Penal Code, 1860 provides
the definition of 'wrongful con-
finement' and 'wrongful restrain’
under section 341-348 and 'kid-
napping' under: sections 359,

360,363, 364A, 366, 366A, -
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368, selling or buying a minor

for the purpose of prostitution

- under sections 372, 373, unlaw-
-« ful compulsory labour under

_ section 374. Simultaneously, the
e _Ssame has been delineated in the

mﬁeﬁmﬁmmw o000
Wd‘-bm{)o

. The Penal Code and The w3+

_ M Rgeid wemie (we o)

1%, 001 is concomitantly pro-

wdmg about the definition of

notmg, extortion, robbery, deter
public servant to discharge his

' diity,'mischi'ef by causing dam-

" age,” criminal intimidation.
“There are some relation of the
offences stated in Penal Code
and WA 7ol afsry o
Yook 'lﬂﬂ Q{“) r

iv. The offencc of murder has its -

diversified definition in the var-
ious laws according to its nature
and character. Abatement of sui-
cide has been stated both in sec-
tion 305, 306 of the Penal Code
1860 and in section 9(G) of the
ameﬁeﬁfrwmwm, Ro00,

v The offence that has been stated
- in the 51 ¢ Fre ffrem v wizs,

2000 9 YR 8 W T werY
WA WI%F, Y003 @ 8-b 4Rl is
almost same in nature but the
punishment is different in the

laws.

i. Giving false evidence in the

legal proceedings and public
nuisance has been concurrently

‘stated in sections 191, 192, 268

of the Penal Code 1860 and in
sections 195(c), 193 of the Code
of Criminal Procedure 1898.

ii. Cnmmal Consplrzu:,).r common-

ly stated in The Penal Code

68 DLR (2016)6!

1860 under section 120A in the

Code of Criminal procedureji
1898 under section 196A and N
wu RTn@ s, 2008 @i 10, N

_ _ o
viii. The Explosive Substance Act,

1908 gives a definition of

‘explosive substance' in section' T
2 and TEM RE® Sgi,. 300b ]
41 2(13) also provides the same | |
in different mode. . L

; _ 24 :
IX. Some provisions have been

recurred in The Penal Code
1860, Wi wwq Ifpmw wiEw,
-~ 2004, and The Prevention of
- Corruption Act, 1947 about cor-
- ruption,

X. The definition of 'public servants'
has been repeatedly stated in
The Prevention of the Corrup-
tion Act, 1947 in section 2, The
Public Servants (Dismissal on
Conviction) Ordinance, 1985
-and also in section 21 of the
Penal Code 1860.

xi. The offences. stated in the
Chapter IX of the Penal Code
1860 about public servants
resemble with the different laws
relating to the public servants
etc.

b) Sometime the law itself enter-
tains the extensive procedure by
using some abstract word e.g. "reason
to believe”, "reasonable cause”, "if it
thinks fit", "sufficient ground”, "sat
isfaction of the court”, " reasonable
suspicion”, "without delay”, "ends of

justice” etc. These words purport

some inherent power of the authori-
ties to dispense with their duties
through their own accord. On the
other hand, sometime the Code itself

encourage elongated procedure.
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¢) The concurrent power and

Junisdiction to try the offences in the
Mobile Court and the Judicial
Magistrate Court is sometime shatter-
mg the harmony of legal proceedings.

d) If we sensibly analyze the pri-

mary law of criminal litigation i.e.
The Code of Criminal Procedure
1898. we may find some huge vacu-
ums that are lengthening the system
and sometimes they are indistinct.

1. Section 32 of the Penal Code

ii.

states about the sentences
which a Magistrate may pass.
In that consequence the
Magistrate 1st class may pass
sentence for 5 years imprison-
ment. Section 29C of the same
Code vests power to the Chief
Metropolitan Magistrate ' or
Chief Judicial Magistrate to try
all the offences except the
offences punishable with death
and Magistrate Ist class to try
all the offences except the
offences  punishable ~ with
imprisonment for life or with
imprisonment for a term not
exceeding  10(ten)  years.
Section 347 inflicts the power
to the Magistrate 1st class to try
the offences beyond his juris-
diction. Section 35(1)(b) states
that magistrate may aggregate
the punishment which will not
exceed twice the amount of his
ordinary jurisdiction. So all the
sections are inter- conflicting
about the jurisdiction of various
Magistrates.

The argument against Section
54 is a widespread phenomena.
This section ~offers ample
power to the police to arrest any
person  without  warrant,

iii.,

However the law enforcing

-agencies are under confusion

whether the offence has been
committed by the person or not
but the provision secures the

power of arrest. So- there is a

definite probability to persecute
the innocent.

Nowadays section 61 of the

Code of Criminal procedure is

highly criticized. The statute
insists upon production of a
person arrested or detained
before the Magistrate Court
within 24 (twenty four) hours.

- But the section is randomly vio-

lated by the law enforcing
agencies as there is no account-
ability for non compliance.
Sometimes the relatives of that
detained person have to take
recourse to the High Court
Division through the Writ of
Habeas Corpus.

iv. There is a massive gap concern-

ing the system of proclamation
and attachment of the property
of person absconding under
section 87 and 88 of The Code
of Criminal Procedure 1898.

-The time to publish proclama-

tion has been restricted within
30 (thirty days), but sometimes
it take years together to exe-
cute. The system of paper circu-
lar is the another indefinite
stage of criminal litigation
though the sections have not
uttered anything on it and
sometimes the cost of paper
publication for a private person
is payed by the Government.

v. Section 164 is an inﬁportant part

of investigation though there is
a legal embargo that the confes-

Criminal Cases of Bangladesh and its Undiscovered Shadow
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sion of the accused should be
voluntary and should not be
obtained by pressure or torture.
But the provision-is frequently
violated as there is no account-
ability for non compliance and

- the Magistrates are slipshod

vi,

vii.

e

about the provisional obliga-
tions.

Section 167 of the Code of
Criminal Procedure 1898 lays
down the provision for passing
an order of detention or remand
of the accused by the
Magistrate. And the tenure will
not exceed 15 (fifteen) days in
the whole. But the law enforc-
ing agencies are utilizing the
provision in a erroneous way by
way of shown arrest of the
accused in another cases and
the term is certainly exceeding
15 (fifteen) days. It is to be
noted that the provision of
shown arrest has laid down in
the Code of Criminal Procedure
1898.

Though section 173 describes
about police report but this sec-
tion does not provide any of its
types. The types have been stat-
ed in the PRB and which also
provides for the legal obligation
to submit every investigation
report without unnecessary
delay though section 167(5)
affirms the time limit within
120 (one hundred and twenty)
days. Na-raji is the common
practice in all criminal litiga-
tions though the Code of
Criminal Procedure 1898 does
not recognize it. Na-raji is an
application filed by the com-
plainant for further investiga-
tion. It is now settled principle
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of law that when a Na-raji peti-
tion is filed, the same shall be
treated as a petition of com-
plaint and the Magistrate shall
proceed under sections 200-203
of the Code of Criminal
Procedure 1898. The system
has been adopted from the deci-
sion of the Apex Court but there
is no such provision to file a
Na-raji petition. So most of the
reports of investigation/inquiry
in a CR/GR case has to face
suffering from a Na-raji peti-
tion. '

viii. In section 227 the charge may

ix.

be altered at any stage before
pronouncement of judgement
and fresh trial be held under
229 and the witness be recalled
under section 231 if the accused
is considered to be prejudiced.
So after conclusion of a trial for
long time, the fresh trial will
start once again.

The concept of the Code of
Criminal Procedure 1898
assumed that all the accused
will face all procedure and sur-
vive up to the conclusion of
trial. But there is chance of
death of the accused in between
trial. Even the complainant may
also die at any stage. Then what
would be the procedure if the
accused(s) or the complainant
died has not been provided in
the Code of Criminal Procedure
1898. However there is a provi-
sion of abatement states under
section 431of the Code of
Criminal Procedure 1898.

x. The Code provides pravision for

bail of the accused for the
offence of non-bailable nature

Criminal Cases of Bangladesh and its Undiscovered Shadow

under section 497. It is certain-
ly a discretion of the court to
grant bail. So the power is exer-
cised considering the circum-
stances of each case. More
importantly some sections of
The Penal Code 1860 and the
special laws should be com-
poundable.

xi. Lastly, transfer of criminal
cases has been stated in
Chapter-XL1V, section 525A-
528. The power has been con-
ferred upon the Appellate
Division or High Court
Division or the Sessions Judge
or to the Chief Metropolitan
Magistrate/Chief Judicial
Magistrate/District Magistrate.
This privilege is used by the
defence without any rational
basis. Sometimes the judges are
also granting the space to the
defence counsel gratuitously, so
the case get a chance to travel a
10ng way.

6.2 Position of

Judges/Magistrates:

the

At present, number of Judges/
Magistrates are not too sufficient to
meet the challenges of boost of crime
because the litigations are scattered
in a disorderly manner. It is a matter
to look forward that now a days gov-
ernment is recruiting number of
Judges/Magistrates and some are in a
pipe line to be appointed. But the
recruiting system of Bangladesh
Judicial Service Commission is so
extensive as because it has to search
out for the approval of different
Ministries of the Government. So the
recruitment is not getting optimum
consequences to face the current
challenges.

68 DLR (2016)

6.3 Position of the Lawyers:

In the present day, Lawyers are
incredible in a critical position.
Different public and private universi-
ties and the Law colleges are produc-
ing law graduates in every year.
Consequently the number of law
graduates are increasing phenome-
nally in the country. Amongst them a
significant number of law graduates
are qual'ifying in Bar Council Exam
and getting enrolment to practice in
the lower court and thereafier in the
Supreme Court after facing a further

frn

exam. At present the number of T

enrollment in the Supreme Court Bar

and different Divisional Bar
Associations are as follows—
Number
Name of the Bar of
Association Advocates
Enrolled
Supreme Court 3,407
Dhaka 12,425
Dhaka Metropolitan
Bar Association 217
Chittagong 3,743
Rajshahi 736
Khulna 1,296
Sylhet 1344
Rangpur 437

[Source: Voter list of Bangladesh Bar
Council, published on 30-7-2015]

A few of there Advocates are
simultaneously practising both in the
Supreme Court Bar and the Local
Bar. Some of them are practicing
tremendously on the basis of their
knowledge, skill and quality and also
earnest to their profession. Despite
that, some are practising by their face

-

e i G



68 DLR (2016)

value, political position and seniority,
some are practising only in the cham-
ber, some are enjoying Jjuniorship of a
senior, some are practising in his
ancestor's chamber and some are
practising in some unusual ways.
Most of them are facing challenges to
survive and living hand to mouth
from their beginning. Hence there is
no alternative way to survive in pro-
fession but to linger the suit by caus-
ing delay. It is the only technique to
make animate of a case not to go with
the grasp ‘of law and fact, At the
moment, State is the biggest but
weakest litigant of all criminal litiga-
tion in Bangladesh. The Public
Prosecutors are appointed on behalf
of State in a mammoth number but
they do not handle the cases cautious-
ly and therefore delay in the litiga-
tions taking place indiscriminately.

6.4 Position of the Litigant:

The general attitude of all the lit-
igant people in our country is only to
win by the shortest way in the quick-
est time. In that connection the
wealthy people always try to squan-
der their capital for the advocate with
an impressive profile to deal their
case successfully and the poor liti-
gant always search for the advocates
who's reputation is not so high to han-
dle their case in some way. Some
feels panic and fear by the name of
any litigation due to ignorance of
existing legal procedure. Side by side
a number of people in our country is
litigious in nature and always strive
to create some litigation with his sur-
roundings. This class of people is
very treacherous and always try to
make hindrance of the litigation to
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give a lesson to his opposite. Almost
all of them are not aware of any legal
knowledge.

6.5 Position of Infrastructure
of the Criminal Courts:

The infrastructure of criminal
courts in various districts of
Bangladesh are indescribable as
because the number of building has
not been increased as per the number
of Police Station or Upazilla.
Conseqﬁéntially, the  Judges/
Magistrates have to share the Ejlash
and they are not getting full opportu-
nity to utilize their time. Utilizing
Ejlash for half or quarter a day is not
sufficient to meet the challenges of
criminal administration of justice.

6.6 Position of Logistic
Support of the Criminal Courts:

The modern world is a world of

science and technology and
Bangladesh in this view is not in
reverse. The wvision of the

Government is to digitalize all the
sectors. Almost all the private sectors
have achieved it effectively but the
public sectors have not yet been able
to optimize the vision due to the lack
of effective policy making and igno-
rance about the useful operation of
technology. The Supreme Court of
Bangladesh has recently introduced
computerized cause list and archive
system through LAN ( Local Area
Network) and web portal through
WAN (Wide Area Network) but local
courts are still in a super analogous
system.

The seareity for the Forms and
Registers  prescribed by the
Government for the criminal courts
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are progressively.
Government prescribed Forms and
Registers are not distributed towards
the district magistracy regularly in
each and every year. Due to the lack
of information of those Registers,
corruption is making progress and
delay in dispensing with prompt jus-
tice is its ultimate consequences.

increasing

7. Recommendations:

0 Legal mind of the Judges
should be exalted and also have to be
vigorous in their respective responsi-
bilities. They have to be well-
informed about the latest provisions
of law and also to be prompt in taking
their decisions. The Judges should
have to follow all the provisions of
the Code of Criminal procedure
along with Criminal rules and Orders
appropriately along with the general
rules of Court-hours, Cause list.

¢ There should be harmoniza-
tion between the Codes and the
Special Laws to identify offences and
the procedure should also be coordi-
nating and definite. The obligation of
sections 54, 61, 87, 88, 164, 167, 173,
442A, 497, 494, 526, 528 should be
maintained and unified. Some provi-
sions should be amended with rea-
sonable explanations e.g. sections 32,
29C,°35, 347,

0 The prosecution side will have
to be strong in the sense of law. It is
the responsibility of the Police-offi-
cer to ensure that the complainant or
the witness shall be appeared before -
the court at the time of hearing of the
case under section 171(2) of the Code
and sections 485/485A in attesting
the procedure for punishment for



non-attendance by a witness. These
provisions should be applied to dis-
pense the case promptly.

¢ Modern machinery of examin-
ing and cross-examining the witness
should be adopted to adjudicate prop-
er justice in the quickest way. On the
other hand service of summon/war-
rant should be technology based to
ensure transparency and velocity. The
argument and judgement should be
well shaped focusing on the legal
point of view and marshalling of fact
only. K

0 Technological evidences and
expression of Forensic Medicine
should be perused and considered
because the man can often tell lie but
the machine can't. On the other hand
it saves a lot-of time and certainly
¢clears the root of dispute. Nowadays
the court has considered the digital
evidence in dispensing with justice
like i) BDR Mob case in Pilkhana,
Dhaka, ii) Biswajeet murder in
Dhaka, iii) 10 truck arms case in
Chittagong, iv) Rakib Murder case in
Khulna, v) Rajon Murder case in
Shylhet,vi) Vikarunnesa sex scandal
case in Dhaka and vii) War crime
cases etc.

¢ Official accountability: and
transparency of the court staff ie.
Bench Assistant, Process server,
Office Peon, MLSS etc. should be
ensured by the presiding Judge.
Moreover each section of a court i.e.
Nejarat, Record ruurﬁ, Accounts
Section, Copying Section, Forms and
Stationary Section etc, has a Judge-
in-Charge and he also has to super-
vise his concerned section strictly, so
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unnecessary delay cannot create any
phenomena to delivery services and
to dispense with proper justice.

¢ Sufficient infrastructural and
logistic support should be provided in
each year as per necessity of the dif-
fctc'm;_crimmal courts of Bangladesh
to make the vi_sio'n of digitalization
possible.

0 Satisfactory salary and privi-
leges for the Judges should be pro-
vided by the Government in compar-
ison wﬁn_dmer countries of contem-
porary world so that family burden
cannot make them anxious and
tensed. Side by side the judges should
‘be well trained up both in home and
abroad. Research work from the
Judicial Administration Training
Institute (JATI) should be more
updated and well cantoned.

O The lawyers should be well-
‘Versed in law and they have to supply
the 'right suggestion to the client
about the problems within the periph-
ery of law. The lawyers have to ren-
der their best efforts in each and
every case within the edge of law.
Thé Lawyers will have to assist the
court as they are the court officers but
not by their influence or pursuance.
Uniform remuneration the
lawyers as per their proficiency and
tenure of practice should be intro-
duced from the Government so that
no one feels superior or inferior than
others and abnormal fees cannot be
charged from the clients.

for

0 Attitude of the litigant should
also be improved and they have to
understand the situation of the
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Lawyers at the same time the position
of the Judges concomitantly. They
will not make a haste to met the liti-
gation by an- discriminatory and
inequitable way. Moreover the liti-
gious people should be punished for
their uneven activities not only by
fine but also by rigorous imprison-
ment for any term.

8. Concluding remhrks:

Many . people of our country
now live in fear and panic of crime.
Criminal laws and social definition of
crime vary from place to place and
from time to time so that apparently
similar statistics of crime may be
based on very different forms of
behaviour though our system cannot
enumerate all crimes of the society. It
may be well argued that radical mod-
ification to the present criminal jus-
tice system of pre-trial procedures are
essential to deal with crime efficient-
ly. Someone may argue in favour of
alternative dispute resolution or com-
pound of crimes, some will argue for
counseling or reformation of crimi-|
nals and some for ensuring accounta-
bility of different institutions. But
one may be the central argument that
the balance of power amongst the
system, accountability and trans-é
parency can produce the-best out-|
come. Causes of crimes and reasons|
for backlogs from the root to the top]
should be discovered and addressed.
Simultaneously, the traditional for-i
malities of the procedure should trou-
ble-free and easy-accessible for all
otherwise it is not too far that the
heart-breaking burden: of criminal
justice system will annihilate the civ=
ilization.
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examination of the witnesses will not cast any
doubt in the testimonies of the witnesses of this-
case, as was available in that particular case®, it
has illegally discarded the FIR. The explanation
given by PW 1, who was a responsible officer
having no nexus with the four national leaders, the
explanation is cogent, reasonable and satisfactory.
More so, Exhibit 1 which was sized from the
office of the Dhaka Central Jail, where the occur-
rence was committed and it is natural that the
Central Jail authority had preserved a copy of it
with a view to obviate any future controversy.

108. The High Court Division failed to con-
sider another aspect while disbelieving the com-
plicity of the respondents. Moslem Uddin could
not alone have executed the killing by entering
into a most secured place like the Dhaka Central
Jail. Admittedly, huge number of security person-
nel with arms was deployed there for the security
of the prisoners. It was not possible on his part to
enter into the Dhaka Central Jail at dead of night
unless the jail authority was compelled to allow
him and his team. It is also not possible on his part
to execute the killing in presence of IG (Prisons),
DIG (Prisons) and other high officials unless they
were compelled to allow them to enter into the
Central Jail for implementing the killing.

109. This Moslem Uddin and the respon-
dents were also in the company of the President’s
security team. The defence did not dispute this
fact. If Moslem Uddin was staying in Bangabha-
ban with other conspirators, how a member of the
conspiracy could alone be convicted excluding
other conspirators? A conspirator is an agent of
other conspirators and vice versa. In the premises,
the conclusion arrived at by the High Court
Division that Moslem Uddin was alone responsi-
ble in the killing is simply absurd and contrary to
the provisions of law. It is also admitted fact that
more than one army officers were involved in the
killing in two groups. So naturally, the respon-
dents cannot avoid their complicity in the con-
Spiracy.

AD-7
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110. The High Court Division though
noticed one important documentary evidence
proved by PW 1, a report submitted by him to the
IG (Prisons) on 5th November, 1975, Exhibit-2,
did not, however, express any opinion with regard
to this document. Both in the FIR and in this
report, there are positive statements that captain
Moslem Uddin led the killing squad to the Dhaka
Central Jail, who came from Bangabhaban. In
Exhibit-2, he stated that on the basis of intimation
given by the Inspector General (Prisons), he
reached the Dhaka Central Jail on the fateful night
and at that time, he was asked by the latter to pro-
ceed towards the Dhaka Central Jail gate as
directed from the Bangabhaban; that he witnessed
the telephonic conversation between the President
and the IG (prisons) and thereafter, the latter told
him that one captain Moslem with some army per-
sonnel would come to the central jail; that it was
directed from the Bangabhaban to comply with
what he (captain Moslem) wanted to do and that
the detenus Tajuddin Ahmed, Monsur Ali, Syed
Nazrul Islam and M Kamruzzaman should be
shown to him. The High Court Division failed to
notice that PW 1 submitted the inquiry report as
per direction of PW 3, who in turn forwarded the
same along with his forwarding report, ext-6, to
the Secretary, Ministry of Home Affairs. So, PW
3 also corroborated PW 1 and the defence did not
challenge the same.

111. Thus, the trial Court and the High
Court Division upon superficial consideration of

‘the materials on record illegally discarded

Exhibits-1 and 3. Had there been any interpolation
in the contents of Exhibit-1 or Exhibit-3, the High
Court Division would have been justified in dis-
carding them, but in the absence of anything in
this regard and in presence of uncontroverted evi-
dence on record about seizure and collection of
the true copies of the FIR, I find no cogent ground
to disbelieve the claim of the prosecution that
exts-1 and 3 are the true copies of the FIR lodged
with the Lalbagh Police Station on the following
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day of occurrence by PW 1 narrating the incident
of killing and that after lodging the same, PW 1
kept a copy of the same in the Dhaka Central Jail
and sent a copy to the Inspector General of Police.
The trial Court also believed the claim of PW 1
that he lodged an FIR with Lalbagh police station
over the killing of 4 leaders on 4th November,
1975 and that PW 64 investigated the case on the
basis of the said FIR. '

112. The above facts are so consistent to link
the respondents in the killing of the four national
leaders that in pursuance of a pre-planned con-
spiracy for the killing of the national leaders, the
security team headed by Moslem Uddin imple-
mented the killing. It is an admitted fact-that most
of the army officers and personnel were absorbed
in the Ministry of Foreign Affairs and posted in
different Embassies of Bangladesh abroad instead
of putting them to justice. The above facts proved
that the succeeding Government in power not
only showed special favour to them but also
rewarded them. This absorption of the known
killers in the Ministry of Foreign Affairs and post-
ing them in different Embassies of Bangladesh
suggested that they had influence over the
Government, even after Khandaker Mustaque was
dethroned. This fact itself indicates a strong cir-
cumstance which the court can take judicial notice
as a historical fact. These series of acts are con-
sidered cumulatively lead to the inference that
there was common design of all accused persons
to kill the leaders in the central jail ‘and that in
consequence of that design, the conspirators had
executed the killing. ;

113. The High Court Division disbelieved
the circumstantial evidence on the reasonings that
there are missing links in the chain of events and
that as no appeal was preferred against the charge
of acquittal of criminal conspiracy, their convic-
tion under sections 302/109 of the Penal Code is
also not sustainable in law. True, no appeal was
preferred against the order of acquittal of the
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~accused persons on the charge of criminal con-

spiracy but, this itself is not a legal ground to shirk
its responsibility even if there are sufficient evi-
dence in support of the charge.

114. The High Court Division fell in an error
in acquitting all the accused persons except one
merely on the ground that the State did not take
step against the order of acquittal.

115. This finding of the High Court Division

is palpably illegal and against law. While admin-
istering justice it assigned a reason which has no
sanction of law. There is no dispute that a heinous
crime was committed on the night following 2nd
November, 1975 in the Dhaka central Jail at pris-
oners cell in which the four national leaders were
brutally murdered by armed army personnel. The
question is whether the murders were perpetrated
in pursuance of a conspiracy or in pursuance of a
common intention of the accused respondents and
others. To say otherwise, in which manner the

murders were perpetrated. Both the trial Court and ’

the High Court Division believed the prosecution
case so far the place, the time and the murder is
concerned. If on an analysis of the evidence on
record if it is found that the prosecution has
proved that there was conspiracy to kill the lead-
ers and in pursuance thereof, the killing was per-
petrated, all accused persons could not avoid
criminal liability. If, however, the evidence of
record proved that there was no conspiracy but,
the killing was committed by several persons in
furtherance of common intention of all, all the
accused persons cannot be convicted because the
common intention requires participation in the
crime.

116, The High Court failed to notice that the

acquittal was in respect of a charge on a miscon-
ception of law. If the material evidence on record
are sufficient to come to the conclusion that the
killing was perpetrated in consequence of a con-
spiracy, it has all the powers to award legal con-
viction altering the finding since the trial court
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framed a charge of conspiracy against the accused
persons and the accused persons have been afford-
ed opportunity to defend the same. The High
Court Division, under such circumstances, has
power to alter the finding of the trial court under
section 423(b)(2) of the Code of Criminal
Procedure and award conviction in accordance
with law. It is settled law that if a palpable illegal-
ity is apparent in the trial Court’s judgment while
hearing an appeal from conviction, the appellate
court can pass appropriate conviction for ends of

| justice on reappraisal of the evidence on record.

117. Similarly, this Division has the power
to alter the finding of the High Court Dmsim and
determine the offence committed by the respon
dents because the appellate court has the poweﬁo

“alter the finding maintaining the sentence’ wiﬂl-
out an appeal being filed by the State on the
charge of conspiracy. The only bar is, no alter-
ation can be made to the detriment of the accused
persons but in this case the accused persons will
not be prejudiced thereby, since they have defend-
ed the charge. The fundamental principle underly-
ing sections 221-223 of the Code of Criminal
Procedure is that an accused person can be con-
victed of a particular offence only if he was
charged with the same. Exceptions to this princi-
ple are laid down by sections 234-239 read with
section 535, which empower the trial court, in
cases specified, to convict an accused person with
respect to an offence even though he was not
changed with the same. The ordinary rule that the
accused cannot be convicted of any offence with
which he is not charged is circumscribed by
exceptions. The power of the appellate court
under section 423(b)(2) is, however, subject to the

. condition that the appellate court cannot enhance
' the sentence imposed by the trial court.

118. The appellate court has power t@‘ :

SEIRE

the finding of the trial court and cmwiet the
accused person on the basis of the ewdence on

. record. Section 423(b)(2) enjoins the appeilate
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court to find the proper offence of which the
accused person could be held to be guilty. No
restriction is placed on the power of the appellate
court to alter the finding to any that it considers
suitable to the purpose. The expression ‘alter the
finding’ contemplates only an alteration of the
finding of conviction which was appealed against
and which was the subject matter of appeal.

119. In Ramdeo Rai Yadav vs State of Bihar,
AIR 1990 SC 1180, Ramdeo Rai Yadeb and three
others were charged under section 396, in the
alternative under section 302 of the Indian Penal
Code. The trial court convicted all accused under
section 396. The High Court found Ramdeo Rai
Yadav alone guilty of offence under section 302
by altering his conviction. The Supreme Court
held that the appellant couldn’t be said to have
been prejudiced by the alteration of the conviction
in view of the specific alternative charge. The
argument advanced on behalf of the convicted
accused that there was an acquittal was found of
no merit at all.

120. In Tilkeswor vs Bihar State, AIR 1956
SC 238, the appellants were charged under section
302/34 and convicted of the said charge. On
appeal the High Court converted the conviction to
one under section 326/149. It was contended
before the High Court that there was no power in
the court to substitute section 149 for section 34.
The Supreme Court repelled the contention
observing that the law on the point was settled in
Willie Slancy vs State of MP, AIR 1956 SC 116. In
Brathi vs State of Punjab, (1991) 1 SCC 519, the
appellant and his uncle were tried under section
302 of the Indian Penal Code. The trial court
acquitted the appellant’s uncle but convicted the
appellant under section 302. The Order of acquit-
tal became final because State did not choose to
challenge it in appeal. The appellant, however,
preferred an appeal against his conviction. The
High Court on sifting the evidence held that the
fatal blow was given by the appellant’s uncle and
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since the appellant was charged under section
302/34, he could not be convicted under section
302. However, the High Court held that the eye
witnesses had given a truthful account of the
occurrence and the appellant’s uncle had actually
participated in the commission of the crime along
with the appellant. Since no appeal was filed by
State against acquittal of appellant’s uncle, High
Court maintained the appellant’s conviction under
section 302/34. The Supreme Court held that in
the matter of appreciation of evidence, the powers
of the appellate court are as wide as that of the
trial court and the High Court was, therefore, enti-
tled in law to review the entire evidence and to
arrive its own conclusion about the facts and cir-
cumstances emerging therefor. The Court further
held that ‘when several persons are alleged to
have committed an offence in furtherance of their
common intention and all except one are acquit-
ted, it is open to the appellate court under sub-sec-
tion(1)(b) of section 386 of the Code to find out
on an appraisal of the evidence who were persons
involved in the commission of the crime and
although it could not interfere with the order of
acquittal in the absence of a State appeal it was
entitled to determine the actual offence committed
by the convicted persons.’

121. Even where a charge was framed
against an accused person in respect of an offence,
he may be convicted for lesser offence provided
the case attracts section 237 and 238 of the Code
of Criminal Procedure. It is said, if the graver
charge gives to the accused notice of all circum-
stances going to constitute the minor offence. In
GD Sharma vs State of UP, AIR 1960 SC 400,
three appellants who were tried separately. Two
accused were convicted under section 467 and the
other under section 467/471 of the Indian Penal
Code and sentenced them accordingly. They pre-
ferred four appeals against their convictions in the
High Court. The High Court by setting aside the
conviction directed their retrial observing that at
the trial a charge in the alternative under sections
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467 and 477A should be framed against two
accused and a charge of abetment in the alterna-
tive of offences under sections 467 and 477A
should be framed against one namely OM
Prakash. The High Court was of the opinion that
the acquittal of accused under section 120B, was
correct in the absence of sanction. Accused per-
sons challenged the order of remand in the
Supreme Court. The supreme Court set aside the
order of remand and directed the High Court to re-
hear the appeals observing that “The provisions of
Ss.236 and 237 are clear enough to enable a court
to convict an accused person even of an offence
with which he had not been charged if the court is
of the opinion that the provisions of 8.236 apply,
that is to say, if a single act is or a series of acts
are of such a nature that it is doubtful which of
several offences the facts which can be proved
will constitute, then the accused can be charged
with having committed all or any of such
offences, and any number of such charges can be
tried at once; or he may be charged in the alterna-
tive with having committed some one of the said
offences and by virtue of the provisions of §.237
the accused although charged with one offence,
and it appears in evidence that he committed a dif-
ferent offence for which he might have been
charged under the provisions of section 236, can
be convicted of the offence which he is shown to
have committed, although he was not charged
with it”.

122. Admittedly, in this case except
Resalder Mosleh Uddin, none of the prosecution
witnesses has been able to recognize the respon-
dents either in the Dhaka Central Jail gate or at the
scene of occurrence. They were seen in the com-
pany of Resalder Mosleh Uddin in Bangabhaban
on the fateful night and preceding to the date of
occurrence when the conspiracy was afoot. We
found that the respondents were parties to the
criminal conspiracy hatched up at Bangabhaban
for implementing the killing at Dhaka Central Jail.
[f the conspiracy is proved, there is no legal bar to
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award a legal conviction to the accused-respon-
dents. Even if no formal charge is framed or there

- is omission to frame a charge unaccompanied by

any probable suggestion of any failure of justice
having been thereby occasioned, is not enough to

- warrant the quashing of a conviction in view of

section 535 of the Code of Criminal Procedure.
123. The object of framing a charge is to

- enable an accused person to known the substan-

tive charge which he will have to meet at the trial.
References in this connection are the case of V.M.
Abdul Rahman vs King Emperor, AIR 1927 PC 44
and BN Srikantiah vs Mysore State, AIR 1958 SC
672. The Judicial Committee of the Privy (W
held that ‘the bare fact of such omission or ﬁ@—
alarity as occurred in the case under appml, unac-
companied by any probable suggestion of any
fzilure of justice having been thereby occasioned,
s not enough to warrant the quashing of a con-
wiction, which in their Lordships view, may be
supported by the creative provisions of $5.535 and

- -
37
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124. It was urged on behalf of the appellant
tat even if no appeal was preferred against the
acquittal of the charge of criminal conspiracy, this
Division in exercise of its inherent power can con-
vict the respondents. In this connection, it was
submitted that this Division should take judicial
motice of the adverse situation then prevailing dur-
mg the relevant time in conducting and prosecut-
ing the case the State was not interested to pro-
ceed with the case and its machinery did not co-
operate with the special public prosecutor in con-
ducting the case on behalf of the prosecution and
under such circumstances, no appeal ﬂ be
filed against the said charge as the State did not
mstruct the special prosecutor for ﬁhl' well. In
the premises, it is argued that it is a fit case in
which this Division ought to have evaluated the
evidence on the charge of criminal omﬁy
the interest of justice. In support of ﬂnm
the learned Attorney-General has referred some
decisions.
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125. In view of the position of law discussed
above, there is no legal bar to convict the accused
respondents on the charge of conspiracy.
However, since both the parties have argued at
length on the question of invoking inherent pow-
ers and cited certain decisions, I feel it proper to
address the question. The Constitution is a social
document, and Article 104 is not meant for mere
adorning the Constitution. The Constituent
Assembly felt that a provision like the one should
be kept in the Constitution so that in exceptional
cases the highest court of the country could
invoke its inherent powers. It is conceived to meet
the situations which cannot be effectively and
appropriately tackled by the existing provisions of
law. Apart from the powers given to this Division
by the Constitution, a Court of law always retains
some inherent powers. It is, therefore, said, the
Court is not powerless to undo any injustice
caused to a party. Shutting of judicial eyes even
after detection of palpable injustice is in one sense
denial of justice. If the Judges do not rise to the
occasion to which they are oath bound to do jus-
tice, they would commit the similar illegality as
the one committed by a litigant. Court’s practical
approach would be towards doing justice without
bothering too much about any one’s perception.
We should never compromise to do justice.

126. In this connection, I would like to quote
an observation of Benjamin Cardozo in People vs
John Defore, 242 NY 13, 17-28. “The question is
whether protection for the individual would not be
gained at a disproportionate loss of protection for
society. On the one side is the social need that
crime shall be repressed. On the other, the social
need the law shall not be flouted by the insolence
of office’. The powers of this Division is to ensure
due and proper administration of justice. There is,
therefore, no denial of the fact that in appropriate
cases ends of justice warrants the exercise of this
power. If we do not invoke the inherent powers in
appropriate cases, there is no need for keeping this
provision in the Constitution.
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127. In Mahmudul Islam’s Constitutional
Law of Bangladesh, Third Edition, it is stated in
paragraph 5.196 under the heading “power to do
complete justice”, that this Division has the power
to issue such orders or directions as may be nec-
essary for doing complete Justice in any cause or
matters pending before it. The author on consider-
ation of the observations made by this Division
and the Supreme Court of India in Khandaker
Zillul Bari vs State, (2009) 17 BLT (AD) 28 = |3
BLC (4D) 97, Shahana Hossain vs Asaduzzaman,
47 DLR (4D) 155, Karnataka vs Andhra Pradesh,
(2000) 9 SCC 572 and Abdyl Malek vs Abdus
Salam 61 DLR (4D) 124 stated that this confer-
ment of power is under special circumstances and
for special reasons having the concept of justice
being the predominant factor behind the inclusion
of such provision in the Constitution. This power
can be exercised in a matter or cause in pending
appeal when this Division finds that no remedy is
available to the appellant though gross injustice
has been done to him for no fault or laches of his
own. This power is not circumscribed by any lim-
iting words. This is an extraordinary power con-
ferred by the Constitution and no attempt has been
made to define or describe complete justice.

128. If a substantial justice under law and on
undisputed facts can be made so that the parties
may not be pushed to further litj gation, a recourse
to the provision of Article 104 may be justified,
There are cases where the High Court Division
did not take into consideration certain affidavits,
this Division had considered them in exercise of
its inherent powers for doing complete justice, See
[Ekushey Television vs Dy Chowdhury Mahmud
Hasan, 55 DLR (AD) 26]. 1t was observed by this
Division in National Board of Revenue vs Nasrin
Banu, 48 DLR (AD) 171, that “Cases may vary,
situations may vary and the scale and parameter
of complete justice also vary. Sometimes it may
be justice according to law, sometimes it may be
justice according to fairness, equity and good con-
science, sometimes jt may be justice tempered
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with mercy, sometimes it may be pure common-
Sense, sometimes it may be the inference of an
ordinary reasonable man and S0 on.” Speaking
about the extent of Power to be exercised, this
Division in Naziruddin vs Hameeda Banu, 45
DLR (4D) 38, observed- Considering the vagaries
of legal proceedings and the technicalities
involved in adjudication, article 104 of the
Constitution has invested as a measure of abun-
dant caution, the last Court of the country with
wide power, so that it may forestall a failure of
justice and to do complete justice in an appropri-
ate case. Itis an extraordinary procedure for doing
justice for completion of or putting an end to a
cause or matter pending before this Court. If a |
substantial justice under law and on undisputed
facts can be made SO that parties may not be
pushed to further litigation then a recourse to the
provision of article 104 may be justified.
Complete justice may not be perfect justice, and
any endeavour to attain the Jatter will be an act of
vanity.

129. In Srate vs Muhammad Nawaz, 18 DLR
(SC) 503, out of 28 accused persons tried by the
Sessions Judge under sections 302/307/323/ 148
of the Penal Code, he acquitted 10 accused and
convicted 18 for murder and other minor offences.
It sentenced to death two accused persons while
rest to imprisonment for life and also imprison-
ment for a shorter period against all the accused.
The High Court upheld the conviction and sen-
tence of seven accused and acquitted rest, of
them, two were those who had been sentenced to
death. The convicted seven filed leave petition in
the Supreme Court. Supreme Court granted leave
and by the said order leave was also granted to the
State against the said order of acquittal of remain-
ing eleven. Objection was raised on behalf of the
accused persons in respect of the appeal by State
on the ground that the leaye petition by the State
Wwas barred by 76 days and they were not afforded
any opportunity when the leave was granted. The
Supreme Court observed that the State’s appeal
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was liable to be dismissed on the ground of limi-
tation. It, however, noticed that the High Court
illegally failed to convict three accused who had
admittedly been present at the spot and two others
who were assailants of a witness and convicted by
the trial court. The Supreme Court suo moto
1ssued notice against them who had secured order
of acquittal in exercise of powers under Article 61
of the Constitution. It was observed that ‘the error
being patent on the record of this case’ the respon-
dents being represented by a lawyer, ‘the case
against these five respondents calls for considera-
tion by us along with the appeal of the seven con-
victs’ and sentenced two of them to life sentence
and rest to one and half years. The Supreme Court
passed the sentence in exercise of inherent pow-
s _

130. In Bangladesh vs Dhaka Lodge, 40
DLR (AD) 86, some documents which were filed
on behalf of the Government in the trial Court
were not exhibited by it on the reasoning that they
were filed after closure of the evidence. The trial
Court dismissed the suit of the respondent but the
High Court Division decreed the suit. This
Division allowed the appeal for doing complete
Jjustice observing that “the constitutional obliga-
tion of this court is to do complete justice in the
cause or matter and while doing so it has become
imperative for giving due consideration to these
annexures to clarify the factual position which in
the final analysis can be given by the trial Court”.

131. Similar views have been expressed in
Raziul Hasan vs Badiuzzaman Khan, 16 BLD
(AD) 253 = 1 BLC (AD) 35;. In that case appel-
lant Raziul Hasan was in the Foreign Service, and
before the Administrative Tribunal moved by the
respondent Badiuzzaman, the appellant Raziul
Hasan could not defend his case and that despite
assurance given by Ministry of Foreign Affairs,
his case was not placed before the Tribunal. The
Administrative Tribunal gave relief in favour of
the respondent No.1 and the Administrative
Appellate Tribunal dismissed the appellant’s
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appeal on the ground of limitation. This Division
gave relief to the appellant on the reasonings as
under: -

“We now find that no remedy is available
to the appellant, though a gross injustice has
been done to him for no fault or laches of his
own. A valuable right accrued to the appellant
in law and fact should not be lost. In that view
of the matter we thought it to be a most appro-
priate case to exercise our jurisdiction under
Article 104 of the Constitution. It will not be
out of place to say that Article 32(2) of the
Constitution of India invests the Supreme
Court of India not only with the writ jurisdic-
tion but also with the power to issue direc-
tions, orders or writs in any matter. Thus the
Indian Supreme Court possesses original
jurisdiction. But in the scheme of our
Constitution we can only do complete justice
under Article 104 of the Constitution in a
matter or cause which is pending in appeal
under Article 103 of the Constitution. A sub-
stantial injustice having been done to the
appellant we feel that the jurisdiction under
Article 104 of the Constitution should be
exercised in the facts and circumstances of
this case.”

132. It is to be noted that judiciary works to
maintain social justice and fairness in accordance
with law. In doing justice-judiciary does not
believe in misplaced sympathy. The above views
have been correctly explained in Balaram
Prashed Agarwal vs State of Bihar, (1997) 9 SCC
338. Facts in that case are that one Kiron Devi
committed suicide. According to the prosecution,
Kiron Devi’s in-laws and her husband forced her
to commit suicide by jumping in a well. Police
eventually submitted charge-sheet under sections
498A, 302/34 and 120B of the Indian Penal Code
against her husband and in-laws. The trial Court
framed charge under sections 302/34 of the Penal
Code against the accused persons. It acquitted the
accused persons although it held that there was
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evidence on record that the members of the fami-
ly of the accused used to assault the victim; that
they also used to demand dowry from her; that
threats were given by the accused to the victim
that they would kill her and get her husband mar-
ried to another woman, but since in the meantime
seven years elapsed it held that Kiron Devi might
have been killed for the sake of dowry cannot be
raised. The Supreme Court after appraisal of the
evidence came to the conclusion that though the
accused persons were rightly found not guilty of
the charge of murder, there were sufficient evi-
dence on record in support of the charge under
section 498A for the offence of cruelty by hus-
band or relatives of husband of the woman; that
despite no charge was framed against them on that
count, in exercise of power under Article 142 of
the Constitution it might itself examine the ques-
tion of culpability of the accused for the said
offence in the light of the evidence on record so as
to obviate protraction of trial and multiplicity of
the proceedings. “It is now well settled that in
exercise of powers under Article 142, appropriate
orders can be passed /See EK Chandrasenan vs
State of Kerala, (1995) 2 SCC 99] in the interest
of justice in cases which brought before this court.
We have been taken through the relevant evidence
on record we find that the prosecution has been
able to bring home the guilt of the accused under
section 498A 1 PC” the court observed.

133. In Chandrakant Patil vs State, (1998) 3
SCC 38, four accused persons were found guilty
under section 5 of the Terrorist and Disruptive
Activities (Prevention) Act, 1987 (TADA) and
sentenced to five years rigorous imprisonment. In
an appeal from conviction, the Supreme Court of
India issued notice upon the convicted persons for
enhancement of sentence. On behalf of the
accused persons it was contended that in view of
section 377(3) of the Code of Criminal Procedure
1973, the High Court could not enhance the sen-
tence without affording the accused a reasonable
opportunity of showing cause and in which case,
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the accused might plead for his acquittal and for
reduction of the sentence and in that view of the
matter, the court had no power to enhance the sen-
tence. It was held that the Supreme Court has
power to pass any order and this power is not cir-
cumscribed by any restriction such as section 19
of TADA “no enactment made by the Central Act
or State Legislation can limit or restrict the power
of this court under Article 142, though while exer-
cising it the court may have regard to statutory
provisions” and enhanced the sentence to ten
years imprisonment.

134. In Mohd. Anis vs Union of India, 1994
Supp (1) SCC 145 it was observed that “This
power has been conferred on the Apex Court only
and the exercise of that power is not dependent or
conditioned by any statutory provision. The con-
stitutional plenitude of the powers of the apex
Court is to ensure due and proper administration
of justice and is intended to be co-extensive in
each case with the needs of justice of a given case
and to meet any exigency. Very wide powers have
been conferred on this Court for due and proper
administration of justice and whenever the Court
sees that the demand of justice warrants exercise
of such powers, it will reach out to ensure that jus-
tice is done by resorting to this extraordinary
power conferred to meet precisely such a situa-
tion.”

135. On an analysis of the above cases, we
find that in Balaram Prashad Agarwal (supra), the
accused persons who were not even charged under
section 498 A were found guilty of the said offence
by the Supreme Court after having noticed from
the materials on record that there was grave error
in not convicting them under section 498A on the
reasoning that the power of the highest court was
not circumscribed by any statutory limitation; that
a remand order would defeat the ends of justice,
and that would foster the multiplicity of proceed-
ings. In Muhammad Nawaz (Supra), the Supreme
Court of Pakistan convicted five accused persons
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who were acquitted by the High Court, although
State did not file appeal. While convicting them,
the Supreme Court issued notice upon them and
heard their counsel. The statements of law argued
in those cases are sound, cogent, in conformity
with law and I find no reason to take a different
view. State is not required to file an appeal against
the acquittal on the charge of conspiracy.

136. The evidence on record proved beyond
doubt that the killing was perpetrated in pur-
suance of a conspiracy and therefore, it is conso-
nance to law and justice that the respondents
should be awarded a legal conviction of an
offence on the basis of the evidence on record. If
a graver sentence is provided for murder in pur-
suance of conspiracy, the question of prejudice
would have arisen. Here the respondents have not
acquired any right against the acquittal on the
charge of conspiracy. So, even without exercise of
mherent power, this Division can alter the convic-
tion of the respondents to one of murder in pur-
suance of the criminal conspiracy. The appellant
has taken ground Nos.II and IV in its concise
statement for convicting the accused on the charge
of conspiracy. In view of rule 13 of Order XXIII,
rule 5 of Order XX of the Appellate Division’s
Rules are applicable to criminal appeals, and there
s no legal bar to convict them even if no leave
was granted on this point. This is a settled point
and | need not make any observation on this ques-
tion. In support of the charge, the prosecution has
adduced evidence and the accused persons have
defended the same. The trial court as well as the
High Court Division discussed the evidence in
support of this charge but disbelieved the charge
on perfunctory grounds. Therefore, there is no
legal bar to convict the respondents on the basis of
the evidence on record.

137. The gist of the offence of criminal con-
spiracy being an agreement to break the law, it is
found from the evidence that the army personnel
deputed in the Bangabhaban convened meetings
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several times for executing the killing. Some of
them visited the Dhaka Central Jail and then
chalked out the plan and design, and constituted
two killing squads for the purpose. They com-
pelled the jail authority to allow the killing squad
to enter into the Dhaka Central Jail with arms.
They had compelled the jail authority to segregate
the four leaders and keep them in one cell. It is
also on record that two groups executed the
killing-the first group headed by the Moslem
Uddin shot at the four prisoners from short range
with the arms carried by them and some time
thereafter, the second group entered into the
Dhaka Central Jail and in order to ensure the death
of the leaders, charged bayonets upon them. The
respondents being party to the conspiracy, they
are agents in the objects of conspiracy, the identi-
fication of Moslem Uddin at the jail gate before
shooting at the political prisoners should be taken
as done by all the respondents as well. It is imma-
terial whether the respondents were not recog-
nized at the Dhaka Central Jail. It also makes no
difference as to their non-identification. They
monitored everything over telephone from
Bangabhaban. The acts which followed the killing
i.e. fleeing away of the killers with their family
members to Bangkok by arranging a special
flight, are strong circumstances to link them in the
killing. Therefore, all elements to constitute crim-
inal conspiracy to kill the leaders in the Dhaka
Central Jail are present in this case. The prosecu-
tion has been able to prove the charge of conspir-
acy by direct as well as circumstantial evidence
beyond reasonable doubt against the respondents.

138. This case is standing on a better footing
in view of the fact that a proper charge of criminal
conspiracy was framed by the trial court and the
accused respondents had defended the charge. In
this Division as well as in the High Court
Division, they were represented by a lawyer and
the point in question was raised and heard. The
commission of the offence is same and therefore,
there is no need for alteration of the charge. It is
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found from the appraisal of the evidence that the
accused persons perpetrated the killing in pur-
suance of conspiracy and since conspiracy has
been proved, the same set of accused persons can-
not be legally convicted for an offence of sharing
the common intention of all in respect of the same
incident. The High Court Division on a miscon-
ception of law held that the prosecution has failed
to prove the conspiracy. From the evidence as dis-
cussed above, if there be any doubt about the con-
spiracy, it would be difficult to find out a suitable
case to prove such charge. The facts found from
the materials on record, the barbarity revealed in
the commission of the crime and the seriousness
of nature of the offence perpetrated by the
accused, it would be a travesty irony if the
accused persons are not convicted on the charge
of conspiracy. With due respect I am unable to
endorse the majority opinion that the accused-
respondents cannot be convicted on the charge of
criminal conspiracy. The question of the benefit of
law does not arise at all for simple reason that they
were charged with and defended of the charge of
criminal conspiracy. If that being the position, the
sentence being the same, the question of injustice
or prejudice does not arise at all. The respondents
cannot be fastened with vicarious criminal liabili-
ty within the meaning of section 34 of the Penal
Code but their conviction would be one under sec-
tions 120B read with 302, not under sections
302/34 of the Penal Code. It should be borne in
mind that the definition of the words used in the
Penal Code in sections 6 to 52A is one of the most
important things. It defines with almost punctil-
ious precision the meaning of various terms which
are then used as terms of art everywhere in the
Code, both in defining the offences as well as in
describing their inter-relations and differences.
The object of the definitions is to avoid the per-
plexing variety of senses. Where the enactment
itself provides a definition of the offence, the
court should look into the meaning of the offence
assigned to the term by the statute itself for inter-
preting that offence used in the statute. Section 2
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of the Penal Code asserts that every person shall
be liable to punishmens umder the Code for every
act or omission comtrary %0 the provisions of the
Code and of which Be shall be guilty within
Bangladesh. The obsect of this section is to
declare the liability of every person, irrespective
of rank, nationality. casse or creed, to be punished
under its provisions. Therefore, all infractions of
law as laid down in $he Penal Code shall only be
punished in the mammer therein laid down. An
offence is what the Legislature classes as punish-
able. Any act or omission can be classed as an
offence is in itself an offence within the meaning
of section 40. There are three elements of an
offence; first, the act: secondly, the mens rea; and
thirdly, the harmful social consequences of the act
which is why the law makes it culpable. As crim-
inal justice requires clear demonstration of facts,
it requires also clear emunciation of law, for no
one can be convicied of a doubtful offence.
Therefore, I fail to understand how the act of the
accused which falls under one definition of
offence can be taken as another offence under dif-
ferent definition, and the accused persons be con-
victed for the offence which does not cover defi-
nition of such offence. It is illegal and not permis-
sible in law. A court of law cannot convict an
accused in respect of an offence which he has not
committed.

139. Before concluding. I would like to say
that the basic fundamentals of administration of
justice are that no man should suffer because of
the mistake of the court. No man should suffer by
technical procedure of irregularities. Rules or pro-
cedure are handmaids of justice and not the mis-
tress of the justice. If a man is wronged, so long it
lies within the human machinery of administra-
tion of justice, that wrong must be remedied. An
irregular order of a court of unlimited jurisdiction
can be set aside by it on the application either
under the rules of court dealing expressly with
setting aside orders for irregularity or ex debitio
justitiae if the circumstances warrant. Judicial
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vacillations undermine respect of the judiciary
and judicial institutions, denuding thereby respect
for law and the confidence in the even-handed-
ness in the administration of justice. (4R Antulay
vs RS Nayak, (1988) 2SCC 602.

140. For the reasons stated above, convic-
tion of the respondent passed by the trial court is
altered to one of section 120B read with section
302 of the Penal Code. The sentence of death
awarded to the respondents by the trial Court is
restored.

Md Abdul Wahhab Miah J: I have gone
through the separate judgments prepared by
Surendra Kumar Sinha, J. and Nazmun Ara
Sultana, J. | agree with the reasoning and findings
given by Nazmun Ara Sultana, J. :

Nazmun Ara Sultana J: This criminal
appeal by leave, at the instance of the State, has
been filed against the judgment and order dated
28-8-2008 passed by a Division Bench of the
High Court Division in Death Reference No.150
of 2004 heard together with 4 other criminal
appeals filed by the convicted accused persons
accepting the death reference in part and rejecting
the same with respect to the present accused-
respondents Dafader Marfoth Ali Shah and LD
(Dafader) Md Abul Hashem Mridha and thereby
acquitting them from the charges levelled against
them and allowing all the 4 appeals.

143. The prosecution case, in short, was that
on 3rd November, 1975, at about 3-00 AM the
then Inspector General of Prisons Mr
Nuruzzaman Howlader received several tele-
phone calls from army personnel at Bangabhaban
who told him that some armed miscreants might
enter the jail and take away some prisoners
forcibly and asked him to go to Dhaka Central Jail
mmediately. IG (Prisons) then informed DIG
(Prisons) Mr Kazi Abdul Awal about those tele-
phonic messages over telephone and asked him to
go to Central Jail immediately and he himself also
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went to Central Jail, Dhaka. Upon arrival at the
Jail IG (Prisons) Mr Nuruzzaman and DIG
(Prisons) Kazi Abdul Awal took seat in the office
of DIG (Prisons). There also IG (Prisons) received
various telephone calls; sometimes thereafter
accused Captain Muslem Uddin along with 4
other armed personnel arrived at the Jail Gate, but
they did not disclose their names to the persons
attending the Jail Gate; DIG (Prisons) Kazi Abdul
Awal asked those army personnel to put their sig-
natures in the register maintained for the purpose
at the Jail Gate; those army personnel then put
their signatures in the register at Jail Gate and then
entered into the Jail; they wanted to know who
Mr. Nuruzzaman was, Mr Nuruzzaman-the IG
(Prisons) disclosed his identity and those armed
personnel then inquired as to whether they had
kept aside those persons who were asked to be
kept segregated. Mr Nuruzzaman wanted to know
the purpose of such segregation of those persons
and the armed personnel then disclosed that they
would be done to death; hearing such reply the IG
(Prisons) Mr. Nuruzzaman wanted to have a tele-
phone call to the President; at that time the jailor
also received a telephone call from President
Mostaqg Ahmed who desired to have a talk to 1G
(Prisons) Mr Nuruzzaman and ultimately there
was talk between the President Mostag Ahmed
and IG(Prisons) Mr Nuruzzaman over telephone;
that President Mostag Ahmed ordered IG
(Prisons) over telephone to allow those 5 army
personnel to do whatever they wanted to do;
thereafter the second gate inside the jail was
opened and the said 5 army personnel along with
Mr. Nuruzzaman entered inside the jail; the DIG
(Prisons) Kazi Abdul Awal also followed Mr
Nuruzzaman and those army personnel. Having
entered inside the jail those 5 armed personnel
enquired as to why there was delay; immediately
thereafter the Deputy Jailor, Habilder and some
wardens had informed that those persons had been
segregated. The accused Muslem Uddin and his 4
other armed companions then went to the spot
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where those 4 persons namely, Syed Nazrul Islam,
Captain Mansur Alj, Tajuddin Ahmed and AHM
Kamruzzaman-the four leaders-were brought as
ordered and a few minutes hereafter the IG
(Prisons), DIG (Prisons) and others heard sounds
of opening shots from firearms: some time there-
after the assailants decamped from the scene in a
hurry; thereafter, Mr Nuruzzaman and Kazi Abdul
Awal returned to office and offered Fazar prayer
there; at that time they came to know that another
group of armed personnel had arrived at the scene
of occurrence to ensure the death of those four
leaders and seeing that out of those four leaders
two were still alive they caused their death by
bayonet charges; that the IG (Prisons) and the
DIG (Prisons) being puzzled and knowing not
what to do left the office for their respective resi-
dence and again returned at 8/9 AM to the Jail
Gate. DIG (Prisons) Kazi Abdul Awal then talked
with Colonel Rashid over telephone to know the
course of action at that situation and Major Rashid
ordered not to move the dead bodies; at around
mid-day on the same day the IG (Prisons) along
with DIG (Prisons) went to the Secretary,
Ministry of Home A ffairs and apprised him of the
incident but he also failed to give any satisfactory
solution, rather he asked to hand over the dead
bodies to their respective relations after conclud-
ing post mortem examination; that at that time the
Secretary, Ministry of Home Affairs had tele-
phonic calls with the Superintendent of Police,
Deputy Commissioner, Civil Surgeon and others
over the incident; that the dead bodies. of four
slain leaders Syed Nazrul Islam, Captain Mansur
Ali, Tajuddin Ahmed and AKM Kamruzzaman
were handed over to their relatives after holding
of postmortem examination and thereafter DIG
(Prisons) Kazi Abdul Awal, as the informant,
lodged the FIR with Lalbagh Police Station on 4-
11-1975 stating the fact of killing of four leaders
inside Dhaka Central Jail by armed personnel;
that on 5-11-1975 the informant submitted a
detailed report also about that jail killing address-
ing the Inspector General of Prison,
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144. On the basis of the FIR lodged by the
DIG (Prisons) Kazi Abdul Awal, Lalbagh Police
Station Case No.11 dated 4-11-1975 was regis-

tered, but the investigation of that case remained
suspended for many years till 17-8-1996.
Subsequently on the order of the Government,
investigation of that case was started on 18-8-
1996. The investigating officer-PW 64 Abdul

Kaher Akand, the Assistant Superintendent of
Police, CID Bangladesh took over the charge of |

investigation on that day. He found record of the

corresponding GR case No.10698 of 1975 miss-

ing and the original FIR was not found. The
record of GR case, however, was subsequently
reconstructed. After completion of investigation
the investigating officer submitted charge sheet
being No.370 dated 15-10-1998 under sections

120B/302/448/109 and 34 of the Penal Code
against 21 accused persons including the present
accused respondents Dafader Marfoth Ali Shah
and LD (Dafader) Md Abul Hashem Mridha.

145. The case was ultimately taken up for
trial in the court of Metropolitan Sessions Judge,
Dhaka. Charge under section 120B of the Penal
Code was framed against 20 accused persons
since one accused Aziz Pasha died in the mean-
time and charge under sections 302/109 of the
Penal Code was framed against 19 accused per-
SOns except accused Risalder Moslem Uddin who
was charged under section 302 of the Penal code.
The charges so framed were read over to the
accused persons who were present in the court.
These accused persons pleaded not guilty and
claimed to be tried. '

146. The prosecution examined as many as
64 witnesses to prove the charges framed against
the accused persons. The defence examined none.

The accused persons present on dock were exam-

ined under section 342 of the Code of Criminal
Procedure.

147. The defence case, as it appears from the
trend of cross-examination of the prosecution wit-
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nesses and also from the statements made by the
accused persons under section 342 of the Code of
Criminal Procedure, was that at about 12 midnight
10 1-00 AM of 3-11-1975 Khaled Mosharaff pro-

. claimed a coup d’ etat and thereby he along with

&

|
i
!

PW 29 Colonel Safayet Jamil withdrew the Tanks
Regiment from Bangabhaban at 12 to 1-00 AM on
3-11-1975 and that it was the four leaders of
Awami League who were the legitimate succes-
sors to the Government after killing of
Bangabandhu Sheikh Mujibur Rahman and there-
fore Khaled Mosharaff and his partymen with a
view 10 serving their peaceful tenure of office, had
killed the four leaders inside the Central Jail and
that the innocent accused persons were falsely
mmplicated in this case.

148. However, the trial court, on considera-
ton of evidence adduced by the prosecution and
the facts and circumstances, convicted the present
accused respondents Dafader Marfoth Ali Shah
and LD (Dafader) Md Abul Hashem Mridha and
Risalder Moslem Uddin @ Muslem Uddin @
Hiron Khan @ Muslem Uddin Khan under sec-
tions 302/34 of the Penal Code and sentenced all

- of them to death with fine by the judgment and
- order dated 20-10-2004. The trial court convicted

these 3 accused persons along with 12 others
under sections 302/109 of the Penal Code also and
semtenced them to imprisonment for life with fine
of Taka10,000 (ten thousand) each. The trial court
found accused Major Md Khairuzzaman, AKM
Obaidur Rahman, Shah Moazzem Hossain, Nurul
Isfam Monzur and Taher Uddin Thakur not guilty
of the charge under sections 302/109 of the Penal
Code and acquitted them of the said charge. The

- wmal court found all the accused persons not guilty

of the charge under section 120B of the Penal
Cade and acquitted them of the said charge.

149. This judgment and order of conviction

- @nd sentence of the trial was sent to the High

Court Division under section 374 of the Code of
Crminal Procedure for confirmation of the death
semtences and accordingly Death Reference
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No.150 of 2004 was registered. The other con-
victed accused namely, Lieutenant Colonel
(released) Syed Faruk Rahman, Lieutenant
Colonel (released) Sultan Shahriar Rashid Khan,
Major (retd.) Bazlul Huda and Major, (Retd.)
AKM Mohiuddin preferred Criminal Appeal
Nos.4739 of 2004, 4740 of 2004 and Jail Appeal
Nos.118 of 2006 and 597 of 2007 respectively.

150. The State or none from the deceased’s
family preferred any appeal against the judgment
and order of acquittal of all the accused persons
from the charge under section 120B of the Penal
Code or against the order of acquittal of the afore-
said 5 accused persons from the charge under sec-
tions 302/109 of the Penal code.

151. However, the High Court Division
heard the death reference along with aforesaid 4
appeals together and by its impugned judgment
and order dated 28-8-2008 rejected the death ref-
erence so far as it relates to the present accused
respondents Dafader Marfoth Ali Shah and LD
(Dafader) Md Abul Hashem Mridha and acquitted
them of the charges levelled against them. The
High Court Division allowed the 4 appeals also
preferred by Lieutenant Colonel (released) Syed
Faruk Rahman, Lieutenant Colonel (released)
Sultan Shahriar Rashid Khan, Major (retd.) Bazlul
Huda and Major, (Retd.) AKM Mohiuddin and
acquitted all of them from the charges levelled
against them. The High Court Division accepted
the death reference in part and confirmed the con-
viction and sentence of death imposed upon the
accused Risalder Moslem Uddin.

152. The state has filed this present criminal
appeal challenging the acquittal of the accused
respondents Dafader Marfoth Ali Shah and LD
(Dafader) Md Abul Hashem Mridha only. It
should be mentioned here that the State though
filed criminal petition for leave to appeal against
the order of acquittal of Lieutenant Colonel
(released) Syed Faruk Rahman, Lieutenant
Colonel (released) Sultan Shahriar Rashid Khan,
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Major (retd.) Bazlul Huda and Major, (Retd.)
AKM Mohiuddin passed by the High Court
Division by the same impugned judgment but
these 4 accused having been convicted and sen-
tenced to death in the Bangabandhu murder case
being already hanged to death on 28-1-2010 upon
confirmation of their death sentence by the
Appellate Division those Criminal Petitions for
leave to Appeal abated.

153. However, leave for filing this present
appeal was granted by this Division by the order
dated 11-1-2011 in Criminal Petition for Leave to
Appeal No.316 of 2009 to consider the grounds
agitated from the side of the leave petitioner-State
which are quoted below:-

1. Because the High Court Division deliv-
ered its judgment by misreading, misquoting
and misunderstanding the evidence on record
especially that of PW 29 and PW 52 as such
the judgment is perverse;

I1. Because the High Court Division erred
in law by not properly applying the well set-
tled principles of law regarding circumstan-
tial evidence and arrived at a wrong conclu-
sion;

III. Because the High Court Division
failed to appreciate the abundance of evi-
dence on record proving the circumstances
and establishing a chain between them and
arrived at a wrong conclusion causing serious
miscarriage of justice;

(1V) Because the prosecution case thati—

(a) In order to kill the four national lead-
ers in Dhaka Central Jail a killing
squad was formed under the leader-
ship of Risalder Moslemuddin with
Dafader Marfoth Ali and Lance
Dafader Abul Hashem Mridha
amongst others as its members in
pursuance to the said motive;

(b) The information that a squad had
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been sent to kill was communicated
by the accused persons to the Dhaka
Central Jail authority over telephone;
having been proved by evidence of
the witnesses a clear chain of circum-
stances was established to prove the
guilt of the accused persons which
was unfairly and injudiciously disre-
garded by the High Court Division.
V. Because there are serious points of law
involved in this case mostly relating to the
law of evidence which need to be considered
and examined by the highest court of judica-
ture to secure the ends of justice.

154. The learned Attorney-General, Mr
Mahbubey Alam and the learned Senior Counsel
Mr Anisul Huq have made lengthy submissions
before us on behalf of the State-appellant while
Mr Abdullah-Al Mamun, the learned Advocate
appointed by the Court as State Counsel to defend
the accused-respondents has made elaborate sub-
mission on behalf of both the absconding
accused-respondents.

155. The learned Attorney-General has
placed before us the impugned judgment of the
High Court Division, that of the trial court and
also the evidence on record and has argued that in
this case there is abundance of evidence to prove
the charges against the present two accused-

respondents. The learned Attorney-General has |

referred to the relevant portion of the evidence of
PWs 1,2,3,11,13, 16, 17, 18, 21, 26, 28, 29, 33
and 34 and has argued that these evidence, if con-
sidered together, prove sufficiently that these two

accused-respondents Dafader Marfoth Ali Shah |

and LD (Dafader) Md Abul Hashem Mridha were

involved in the killing of four national leaders |

inside the Dhaka Central Jail, but the High Court
Division on misreading and mis-appreciation of
these evidence and without having taken the
attending facts and circumstances into considera-
tion passed the impugned judgment of acquittal
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most erroneously and unjustly. The learned
Counsel has argued that the reasons which the
High Court Division assigned for rejecting the
evidence of above prosecution witnesses and for
not finding the prosecution witnesses trustworthy-
were not cogent at all and, as such, not acceptable.
The learned Counsel has submitted more specifi-
cally that the High Court Division disbelieved the
telephonic conversations between Khandaker
Mustaque Ahmed-the then President and Colonel
Rashid and PW 3 IG (Prisons) Mr Nuruzzaman on
mis-appreciation of evidence of PW 29 Colonel
Shafayeth Jamil and PW 46 Lieutenant Colonel
(Retd.) Anwaruzzaman and thus failed to arrive at
2 correct decision; that the telephonic conversa-
tions between the 1G (Prisons) and the president
Khandaker Mustaque Ahmed and Colonel Rashid
on that fateful night was most vital part of evi-
dence for deciding the guilt of the accused, but the
High Court Division disbelieving the telephonic
conversation has committed serious error in com-
mg to the decision. The learned Counsel has
argued also that the High Court Division discard-
ed the evidence of PWs 1, 2, 3, 11, 13, 16, 17 and
I8 for minor discrepancies and also for the
zbsence of some registers from both the Dhaka
Central Jail and Bangabhaban without consider-
ing at all the fact that the investigation of this case
started long 21 years after the incident of jail
killing and after such a long period it was not pos-
sible on the part of the investigating officer and
the prosecution to get those registers. The learned
Counsel has argued also that the High Court
Division made self contradictions by believing the
evidence of some prosecution witnesses while
affirming the conviction of accused Moslem
Uddin and by disbelieving the same evidence of
the same PWs in acquitting the present accused-
respondents Dafader Marfoth Ali Shah and LD
{Dafader) Md Abul Hashem Mridha. The learned
Arnorney-General has argued that the evidence of
the prosecution witnesses have proved a strong
circumstance which is consistent with the guilt of
the accused-respondents and are wholly inconsis-
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tent with their innocence, but the High Court
Division has totally ignored all the circumstantial
evidence and also the legal aspect relating to cir-
cumstantial evidence and thus illegally acquitted
the accused-respondents.

156. Mr Anisul Hugq, the learned Govern-
ment Chief Prosecutor has made submission on
the charge of criminal conspiracy brought against
all the 20 accused persons in this case. It has
already been mentioned before that the trial court
found this charge of criminal conspiracy under
section 120B of the Penal Code not substantiated
and therefore, acquitted all the 20 accused persons
from that charge, but the Government did not file
any appeal against that order of acquittal of the
accused persons from the charge under section
120B of the Penal Code. Before the High Court
Division also, as it appears, no submission was
made from the State-respondents on this charge of
criminal conspiracy. However, before this
Division the learned Counsel for the State-appel-
lant has made a lengthy submission on the charge
of criminal conspiracy contending that this
Division, exercising its power of doing complete
justice under Article 104 of the Constitution, can
consider now whether the charge of criminal con-
spiracy was proved and if this Division finds that
in this case there are sufficient evidence to prove
the charge of criminal conspiracy then this
Division can pass appropriate order at this stage
also. Both Mr Anisul Huq and the learned
Attorney-General, after making elaborate discus-
sion on evidence on record, have argued that these
evidence have proved sufficiently that there was a
criminal conspiracy to kill the four leaders inside
the jail and that all the 21 charge sheeted accused
persons were involved in that criminal conspiracy,
but the trial court most erroneously found that the
charge of criminal conspiracy was not proved.
The learned Counsel for the State-appellant has
pointed out the relevant portion of evidence of
some PWs before us and argued that there are
overwhelming evidence on record to prove that
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the accused persons made the criminal conspiracy
to kill the four national leaders inside the jail. Mr
Anisul Hugq has contended that in the circum-
stances where there are overwhelming evidence
on record to prove the charge of criminal conspir-
acy for killing the four national leaders inside the
jail this Division-the apex court of the country-
cannot refuse to consider these evidence and to
make a correct decision as regards this charge of
criminal conspiracy-only for the reason that there
was no appeal against the order of acquittal from
this charge of criminal conspiracy-specially in
this very case of gruesome, barbaric and heinous
killing of four national leaders inside the jail. By
citing several decisions of the apex court of this
region Mr Anisul Huq has argued that it is a most
appropriate case where this Division can exercise
its power of doing complete justice by convicting
the accused involved in this criminal conspiracy
and sentencing them appropriately.

157. The learned Attorney-General also has
submitted that this Division in exercising its
power under Article 104 of the Constitution can,
after issuing a notice against the absconding
accused, consider now whether the charge of
criminal conspiracy was proved by the evidence
on record and can pass appropriate order. The
learned Attorney-General has made submission to
the effect also that if this Division is reluctant to
convict the accused persons for the charge of
criminal conspiracy under section 120B of the
Penal Code for the reason that no appeal was filed
against the order of acquittal of the accused from
this charge of criminal conspiracy this Division
can discuss and consider the evidence on record in
support of the charge of criminal conspiracy and
can make correctobservations and findings as to
this charge of criminal conspiracy-at least. The
learned Attorney-General also has made submis-
sion to the effect that considering the very nature
of the offence of gruesome and barbaric killing of
four national leaders inside the jail this Division-
the apex court of the country cannot be reluctant
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to make correct observations and findings as
regards the charge of criminal conspiracy for the
reason only that the State did not file any appeal
against the order of acguittal from the charge o
criminal conspiracy in time.

158. Mr Abdullah-al-Mamun, the learned
State Counsel appointed by the court to defend the
absconding accused-respondents also has made
very lengthy submissions supporting the
impugned judgment of the High Court Division
and also trying to controvert the submissions of
the learned counsel for the State appellant. The
learned state Counsel for the accused respondents
has argued that in this case there is, practically, no
cogent evidence to prove the involvement of the
accused-respondents Dafader Marfoth Ali Shah
and LD (Dafader) Md Abul Hashem Mridha in the
incident of killing of four leaders inside jail and,
as such, the High Court Division rightly acquitted
these two accused-respondents. The learned
Counsel has contended that the evidence pro-
duced by the prosecution before the trial court
were not at all cogent and reliable; that the wit-
nesses whom the prosecution relied on for prov-
ing the charge against the accused-appellants
were not trustworthy at all; that the High Court
Division rightly found that the prosecution wit-
nesses were not trustworthy and their evidence, as
such, could not be relied on. The learned Counsel
for accused-respondents has pointed out that the
trial court also in the first part of its judgment stat-
ed that the PWs on whom the prosecution relied
on to prove the charges against the accused per-
sons, were not trustworthy at all. Mr Abdullah-Al
Mamun has argued much on some alleged dis-
crepant and contradictory statements of the prose-
cution witnesses. He has pointed out some allege
discrepant statements of the prosecution witnes
es from the Dhaka Central Jail as to the colour o
the uniform of the assailants and also as to
weapons the assailants carried and also as to put
ting of their signatures in the jail register an
argued that these discrepant and contradicto
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statements of the PWs reasonably raise suspicion
#bout the trustworthiness of these prosecution
witnesses. The learned Counsel has questioned
also the competency of the prosecution witnesses
who claimed themselves to be the employees of
Bangabhaban at that relevant time pointing out
some alleged discrepancies in the statements of
PWs 11,13, 16, 17, 18, 21 and 34 and also point-
ing out the fact that the prosecution could not
bring any written document to prove that these
PWs were employees of Bangabhaban at that rel-
evant time. The learned Advocate has argued that
these PWs were not at all employees of
Bangabhaban and, as such, are not competent and
reliable at all and their evidence cannot be con-
sidered for proving the charges against the
accused-respondents. The learned Counsel has
argued that the High Court Division duly weighed
and sifted the evidence of prosecution witnesses
and there is no misreading, misquoting and is
interpretation of the evidence on record by the
High Court Division; that the High Court Division
committed no illegality in discarding the evidence
of PWs 1-3and PWs 11, 13, 16, 17, 18 ,21 and 34
as unworthy of credence; The learned Counsel for
the accused-respondents has argued that there is
no cogent evidence at all on record to prove the
presence of these two accused respondents in the
place of occurrence or to prove that these
accused-respondents in any way were involved in
the incident of jail killing of four leaders and in
the circumstances the High Court Division rightly
acquitted these two accused-respondents of the
charges levelled against them.

159. As against the submissions of the
learned Counsel for the State-appellant as to the
charge of criminal conspiracy the learned State
Counsel for the accused respondents has submit-
ted that since the State did not file any appeal
against the order of acquittal of the accused per-
sons from the charge of criminal conspiracy
passed by the trial court and since in this appeal
also no such ground was taken and since in the
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leave granting order also there is nothing as
regards the charge of criminal conspiracy this
Appellate Division now cannot look into this
charge of criminal conspiracy and cannot make
any order as to this charge. The learned Counsel
has argued that the trial court, on elaborate dis-
cussion and consideration of the evidence
adduced by the prosecution, clearly found that the
charge of criminal conspiracy was not proved at
all and accordingly acquitted all the accused per-
sons of the charge under section 120B of the Penal
Code but the State or anybody else did not raise
any question as to these findings and decision of
the trial court regarding the charge of criminal
conspiracy at any stage before and, as such, at this
stage, in the absence of the accused persons, this
Division cannot entertain this plea of the State
appellant that the charge of criminal conspiracy
was proved in this case. Mr Abdullah-al-Mamun
has contended that in the above facts and circum-
stances there is no scope now for this Division to
entertain the argument of the learned Counsel for
the State appellant for making observations and
decisions as to the charge of criminal conspiracy
and for making order convicting and sentencing
the accused persons on this charge of criminal
conspiracy.

160. Before considering the submissions of
the learned Counsel of both the sides we need %
State the material portion of the evidence of some
of the prosecution witnesses. It has already been
mentioned above that in this case the prosecution
has examined as many as 64 witnesses. Out of
these 64 withesses the PWs 1 to 9 and 12 are the
IG(Prisons), DIG (Prisons) (the informant), Jailor,
Deputy Jailors and other the then employees of
Dhaka Central Jail. The PWs 10,19 and 20 are
three detenues who were in Dhaka Central Jail in
that fateful night of killing of four leaders inside
Dhaka Central Jail. The PWs 11, 13, 16, 17, 18, 21
and 34 are the witnesses from Bangabhaban. The
PWs 14,15,30,31,35,36 and 38 are relations of
slain leaders and some are the then state ministers
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and member of Parliament-whose evidence are
not important for this present appeal. The PWs
26,28 and 33 have deposed as regards the fleeing
away of the accused persons abroad on the next
day of jail killing. The evidence of PW 29 Colonel
Shafayet Jamil and PW 46 Colonel Anwar ruzza-
man will have to be discussed and considered as
the High Court Division has relied on the evi-
dence of these witnesses for disbelieving the cred-
ibility of other prosecution witnesses. The rest of
the witnesses are mainly police and formal wit-
nesses-the evidence of whom are not required to
be stated in this judgment. So, in this judgment we
shall discuss the relevant portion of the evidence
of PWs 1 t0 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20,
21, 26, 28, 33, 34 and PWs 29 and 46 only.

161. PW 1, Kazi Abdul Awal-the informant
of this case has deposed before court to the effect
that he has retired from service as IG (Prisons)
and that in November, 1975 he was posted at
Dhaka Central Jail as Deputy Inspector General of
Prisons. That in the night following 2nd
November, 1975, at dawn of 3rd November he
came to jail gate by the car of IG (Prisons) Mr
Nuruzzaman Howlader. That after arriving at jail
while he was sitting with IG (Prisons), IG
(Prisons) received several telephone calls and
talked over telephone. That thereafter Captain
Muslem Uddin with other four sepoys came to jail
gate and after writing their names in the jail gate
as per his asking they entered inside the jail and
asked who Mr Nuruzzaman was. Mr Nuruzzaman
disclosed his identity and then those army person-
nel asked Mr Nuruzzaman whether those persons-
who were told to be kept segregated-had been
segregated or not. Mr Nuruzzaman enquired them
for what purpose those persons were to be segre-
gated and those army personnel told that they
would be shot to death. Mr Nuruzzaman then told
that he would talk to President over telephone and
accordingly a telephone call was made fo
President from the office of DIG (Prisons). After
a while another telephone call came from
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President Khandaker Mustaque Ahmed to the
office of jailor for Mr Nuruzzaman and Mr
Nuruzzaman then went to that office room of the
Jailor and received that phone call and talked to
President over telephone and thereafter, on his
asking Mr Nuruzzaman told him that the
President directed him to allow those army per-
sonnel to do what they wanted to do. That there-
after the 2nd gate of the jail was opened and those
army personnel went inside the jail and Mr
Nuruzzaman and he himself (the witness) also
went inside the jail with those army personnel.
That those army personnel at that time enquired
why so much time was being taken and told also
that they finished within three minutes at the
house of Sheikh Mujib. That at that time he (the
witness) wanted to come out of the jail, but Mr
Nuruzzaman prevented him from coming back.
That at that time deputy jailor, Habilder and some
wardens informed that those persons were kept
aside and then Muslem Uddin and his four accom-
plices went to that place where those four nation-
al leaders were kept. Thereafter they heard the
sounds of firing and then Muslem Uddin and his
other accomplices hurriedly went out of the jail.
The witness then went to his office and after offer-
ing Fajar prayer he heard that some other army
personnel also came to see whether those four
leaders were alive still then and seeing 2 of them
alive they caused their death by Bayonet charges.
That he (the witness) being bewildered could not
decide what to do and he and the IG (Prisons) then
went away from the jail and subsequently at about
8/9 AM they again came back to jail and after con-
sultation with each other he talked to Major Abdur
Rashid over telephone who told him not to move
the dead bodies of those four slain national lead-
ers which remained lying there. Thereafter at
noon, on that day, he and 1G (Prisons) went to
Home Secretary and told him about the incident
but Home Secretary also could not give any
advice. But on the next date Home Secretary told
them to hand over those dead bodies to their
respective relatives after concluding post mortem
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sxamination of those. Thereafter the Home
Secretary himself contacted with the Deputy
Cammissioner, Civil Surgeon and others and all
af Sem extended all co-operations and the dead
Socies were then handed over to their relatives
afer postmortem examinations. That Syed Nazrul
Isiam. Captain Mansur Ali, Tajuddin Ahmed and
AMM Kamruzzaman were those four national
seaders who were killed inside the jail in that fate-
find might.

162. PW 1 deposed further to the effect that
om e next date, on 4th November, he lodged the
#har with Lalbagh Police Station. That he sent the
copees of that ejhar to different places one of
whuch was kept in the jail. This witness has iden-
25ed the copy of that ejhar kept in the jail which
was marked as Exhibit-1 and his signature there-
om was marked as Exhibit-1/1 as per his identifi-
ceton. This witness deposed also that on the next
fased on 5-11-1975 he submitted a detailed report
% G (Prisons) about that occurrence and as per
sdentification of the witness the said report has
Deen marked as Exhibit-2 and his signature there-
om @ Exhibit-2/1. This witness has identified
mmother copy of the FIR which was kept in the
pudicial record of the case and that copy has been
marked as Exhibit-3.

163. This witness has been cross-examined
a length on behalf of the accused persons, but
from the very lengthy cross-examination of this
wimmess nothing material came out to raise any
suspicion as to the truth of what he stated in his
examination-in-chief about the killing of four
mational leaders inside Dhaka Central Jail in the
might following 2nd November, 1975, at dawn of
3rd November, 1975 by some army personnel
mcluding accused Resalder Moslem Uddin.

164. PW 2 is Md Aminur Rahman. This wit-
mess has deposed to the effect that he has retired
from service as DIG (Prisons). He was posted at
Dhaka Central Jail as jailor from 2nd February,
1975 to 10th January, 1976. That in the later part
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of August 1975 four leaders of Awami League
namely, Syed Nazrul Islam, Captain Mansur Ali,
Tajuddin Ahmed and AHM Kamruzzaman along
with some other leaders and workers of Awami
League were sent to Dhaka Central Jail by the
then Government. They were under detention
order of the Government. That Major Dalim,
Major Rashid, Major Shahriar and Major Faruque
on behalf of the then President Khandaker
Mustaque Ahmed used to take information of
those arrested political leaders very often from
Bangabhaban. That in the afternoon of 2nd
November, 1975 while he was working in his
office room Major Dalim with arms came to jail
and threatened him and compelled him to allow
him to enter inside the jail. That Major Dalim
wanted to see the Awami League leaders who
were confined in the jail at that time and he then
took Major Dalim to cell No.15 and Major Dalim
visited that place. That during that visit, at one
stage, Major Dalim met the former police super of
Dhaka District Mr Shahabuddin and talked to him
and thereafter he went out of the jail. That on that
very date, in the night, Major Faruque from
Bangabhaban telephoned him to know about the
Awami League leaders who were inside the jail.
That thereafter at dawn of 3rd November at about
3 AM the jail guard informed him over telephone
that the IG (Prisons) asked him to come to jail
gate immediately and also ordered for strengthen-
ing the security of the jail. That he then hurriedly
came to jail gate at about 3-15 AM and knew from
the jail guard that the 1G (Prisons) had already
arrived at jail gate. He then went to jail gate and
received IG (Prisons) and took him to the office
room of DIG (Prisons). That IG (Prisons) at that
time informed him that he received a telephone
call from Bangabhaban that some miscreants from
outside might take away some prisoners from the
jail forcibly. The 1G (Prisons) told the witness to
make all the officers and employees of the jail
alert and told also that the DIG (Prisons) Kazi
Abdul Awal had already been informed who
would come to the jail gate within a while. That
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the DIG (Prisons) Kazi Abdul Awal then arrived at
jail gate and went to his office room where IG
(Prisons) also was sitting; that as per instruction
of IG (Prisons) the witness made all the officers
and employees of the jail alert by ringing alarm
bell and then Deputy Jailors Abdul Zahid, Md
Tayeb Ali Mollah, Md Abdur Rouf, Md
Amanullah and Md Igbal Hossain came to jail
gate. Dr Rafiq Ahmed, the Assistant Surgeon of
Dhaka Central Jail along with two other doctors
also came to jail gate. Some other employees and
guards also came to jail gate. That at that time the
IG (Prisons) received telephone call from
Bangabhaban. IG (Prisons), after receiving that
telephone call, told them that one Captain Moslem
along with other army personnel would come to
jail gate and instructed them to take those army
personnel to the office room of DIG (Prisons).
That thereafter at about 4-00 AM Captain Moslem
along with four other armed army personnel came
to jail gate and the witness received them at jail
gate and took the signatures of all those army per-
sonnel in the gate register and thereafter took
them to office room of the DIG (Prisons) where
IG (Prisons) was sitting. That at that time IG
(Prisons) was talking over telephone. The witness
then went to his own office room and at that time
he received a telephone call from Major Rashid
from Bangabhaban who wanted 1G (Prisons) to
talk and he then informed the IG (Prisons) about
that telephone call and 1G (Prisons) came to his
room and received that telephone call. 1G
(Prisons) wanted to talk to President Khandaker
Mustaque Ahmed over telephone and talked to
President also addressing him “Sir”. After that
telephone call 1G (Prisons) told them that
President Khandaker Mustaque Ahmed directed
him to do as per instructions of those army per-
sonnel. That at that time Captain Muslem threat-
ened IG (Prisons) and DIG (Prisons) and ordered
them to go inside the jail and accordingly they all
went inside the jail. That Captain Muslem and the
other four army personnel were wearing “khaki”
and biack uniforms and none of them had any
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batch on their shoulders. That entering inside the:
jail Captain Muslem ordered to bring four Awami
League leaders Syed Nazrul Islam, Captain
Mansur Ali, Tajuddin Ahmed and AHM
Kamruzzaman in one room and accordingly IG
(Prisons) instructed him (the witness) to bring all
those four leaders in one room. Thereafter he (wit-
ness) with the help of other jail employees
brought all those four leaders from different
rooms to the room No.1 to the east of cell No.15
and then informed the IG (Prisons) about the seg-
regation of those leaders and hearing that news
Captain Muslem and the other army personnel
went to that room No.1 hurriedly and murdered all
those four leaders Syed Nazrul Islam, Captain
Mansur Ali, Tajuddin Ahmed and AHM
Kamruzzaman by firing indiscriminately and
thereafter ran away to jail gate and then went out
of the jail. This witness deposed further to the
effect that after a while when he was preparing for
Fazar prayer one jail guard informed him that four
other armed army personnel came to jail gate. He
then went to jail gate and those army personnel
ordered him to take them inside the jail to see
whether those leaders died or not. That out of fear
the guard opened the jail gate and those army per-
sonnel went to the place of occurrence and struck
the dead bodies with bayonet in presence of him
(witness) and other employees and thereafter
those army personnel ran away from the jail. This
witness deposed also that this incident of jail
killing was written in the report book of the jail on
3-11-1975. That on 3-11-1975 at about 11 AM he
(the witness) himself along with Subader Abdul
Wahid Mridha went to room No. 1 where dead
bodies of four leaders were lying and they then
kept all those dead bodies facing north with the
help of other jail employees and kept the wrist
watches, rings, handkerchiefs of slain leaders in
his office room. That on 4-11-1975, after lodging
of the FIR by DIG (Prisons) Kazi Abdul Awal, 2
magistrates went to the jail at evening time and
held inquest of the dead bodies and thereafter in
the night of 4-11-1975 the postmortem examina-
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tions also of those four dead bodies were held by
civil surgeon, Dhaka along with other doctors.
Thereafter on 5-11-1975 the dead bodies were
handed over to their respective relatives as per
instruction of the Government.

165. This PW 2 also was cross-examined at
length by the learned advocates of the accused
persons, but from the lengthy cross-examination
of this witness also nothing came out to make the
above evidence of this witness unbelievable or
false.

166. PW 3, ATM Nuruzzaman has deposed
0 the effect that on 3-11-1975 he was posted at
Dhaka as IG (Prisons). That after the murder of
Bangabandhu and his other relations in 1975
some political leaders were kept detained inside
the Dhaka Central Jail and during that period
Major Farooque, Major Rashid, Major Dalim,
Major Shahriar, on behalf of the then President
i handaker Mustaque Ahmed, used to take infor-
mation about those detained political leaders from
Bangabhaban. That in the night following 2nd
November, 1975 at about 3 AM he received a tele-
phone call from Major Rashid from Bangabhaban
who wanted to know from him whether there was
any problem with Dhaka Central Jail and also
mformed him that they had information that some
armed miscreants might take away some prisoners
forcibly showing arms and also asked him to
make the jail alert immediately. That the witness
then telephoned to the jail gate and informed the
warden on duty about that telephone call and told
him also to inform that to the jailor immediately.
That 3/4 minutes later he received another tele-
phone call from another army personnel from
Bangabhaban who enquired as to whether he
made the Dhaka Central Jail alert about security
and told him also to go to the jail to see its securi-
ty; that he then informed the DIG (Prisons) Kazi
Abdul Awal about that telephonic massages and
asked him to go to jail gate immediately.
Thereafter he went to Dhaka Central Jail and saw
that jailor Aminur Rahman also reached there who
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told him that he had already made all alert about
security of the jail. In the meantime DIG (Prisons)
Kazi Abul Awal also reached there. That he (the
witness), DIG (Prisons) Kazi Abdul Awal and
jailor Aminur Rahman then went to the office
room of DIG (Prisons) where he told them about
the massages he received from Bangabhaban over
telephone. That in the meantime telephone call
from Bangabhaban again came and Major Rashid
informed him over telephone that one Captain
Muslem would go to Central Jail and he would
talk to him and asked him also to allow Captain
Muslem to talk to Syed Nazrul Islam, Captain
Mansur Ali, Tajuddin Ahmed and AHM
Kamruzzaman. He (the witness) then wanted to
talk to President Khandaker Mustaque Ahmed and
Major Rashid then gave the telephone to President
Khandaker Mustaque Ahmed and President
Khandaker Mustaque Ahmed told him to do what
Major Rashid asked him to do. That thereafter
Captain Muslem reached the office of DIG and
enquired about him and getting his identity
Captain Muslem asked whether the persons-the
names of whom were supplied from
Bangabhaban-had been kept aside. That on his
asking Captain Muslem told that he would shoot
them. That he, (the witness), DIG (Prisons) Kazi
Abdul Awal and jailor Aminur Rahman got puz-
zled and nervous. DIG (Prisons) Kazi Abdul Awal
started trying to contact President Khandaker
Mustaque Ahmed over telephone, but in the
meantime someone informed the witness that
Major Rashid had telephoned in the telephone of
the room of jailor and wanted to talk with
IG(Prisons) and the witness then went to the
office room of jailor and Captain Muslem and his
other four armed companions also went to that
room of the jailor. That Major Rashid from
Bangabhaban asked him (the witness) over tele-
phone whether Captain Muslem reached at jail
and he then told Major Rashid that he could not
understand what Captain Muslem was telling and
he wanted to talk to President and Major Rashid
then gave the receiver to President Khandaker
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Mustaque Ahmed and he then told President
Khandaker - Mustaque Ahmed that Captain
Muslem was telling that he would kill Syed
Nazrul Islam, Captain Mansur Ali, Tajuddin
Ahmed and AHM Kamruzzaman by shooting.
That in reply President Khandaker Mustaque
Ahmed told him that what Muslem Uddin told
would have to be done. That the witness then told
DIG (Prisons) and jailor Aminur Rahman what
President told. That all of them then got puzzled
and bewildered and could not understand what
had to be done. That in the meantime Captain
Muslem and his other companions cordoned them
and ordered them to take them where those per-
sons were kept. That Captain Muslem and his four
companions were then taken to the place where
those four leaders were kept. That he (the witness)
heard Captain Muslem shouting and saying
“hurry up.” That the jailor then, at gun point,
brought those four leaders to one room and the
witness then heard the firing sounds and also
sound of crying. That Captain Muslem and his
other companions had sten gun, SLR etc. with
them. That after firing, Captain Muslem and his
four companions went away to jail gate hurriedly
without telling anything to the witness or others.
He (the witness) and DIG (Prisons) then went to
the office room of DIG (Prisons) and stayed there
bewildered, speechless for about one hour. That in
the meantime one of the jail staff came to them
and informed them that one Nayak A Ali by name
with 4/5 other armed personnel went to the place
inside the jail where four leaders were shot and
struck four leaders with bayonet and thereafter
left the jail. He (the witness) thereafter, with the
help of one prison warden, went to his govern-
ment quarter.

167. This witness further deposed to the
effect that subsequently he went to his office and
discussed the incident with DIG (Prisons) Kazi
Abdul Awal and also talked to Major Rashid over
telephone. At about 10-30 AM he along with DIG
(Prisons) Kazi Abdul Awal went to the Home
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Ministry and met Home Secretary and informed
him about the incident in detail. On 5-11-1975 he
submitted a written report about the incident to
Home Secretary. On04-11-1975 he, on consulta-
tion with DIG (Prisons) Kazi Abdul Awal, decid-
ed to file a case and asked DIG (Prisons) to lodge
ejahar with Lalbagh PS and accordingly on 4-11-
1975 DIG (Prisons) lodged ejahar with Lalbagh
PS. This witness deposed further to the effect that
on 5-11-1975 Brigadier Khaled Mosharaff called
him and DIG (Prisons) at Bangabhaban and
accordingly he and DIG (Prisons) went to
Bangabhaban at 10-00 PM at night on that very
date and they narrated the occurrence to Khaled
Mosharaff and also the Air force Chief and Navel
Chief and two other Colonels. Those army per-
sonnel asked them to submit written reports about
that incident and they submitted written reports
accordingly. Those army personnel recorded their
oral version about that incident also. As per iden-
tification of this witness the written report which
this witness submitted to the Home Secretary on
5-11-1975 has been marked as Exhibit-6 and his
signature thereon as Exhibit-6/1.

168. This PW 3-the then IG (Prisons) also
has been cross-examined at length on behalf of
the accused persons. But from the lengthy cross-
examination of this witness also nothing material
came out to raise any suspicion about the truth of
the evidence of this witness.

169. PWs 4, 5, 6, 9 and 12 were jail guards
while PWs 7 and 8 were Deputy Jailors of Dhaka
Central Jail at that relevant time of jail killing. All
these witnesses also have deposed stating the inci-
dent of jail killing corroborating the evidence of
PWs 1, 2 and 3. PW 4, Mahabbat Ali has deposed
to the effect that in the night following 2nd
November, 1975 he was on duty as jail guard in
the jail gate of Dhaka Central Jail from 3-00 AM
to 6-00 AM, That at about 3-00 AM jailer Aminur
Rahman came out of his government residence
within jail premises and told them that IG
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‘Prisons) and DIG (Prisons) also were coming to
j2il and subsequently IG (Prisons) also came to
sail. That jailor Aminur Rahman told him that 4/5
armed army personnel would come to jail from
Sangabhaban and ordered him to open the jail
22t when they came. That sometime after that S
&med army personnel wearing black uniforms
=ame to jail gate and asked to open the gate and he
“en opened the gate as per order of jailor. That
Hose army personnel had Sten gun, Chinese rifles
= their hands. That subsequently he as per order
2 the jailor opened the 2nd gate also of the Jail
22 1G (Prisons), DIG (Prisons) and jailer Aminur
#zhman with those armed army personnel entered
mside the jail and after a while thereafter they
seard sounds of firing and then those armed army
sersonnel went away from jail hurriedly; that he
“en came to know that four Awami League lead-
=s Syed Nazrul Islam, Captain Mansur Ali,
“ziuddin Ahmed and AHM Kamruzzaman died.
That sometimes after this occurrence four other
#ersons wearing black uniforms came to jail gate
and asked for opening the gate and the witness
“en with the permission of jailor Aminur Rahman
opened the gate and those persons entered inside
%¢ jail and 5/7 minutes thereafter they came out
of jail and ran away from the jail. That at that time
% informed jailor Aminur Rahman that the names
of the persons who entered inside the jail were not
written and jailor shaheb then told him to write
the names of Captain Muslem in the register and
e accordingly wrote the name of Captain
Muslem in the register of the jail gate. As per
identification of this witness the said register of
the jail gate has been marked as Exhibit-7.

170. The PW 5, Alauddin Sikder deposed to
the effect that on 3rd November, 1975 from 2-00
AM to 4-00 AM he was on duty in the main gate
of Central Jail as gate sentry and at about 3-00
AM IG(Prisons) Mr Nuruzzaman, DIG (Prisons)
Kazi Abdul Awal and jailor Aminur Rahman came
to main gate of the jail and then went to the office
and sometimes thereafter five army personnel
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wearing khaki and black uniforms came to the jail
gate by jeep and they entered inside the jail. That
in the meantime since his duty period was over he
was handing over the charge to the sentry Kazi
Abdul Alim and at that time they heard firing
sounds from inside the jail; within a short time
thereafter those armed army personnel came out
from inside the jail and left the jail through main
gate. That he then came to know that those armed
army personnel murdered four Awami League
leaders Syed Nazrul Islam, Captain Mansur Ali,
Tajuddin Ahmed and AHM Kamruzzaman by fir-
ing. That subsequently he knew also from
Habilder Nayeb Ali that other four armed army
personnel came to jail and caused the death of
those four leaders by bayonet charges. That he
also knew from other officers that one army offi-
cer Captain Muslem by name with his other army
companions committed that killing.

171. PW 6 Md Ismail Hossain deposed to
the effect that on 2nd November, 1975 he was
posted at Dhaka Central Jail as jail guard. On that
day he was on duty from 6-00 AM to 12-00 PM in
the main gate of the jail and subsequently he again
was on duty in the main gate from 9-00 PM to 11-
00 PM on the same date and after the duty hour he
went back to his house and fall asleep. At about
4/4.15 AM in that very night following 2nd
November, he heard ringing sound of alarm bell
from Dhaka Central Jail and he then hurriedly
came to the main gate of Dhaka Central Jail and
knew from jail guard Mahabbat Ali that 5 armed
army personnel from Bangabhaban came to jail
and entering inside the jail murdered Syed Nazrul
Islam, Captain Mansur Ali, Tajuddin Ahmed and
AHM Kamruzzaman by firing shots and then left
the jail. That thereafter at about 4-30/4-45 AM
while he was still at jail gate four other army per-
sonnel wearing khaki uniforms came to the jail
gate and one of them put his signature in the In-
Out Register as K Ali and thereafter those four
army personnel went inside the jail and made
bayonet charges on those four leaders and there-
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after went away. That he knew also that one of the
five army personnel who came to the jail was
Captain Muslem Uddin. This witness deposed
also that on 4th November in the evening while he
was on duty at jail the dead bodies of three lead-
ers were handed over to their respective relatives
and the dead body of Kamruzzaman was handed
over to his relative on 5th November, in the morn-
ing. This witness has identified the gate register of
the Dhaka Central Jail which has been marked as
Exhibit-8. On the identification of this witness the
signatures of “K. Ali” appeared at pages-144 and
145 of this register have been marked as Exhibits-
8/1 and 8/2. From the cross-examination of this
witness also nothing material came out to make
the evidence of this witness unbelievable.

172. PW 7 Md Abdur Rouf was posted as
Dhaka Central Jail from April 1973 to September
1976 as Deputy Jailor. This witness deposed to the
effect that in the night following 2nd November
1975 at about 3-00 AM one jail guard came to his
government residence and awoke him from sleep
and told him that IG (Prisons) Nuruzzaman
Howlader, DIG (Prisons) Kazi Abdul Awal and
Jailor Aminur Rahman had come to jail and they
told him and other Deputy Jailors to go to jail
gate. He then hurriedly came to the jail gate and
on his asking one of the jail guard on duty told
him that 1G (Prisons), DIG (Prisons), Jailor and
some army personnel wearing khaki uniforms
were sitting in the office room of DIG (Prisons).
He then went to the office room of Deputy Jailor
and saw there Deputy Jailor Abdul Zahid, Tayeb
Ali Mollah, Amanullah Sarker and Igbal Hossain
sitting. 5/10 minutes thereafter one jail guard told
them that IG (Prisons), DIG (Prisons) and Jailor
with those persons wearing khaki uniforms went
inside the jail and they asked them also to go
inside the jail. That they-the 5 Deputy Jailors also
then went inside the Central Jail. That entering
new jail they saw the other officers there. 2/3 min-
utes thereafter they heard firing sounds from the
room where Syed Nazrul Islam, Captain Mansur
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Ali, Tajuddin Ahmed and AKM Kamruzzaman
were kept. Sometimes thereafter they saw 4 per-
sons wearing khaki uniforms came out of that
room and running away towards the jail gate and
thereafter they left. That on the next morning at
about 8-00 AM while he came to office he knew
from his colleagues that those 4 leaders were shot
dead. That on 4-11-1975 in the evening time he
heard from the Jailor and Deputy Jailors that
Captain Muslem Uddin along with four other
army personnel, at the instruction from Banga-
bhaban, came to the jail in the night following 2-
11-1975. From the cross-examination of this wit-
ness also nothing material came out.

173. PW 8 Md Abdul Zahir-another the then
Deputy Jailor of Dhaka Central Jail has deposed
to the effect that he was posted at Dhaka Central
Jail as Deputy Jailor from 1974 to 1977. That on
2nd November, 1975 in evening he went back to
his residence from the jail. At about 4-00 AM in
that night jail guard awoke him from sleep and
told him that IG (Prisons), DIG (Prisons) and
Jailor were at office and they told him to go there.
That at that time he heard also alarm sound from
the jail. He then came to the jail and was informed
by the orderly of DIG that 1G(Prisons) and DIG
(Prisons) were talking with some army personnel
in the office room of DIG He then went to his
office and saw there some of his colleagues sit-
ting. That 15/20 minutes thereafter one jail guard
informed him that jailor shaheb was sitting in his
office room. He then went to the office room of
jailor and jailor informed him that 5 army person-
nel came and they wid IG (Prisons) and DIG
(Prisons) that they would talk with some prison-
ers. That 15/20 Minutes thereafter they were
informed by one jail guard that those 5 army per-
sonnel along with IG (Prisons), DIG (Prisons) and
Jailor went inside the jail. That he along with his
other colleagues alse then entered inside the jail
and saw that these 3 asmy personnel with IG
(Prisons), DIG (Prisoms) and Jailor were going to
new jail. He followed them. As soon as he reached
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the gate of the new jail area he heard sounds of fir-
mg from Division-I of new jail and after a little
tme those 5 army personnel came out of the new
sl and went out of the jail. That he then went to
e office room of the jailor and wanted to know
what happened and the jailor told him that Syed
Wazrul Islam, Captain Mansur Ali, Tajuddin
Ahmed and AHM Kamruzzaman were shot dead.
#e then came back to this office and sometimes
s he again went to the office room of the jailor
who mformed him then that four other army per-
sommel also came to the jail and went inside the
il 0 be sure about death of those four leaders
amd thereafter they went away. That at that time
Jmilior shaheb informed him also that 1G (Prisons)
e talked with President Mustaque Ahmed and
uher senior army officers over telephone several
tmes. That he stayed at jail upto 7-00 AM and
Mherzafier came back to his house. That subse-
puentdy he came to his office and knew from jailor
et the dead bodies of those four leaders were
sl lying in that condition. At about 4-00 PM the
mouest and postmortem examination of those four
fend bodies were held inside the jail. On 5-11-
W75 the dead bodies of those 4 leaders were
Smmded over to their relatives.

174. PW 9 Md Nayeb Ali was the chief jail
guard of Dhaka Central Jail at that relevant time.
Thes witness deposed to the effect that in the night
Sallowing 2-11-1975 from 3-00 AM to 6-00 AM
% was on duty at Dhaka Central Jail. That 4/5
other sepoys also were on duty along with him
@uring that time. That while they were deputed on
duty after signing in the duty book they heard
alarm bell ringing and he then made all the sepoys
on duty alert. That at that time he saw IG, DIG,
Jailor, Deputy Jailors and four other armed per-
sons wearing black and khaki uniforms entering
inside the new jail. That jailor shaheb at that time
asked him to open ward No.1 but he told that he
had 200/300 keys with him and did not know
which was the right one. That “subader shaheb”
then took the bag containing those keys from him
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and opened the ward No.l as per instruction of
jailor shaheb. At that time Syed Nazrul Islam and
Tajuddin Ahmed were in that ward No.l. As per
direction of jailor shaheb, “subader shaheb”
brought Kamruzzaman shaheb from ward No.2
and Mansur shaheb from ward No.3 to that ward
No.l and made them all sit in one cot where Syed
Nazrul Islam used to sleep. That as soon as all
those 4 leaders sat on that cot the armed personnel
opened brush fire on them and thereafter they left
the jail. That seeing that scene of brush firing and
blood he went to the verandah of the new jail and
remained sitting there. That a few minutes there-
after “subader shaheb” came to room No.l and
stayed there 1/2/1 minute and thereafter went
away. 10/15 minutes thereafter 4 other army per-
sonnel with bayonets came to the new jail and
entered inside the room No.l and started striking
those 4 leaders with bayonets and thereafter they
left that place.

175. The PW 10 Abdus Samad Azad was in
Dhaka Central Jail as a detenue in that fateful
night. This witness has deposed to the effect that
in 1971, after formation of Mujibnagar
Government, he worked as a moving Ambassador
with the rank and status of a Minister and also as
Advisor to Mujibnagar Government.

176. That before declaration of Mujibnagar
Government there were difference of opinion
between Syed Nazrul Islam, Captain Mansur Alj,
Tajuddin Ahmed and Kamruzzaman and Khan-
daker Mustaque Ahmed, Mahbub Alam Chashi
and Taher Uddin Thakur. That in 1973 he was in
charge of Ministry of Agriculture as Minister.
After the incident of 15th August, 1975 he was
confined in house arrest. On August 23, 1975 he
along with those 4 leaders was brought to police
control room where they found Major Rashid with
movie camera. That Major Rashid told them that
they would be put to firing squad. Thereafter at
about 12-30 AM they were shifted to Dhaka
Central Jail. At that time Aminur Rahman was the
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jailor and MA Awal was the DIG (Prisons). That
he was shifted to new jail cell in room No.1. Syed
Nazrul Islam, Tajuddin Ahmed, Korban Ali,
Sheikh Abdul Aziz along with 4 others were con-
fined in room No. 2. Secretary Asaduzzaman,
Mofazzal Hossain Maya, Kamruzzaman and oth-
ers were also confined in room No. 2. He himself,
Captain M. Mansur Ali, Amir Hossain Amu, Syed
Hossain, Abdul Quddus Makhan and others were
kept in room No.3 of new cell. That on
November-1, 1975 they heard from the jail people
that some of them would be released and some
would be transferred elsewhere. In the morning of
2nd November the jail authority informed them
that after evening, on that day, some army officer
would come to jail and would visit the place
where they were kept and actually in that evening
they saw some army officers visiting the jail. In
the later part of the night following 2nd
November at about 3-00/4-00 AM the alarm (=fi*rel
9%1) rang and thereafter they saw the IG (Prisons),
DIG (Prisons) and Jailor with some Military
Officers. That the jail authority took Captain
Monsur Ali from room No.3 to room No.2 and
Sheikh Abdul Aziz from room No.1 to room No.3
and thereafter they heard sounds of brush firing,
In the morning, at the time of serving breakfast,
the sepoys informed them that the army personnel
killed the four leaders Syed Nazrul Islam, Captain
Mansur Ali, Tajuddin Ahmed and Kamruzzaman
inside the room No.1 by brush firing. That on 3rd
November, 1975 they were under lock-up the
whole day and night. That they were not allowed
to see the dead bodies of four leaders. The dead
bodies of four leaders were lying inside the jail the
whole day of 4th November.

177. From the cross-examination of this wit-
ness also nothing material came out. The PW 11
Mokhlesur Rahman Bhuiyan is the Personal
Assistant to Joint Secretary (Admn) of the
Ministry of Chittagong Hill Tract Affairs. This
witness deposed to the effect that in 1972, he was
appointed as typist in the President Secretariat. In
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1975 he was posted as P/A of the Military
Secretary to the President namely Brigadier
Masrurul Haque. That on 15th August, 1975 at
about 3-00 PM entering Bangabhaban he found
Khandaker Mustaque Ahmed as President. At that
time he saw Taher Uddin Thakur, AKM Obaidur
Rahman, Shah Moazzaman Hossain, Mahbub
Alam Chasi, Major Farooque, Major Rashid,
Major Dalim, Major Bazlul Huda, Major Noor,
Major Aziz Pasha, Major Rashed Chowdhury,
Major Shahriar, Resalder Moslem and some oth-
ers present at Bangabhaban; since then those army
officers had been living in Bangabhaban. That on
November 2nd, 1975 at about 7-30 PM he was
brought to the 1st floor of Bangabhaban by
Captain Muslem Uddin. He saw Major Farooque,
Major Rashid, Major Dalim, Major Noor, Major
Bazlul Huda, Major Aziz Pasha, Major Mohi-
uddin, Major Sharful Hossain, Captain Mazed,
Captain Khairuzzaman, Lieutenant Kismat,
Lieutenant Nazmul, Dafader Marfat Ali, Office
Assistant Abul Hashem Mridha, Major Shahriar
and many others in that room. That they were
talking about Syed Nazrul Islam, Captain Mansur
Ali, Tajuddin Ahmed and Kamruzzaman who
were confined in Dhaka Central Jail at that time;
that Major Dalim and Major Rashid enquired him
whether he had any telephone number of Dhaka
Central Jail and he replied that he had. That he
was then asked to supply the telephone numbers
of both residence and office of IG (Prison), DIG
(Prison) and Jailor of Dhaka Central Jail quickly
and accordingly he supplied those telephone num-
bers to Major Shahriar. That at that time he heard
discussion about Dhaka Central Jail in that room
and also heard to tell that the task of Dhaka
Central Jail would have to be completed within
that very night; that he also heard Major Farooque
talk over telephone to Dhaka Central Jail, that
Major Farooque was asking where the detenues
were kept inside the jail. At that time Major
Shahriar told him to go back to his office room
and also told not to leave the office without their
permission. He then came to his office. Thereafter
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& zbout 9-00 PM in that very night the Military
Secretary to President called him to his office
meom. Reaching that office room of the Military
Secretary to the President he saw there Taher
L&din Thakur, AKM Obaidur Rahman, Shah
Mzzzzem and Nurul Islam Mansur sitting. That
Wereafier the Military Secretary talked to
Fresident over telephone and then told those four
persons to go to the bed room of the President.
et at about 11-00 PM in that very night he went
#way 0 his quarter within Bangabhaban. On 3rd
Mawember, 1975 he heard that Syed Nazrul Islam,
LCapeain Mansur Ali, Tajuddin Ahmed and
Kamruzzaman were killed inside the Dhaka
Ceneral Jail. Thereafter in the night of that very
@@y the army officers who were residing at
Samgabhaban went away abroad.

178. This PW 11 was cross-examined on
Sehalf of almost all the accused persons exten-
snely. From the side of the accused persons
mepeated suggestions were put to this witness to
Whe effect that in that night following 2nd
Meowember, 1975 after 6-00 PM he was not at all
geesent in Bangabhaban and that he was not at all
asked by any of the accused persons to supply the
ephone numbers of the IG (Prisons), DIG
‘#msons) and jailor since there was separate sec-
sen with sufficient employees including several
ilephone operators who used to deal with the
iephone numbers etc. However this PW 11, in
oowrse of cross-examination, has stated that he
was posted in Bangabhaban from 1972-1998 and
@t though his office hours usually was upto 6-00
M. he had to stay in Bangabhaban long after that
ume also when required. In course of cross-exam-
mation this witness has stated also that Resalder
Muslem was not staff of Bangabhaban. This wit-
ness denied the defence suggestion that that he did
not know Resalder Muslem Uddin, Dafader
Marfoth Ali Shah and LD (Dafader) Md Abul
Hashem Mridha since before and that he did not
see those accused persons in Bangabhaban in the
night following 2nd November, 1975.
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179. The PW 12 Kazi Abdul Alim was
another jail guard of Dhaka Central Jail at that rel-
evant time of occurrence. This witness also has
deposed to the effect that on 2nd November, 1975
from 4-00 PM to 6-00 PM he was on duty at the
outer gate of Dhaka Central Jail and after com-
pletion of his duty he went back to the barrack.
That he was scheduled to resume his duty at 4-00
AM of 3rd November, 1975, but before that at
about 3-00 AM he heard alarm bell (#f1== 951)
from the jail and then rushed to the jail gate and
saw there IG (Prisons) Mr Nuruzzaman, DIG
(Prisons) Kazi Abdul Awal and Jailor Aminur
Rahman and other officers. Jailor Aminur
Rahman instructed him to inform them immedi-
ately if any outsider came. After a while five army
personnel wearing black khaki uniform came to -
jail gate by a open jeep and being informed about
that the 1G (Prisons), DIG (Prisons) and Jailor
ordered to open the gate and those five army per-
sonnel entered inside the jail. Sometimes after that
they heard firing sounds from inside the jail and
subsequently those army personnel went away
from the jail. That sometimes after that four other
armed army personnel came to the jail and entered
inside the jail and later they came out of the jail
and went away; that he then heard that four
Awami League leaders Syed Nazrul Islam,
Tajuddin Ahmed, Captain Mansur Ali and
Kamruzzaman were killed.

180. From the cross-examination of this PW
12 also nothing material came out in favour of the |
defence.

181. The PW 13 Md Shawkat Hossain
deposed to the effect that he was appointed as
“Khedmatgar” in the Ganabhaban in 1973 and
after 15th August, 1975 after the killing of
Bangabandhu Sheikh Mujibur Rahman and his
other family members he along with some others
were transferred to Bangabhaban. That on 20th
August 1975 he and other “khedmatgar” Manik
were engaged on duty of the president Khandaker
Mustaque Ahmed. That during his such duty he
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knew Major Rashid, Major Farooque Rahman,
Major Shahriar, Major Dalim, Major Noor, Major
Bazlul Huda, Major Mohiuddin, Major Sharful,
Major Rashed Chowdhury, Captain Mazed,
Captain Muslem Uddin, Dafader Marfat Ali, LD
Abul Hashem Mridha: That during his duty in
Bangabhaban he knew Taher Uddin Thakur and
Mahbub Alam Chashi also.

182. That on 2nd November 1975 at 2-00
P.M he went to Bangabhaban for performing his
duty and at that time he saw the army personnel
whom he named before and some other army per-
sonnel in Bangabhaban in busy condition. That at
about 7-00/7-30 PM he saw Major Rashid, Major
Farooque Rahman, Major Shahriar, Major Dalim,
Major Noor, Major Mohiuddin, Major Rashed
Chowdhury, Major Sharful, Captain Mazed and
Captain Muslem Uddin holding meeting in the
room of Major Rashid. Thereafter at about 12/12-
30 AM in that very night he saw Major Rashid,
Major Farooque Rahman, Major Shahriar, Major
Bazlul Huda, Major Rashed Chowdhury, Major
Sharful, Major Mohiuddin, Major Aziz Pasha,
Captain Mazed, Taher Uddin Thakur and Mahbub
Alam Chashi holding meeting in the meeting
room of President Khandaker Mustaque Ahmed in
the 3rd floor. That he himself and *“khedmatgar”
Manik went inside that meeting room for serving
tea. At that time President Khandaker Mustaque
Ahmed asked Major Rashid who would go to jail
and in reply Major Rashid told that Captain
Muslem Uddin and his men would go there. That
Major Rashid told him (the witness) then to serve
the meal to Muslem. The witness then came to the
ground floor and took meal from pantry room and
went to the room of Captain Muslem Uddin. But
Captain Muslem Uddin told that he would not
take meal; Captain Muslem Uddin then brought
out a bottle of wine from the almirah and he (the
witness) took a glass from almirah and pour wine
in that glass; that there were two other army per-
sonnel of lower rank also present in that room and
they all drank wine with Muslem Uddin. That he
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(the witness) thereafter went away to the meeting
room of 3rd floor. That after the end of the meet-
ing President Khandaker Mustaque Ahmed went
away to his bed room along with Major Rashid,
Major Farooque, Taher Uddin Thakur and
Mahbub Alam Chashi and he (the witness) then
came away to the ground floor; that at about 3-00
AM in that night he saw Captain Muslemuddin,
Dafader Marfat Ali, LD Abul Hashem Mridha and
2/3 other army personnel of lower rank going out
of Bangabhaban by army jeep. Sometimes there-
after Major Bazlul Huda and Major Shahriar also
went out of Bangabhaban by another army jeep.
The witness and “khedmatgar” Manik then fell
asleep in the dining room. At about 6-00 AM
Major Bazlul Huda awoke him from sleep and
told him to serve breakfast to all in the second
floor. The witness then went to the room of
Captain Muslem Uddin with breakfast and saw
there Major Rashid, Major Farooque Rahman,
Major Dalim, Major Shahriar, Major Rashed
Chowdhuty, Major Mohiuddin, Captain Mazed
and Captain Muslem Uddin gossiping; that while
he was serving breakfast to them, he heard Major
Rashid asking about the big 4 of jail and in reply
Captain Muslem Uddin telling that all were fin-
ished in jail. That he (witness) then went away
from there and came to pantry in the ground floor;
on that very day they were not released from duty.
This witness has further stated to the effect that
subsequently from the conversations of the army
officers he could know and also heard that four
national leaders Syed Nazrul Islam, Tajuddin
Ahmed, Mansur Ali, and Kamruzzaman were
killed by Captain Muslem Uddin and his other
men by shooting inside the jail. That at 7-00/7-30
PM on 3rd November Major Rashid, Major
Farooque Rahman, Major Shahriar, Major Dalim,
Major Bazlul Huda, Major Mohiuddin, Captain
Mazed and some other army personnel went away
from Bangabhaban and thereafter at about 9-00
PM, in that night, he (the witness) also went away
from Bangabhaban after finishing his duty and on
the next day on 4th November at 2-00 PM the wit-
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ness again came to Bangabhaban and heard thar
the said army officers and their companions went
away abroad.

183. This witness also has been cross-exam-
ined on behalf of the all the accused persons thor-
oughly.

During cross-examination suggestions were
put to this witness to the effect that he did not
know any of the army officers whom he named in
his examination-in-chief and that what he deposed
in his examination-in-chief were all false and that
he was not on duty at all in Bangabhaban on
2nd/3rd November, 1975. This witness denied all
these defence suggestions. From the lengthy
cross-examination of this witness nothing materi-
al came out to prove the ev of this witness
false or to prove this witness not trustworthy.

184. The PW 16 Abdul Quiyum Choudhury
was a receptionist-cum-PA to the President in
1975. This witness has deposed to the effect that
in Bangabhaban he was assigned with the job of
connecting personal telephone of the President.
That during his duty in Bangabhaban he saw
Major Dalim, Major Rashid, Major Aziz Pasha,
Major Rashed Chowdhury, Major Mohiuddin,
Major Ahmed Sharful Hossain, Major Shahriar,
Major Farooque, Captain Mazed, Lieutenant
Kismat, Lieutenant Nazmul Hossain, Resalder
Muslem Uddin, Dafader Marfoth Ali Shah and
LD Abul Hashem Mridha and others roaming in
Bangabhaban with pomp and power. That Taher
Uddin Thakur and Mahbub Alam Chasi also used
to come to Bangabhaban frequently and they used
to telephone to different places from
Bangabhaban and also give different instructions
and orders sitting in the room of President at
Bangabhaban; that in the later part of October,
1975 there was prevailing an unusual situation in
Bangabhaban; on 2nd November, 1975 his duty in
Bangabhaban was from 7-30 AM to 2-00 PM; that
after performing his duty on that day he went
away from Bangabhaban. Thereafter on the next
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day on 3rd November he came to Bangabhaban at
2-00 PM and heard from Yakub that in the previ-
ous night four Awami League leaders Syed Nazrul
Islam. Tajuddin Ahmed, Captain Mansur Ali and
Kamruzzaman were killed inside the jail and that
Mazjor Dalim. Major Farooque and Major Rashid
group had committed that killing. That Khan
Mohammad Ali Olock told Yakub about this fact
in the moming at the time of change of duty. That
Khan Mohammad Olock told Yakub that presi-
dent Mustaque and Major Rashid had talked to IG
(Prisons) at jail in that night and they were seen
very busy and atn the dawn Major Rashid and the
other men of their party were seen entering
Bangabhaban in sweating condition. That Yakub
told him also that he himself also could know
from the conversation of Major Dalim, Major
Rashid and Major Farooque and others that they
committed the killing incident inside the jail. This
PW 16 deposed also that he himself also could
know from the conversation of the said army per-
sonnel that they committed the jail killing in the
previous night. That on that day President
Mustaque Ahmed, Taher Uddin Thakur also were
seen anxious. That though his duty period was
upto 8-00 PM he had to remain on duty till 11-00
PM in that night.

185. This witness also has been cross-exam-
ined at length on behalf of the accused persons,
but nothing material came out from his cross-
examination to make his evidence false or to sup-
port the defence suggestion that he is a tutored
witness and has deposed falsely as per the instruc-
tion of the prosecution.

186. The PW 17 Khan Mohammad Ali
Olock deposed to the effect that in 1972 while he
was a student of Dhaka University he was
appointed as LD Assistant in the President
Secretariat and was assigned with the duty of per-
sonal assistant of Mohammad Hanif-the personal
assistant of President Bangabandhu Sheikh
Mujibur Rahman. In 1975 he along with three
others was posted as receptionist-cum-P.A. and
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they worked as such in the Ganabhaban. Afier
15th August 1975 he was posted in Bangabhaban.

That at that time Major Farooque, Major Rashid,
Major Shahriar, Major Dalim, Major Bazlul
Huda, Major Rashed Chowdhury, Major Aziz
Pasha, Captain Muslem Uddin would reside in
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ness) also then saw the going out of those army

personnel from Bangabhaban. That subsequently
at about 6-00 AM Major Rashid, Major Dalim,
Major Farooque, Major Bazlul Huda, Major
Shahriar, Major Rashed Chowdhury, Major Aziz

Pasha, Major Ahmed Sharful, Captain Mazed,
Bangabhaban in different VIP rooms. That Taher

Uddin Thakur and Mahbub Alam Chashi also
used to stay with Khandaker Mustaque Ahmed in
Bangabhaban all the time. That in the night fol-
lowing 2nd November, 1975 he had telephone

Captain Muslem, Lieutenant Kismat, Lieutenant
duty at Bangabhaban. In that night at 3-00 AM he

Nazmul, Abul Hashem Mridha, Dafader Marfoth
Ali came back to Bangabhaban in very tired con-
dition. At about 8-00 AM he handed over his duty
to Yakub Uddin Khan and at that time he narrated
the whole occurrence to Yakub Khan; that on the

next day he knew that Tajuddin Ahmed, Syed
Nazrul

Islam, Captain Mansur

was asked to connect the IG (Prisons) by tele-
phone and when IG (Prisons) was connected he

asked IG (Prisons) to talk with Major Rashid and
they had talked for few moments. After some-
times Major Rashid again asked him to give tele-
phone connection to IG (Prisons) and he then
phoned to the residence of the IG (Prisons) but he
was informed that IG (Prisons) went to jail.
Thereafter he gave telephone connection to the
phone of DIG (Prisons) and Major Rashid then
talked. Sometimes thereafter Major Rashid, Major

and

Ali
Kamruzzaman were killed inside the jail by those
army personnel and they also fled away abroad.

187. From the lengthy cross-examination of
this witness also nothing material came out to
make the evidence of the witness false or to sup-
port the defence case. This witness has denied the
defence suggestion that he has deposed falsely at

the instruction of others and that he was not on

Farooque, Major Dalim, Major Bazlul Huda, iy, Bangabhaban on 2-11-1975.

Major Rashed Chowdhury, Major Aziz Pasha

came to his room in armed condition and told him
to connect IG (Prisons) by telephone. The witness
then tried to connect 1G (Prisons) but could not
get line and then he connected the phone of jailor
and told him that Major Rashid would talk to IG
(Prisons). 1G (Prisons) then talked to Major

188. The PW 18 Md Manik Meah deposed
Rashid over telephone and Major Rashid wanted

to the effect that he was a “khedmatgar” in
Ganabhaban in 1973 and after the assassination of
Bangabandhu he was posted at Bangabhaban as

“khedmatgar” of President Khandaker Mustaque
to know whether Captain Muslem Uddin reached

Ahmed. That during his tenure in Bangabhaban he
the jail. Thereafter Major Rashid told him (the

witness) to give connection to President Mustaque
Ahmed and accordingly he gave telephone con-
nection to President Mustaque Ahmed and

saw Major Rashid, Major Farooque, Major
President Mustaque Ahmed talked to IG

Shahriar, Major Dalim, Major Mohiuddin, Major
Bazlul Huda, Major Ahmed Sharful, Captain
Mazed, Captain Muslem Uddin, Abul Hashem
Mridha, Marfat Ali Shah and some other officers
(Prisons). As soon as President Mustaque Ahmed

finished his talk Major Rashid and others went

in Bangabhaban. Mahbub Alam Chashi and Taher
away inside Bangabhaban. That sometimes there-

Uddin Thakur also used to stay in Bangabhaban
with President Khandaker Mustaque Ahmed. That
on 2nd November, 1975 at 2-00 PM he came to

duty at Bangabhaban; Shawkat Hossain also was
after Pritom Barua informed him that Major

with him on duty at that time. At about 7-00/7-30

PM he saw Major Rashid, Major Farooque, Major
Farooque, Major Dalim, Major Rashid and others Bazlul Huda, Major Shahriar, Major Dalim,
were going outside Bangabhaban. He (the wit- Major Mohiuddin, Captain Muslem Uddin sitting




| 48 DLR (AD) (2016)

m the room of Major Rashid. At about 12-00:12-
30 AM in that very night there was an wrgent
meeting in the meeting room of President
Khandaker Mustaque Ahmed. That in that meet-
ing all those army personnel and Mahbub Alam
Chashi and Taher Uddin Thakur also were pres-
ent. In that meeting all were seem agitated
President Khandaker Mustaque Ahmed asked
Major Rashid who would go to jail and Major
Rashid replied that Captain Muslem and his men
would go inside the jail. Major Rashid then told
him (the witness) to serve meal to Captain
Muslem and Shawkat went to serve meal; that at
about 1-00/1-30 AM he (witness) saw Major
Rashid, Major Farooque, Mahbub Alam Chasi
and Taher Uddin Thakur to go to the bed room of
President Khandaker Mustaque Ahmed. That at
about 3-00 AM in that very night Captain Muslem
Uddin, Marfat Ali Shah, Abul Hashem Mridha
and two other army personnel and one men in
civil dress went out of Bangabhaban by a army
jeep. By another jeep Major Bazlul Huda and
Shahriar shaheb also went out of Bangabhaban.
Thereafter at about 6-00 AM Major Bazlul Huda
awoke them from sleep and told them to serve
breakfast to Captain Muslem Uddin. The witness
and Shawkat then made breakfast ready and took
that to the room of Muslem Uddin and saw there
Major Rashid, Major Farooque, Major Shahriar,
Major Bazlul Huda, Major Dalim, Major
Mohiuddin and some other army officers gossip-
ing with Captain Muslem. Major Rashid asked
Captain Muslem “ce@ @ f& 9@ 5@5! 19 1” In
reply Captain Muslem told “57fa 59 ¢3”; that he
then came out of that room after they finished
their breakfast; that on that day he (the witness)
was not released from duty. That from the conver-
sation of army officers he knew that the four
Awami League leaders Syed Nazrul Islam,
Captain Mansur Ali, Tajuddin Ahmed and
Kamruzzaman were killed inside the jail by shoot-
ing and he then realized clearly that the said army
officers along with Mahbub Alam Chashi and
Taher Uddin Thakur made conspiracy with
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President Khandaker Mustaque Ahmed to kill
those four leaders. That on that evening at about
7-007-30 PM some of those army officers with
their families left Bangabhaban. On the next day
coming to duty at Bangabhaban he heard that
those army officers left the country and went
away abroad.

189. This PW 18 also has been cross-exami-
nation at length on behalf of the accused persons.
But from the lengthy cross-examination of this
witness also nothing material came out to make
the evidence of this witness unbelievable.

190. The PW 19 Khandaker Asaduzzaman
was the secretary of Jute Ministry in 1975. After
15th August, 1975 he was arrested along with oth-
ers and was detained in Dhaka Central Jail. This
witness deposed to the effect that he was kept in
room No.2 of Dhaka Central Jail along with Mr
AHM Kamruzzaman, Mr Mofazzal Hossain
Chowdhury Maya, Bir Bikram Mr Mohiuddin
Ahmed and in room No.1 Syed Nazrul Islam, Mr
Tajuddin Ahmed, Mr Korban Ali, Mr Abdul
Quddus Makhan and Sheikh Abdul Aziz were
kept while in room No.3 Captain Mansur Ali, Mr
Abdus Samad Azad, Mr Shamsuzoha and some
others were kept. That during the period from 3 1st
October, 1975 to 2nd November, 1975 he saw
Major Dalim inside the jail. That in the night fol-
lowing 2nd November, 1975 he heard alarm bell
(strerent 951) and he woke up from sleep. Thereafter
jailor came to their room and called away
Kamruzzaman from that room to room No:l.
After a while they heard firing sounds which con-
tinued for 4/5 minutes. Thereafter the assailant
party went away; they heard groaning sounds
from room No.l. After a while they again heard
sounds of somebodies’ entering in room No.1 and
could know later that there were bayonet charges
to ensure the death. That on the next day on 3rd
November, 1975 they were kept confined inside
the cell the whole day. On 4th November, 1975
they were allowed to come out of the cell and
could know from guards that the dead bodies of
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Syed Nazrul Islam, Tajuddin Ahmed, Captain
Mansur Ali, and AHM Kamruzzaman were taken
out of jail gate. That he could know also that
Captain Muslem was the leader of the assailant
party. From the cross-examination of this witness
also nothing material came out.

191. The PW 20 Mahbubuddin Ahmed, Bir
Bikram was a police superintendent in 1975. This
witness also was arrested after assassination of
Bangabandhu Sheikh Mujibur Rahman and his
other family members and was kept in the central
jail in cell No.15. This witness deposed to the
effect that on 2nd November, 1975 before lock up
Major Dalim came in front of his cell and he (the
witness) asked him why did he come there and
Major Dalim replied that he came there to see
whether the lights were in order or not. This wit-
ness stated also that in 1971 he fought together
with Major Dalim in sector No.2. That in the night
following 2nd November, 1975 at about 3-00 AM
the alarm ring (“ft#te €%1) of the jail rang and he
(the witness) woke up from sleep; that he then
heard firing sounds and also sound of groaning.
That sometimes thereafter he heard sounds of
bayonet charges also. After “fazar azan” some-
body told them that four persons were killed. On
3rd November, 1975 he was called to jail gate to
meet some visitors and at the time of going to jail
gate he saw four dead bodies of Syed Nazrul
Islam, Tajuddin Ahmed, Captain Mansur Ali, and
Kamruzzaman lying. Next day, after evening, they
heard that the dead bodies were taken away. From
the cross-examination of this witness also nothing
material came out.

192. The PW 21 Commodore Golam Rab-
bani was the ADC to the President at Banga-bha-
ban during that relevant time. This witness has
deposed to the effect that he served as ADC to the
President at Bangabhaban since December, 1974
for a period of 2 years 7 months and during that
period he used to reside at Bangabhaban; that
after the killing of Bangabandhu and his family
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members Major Farooque, Major Rashid, Major
Dalim, Major Shahriar, Major Noor, Major
Mohiuddin, Major Aziz Pasha, Captain Mazed,
Nazmul, Kismat, Hashem, Resalder Muslem
Uddin, Dafader Marfoth Ali and Dafader Abul
Hashem Mridha and many others used to reside at
Bangabhaban. That 2/1 days after the killing of
Bangabandhu President Mustaque Ahmed sent a
letter to Captain Mansur Ali and he (the witness)
himself and Major Shahriar took that letter to
Captain Mansur Ali.

193. That 2/1 days thereafter they came to
know that four Awami League leaders Captain
Mansur Ali, Syed Nazrul Islam, Tajuddin Ahmed,
and Kamruzzaman were sent to jail. This witness
deposed to the effect also that the army officers
who used to reside at Bangabhaban by- passing
army command were being tried to be taken back
to barrack by army head quarter and in the later
part of October, 1975 there was a hint that the
army head quarters would take action against
those army personnel. That during that time
Resalder Muslem Uddin, Dafader Marfoth Ali
and Dafader Mridha and their other companions
used to stay armed all the time. They used to stay
in Bangabhaban as the personal guards of
President Mustaque Ahmed. That in the night fol-
lowing 2nd November, 1975 at 11-00 PM he fell
asleep in his bed room at 1st floor of
Bangabhaban. At about 2-00 AM in that night one
messenger of President Mustaque Ahmed awoke
him from sleep and told him that President
Mustaque had called him, He then was going to
the room of President Mustaque at 4th floor by lift
and coming out of the lift he saw 2 armed army
personnel who challenged him and getting his
identity allowed him to go; he then went to the
room of President and saw there Major Rashid
and Major Dalim who were busy with making
telephone calls to different places. The President
then asked him about the guards and he replied
that he did not know whether the guards went out
of the Bangabhaban. That sometimes thereafter he
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‘the witness) went to his office room to enquire
zbout the guards and at that time he saw Resalder
Muslem Uddin, Dafader Marfoth Ali Shah and
Abul Hashem Mridha along with others in a very
restive condition. Sometimes thereafter Muslem
Uddin, Marfoth Ali Shah and Abul Hashem
Mridha along with some others were found going
out of Bangabhaban. Subsequently other officers
2lso went out of Bangabhaban. At 6-00 AM, in the
morning, he (the witness) saw those officers and
others came back to Bangabhaban. That in the
meantime they knew that four leaders Captain
Mansur Ali, Syed Nazrul Islam, Tajuddin Ahmed
and Kamruzzaman were killed inside the jail and
that Resalder Muslem Uddin, Dafader Marfoth
Al Shah and Abul Hashem Mridha and some oth-
zrs Killed them. That the officers and others who
were involved in the killing of 15th August, 1975
and 3rd November, 1975 went abroad on 3rd
November. '

194. This witness also has been cross-exam-
med at length on behalf of the accused persons.
During cross-examination this witness has denied
the defence suggestion that he did not see
Resalder Muslem Uddin, Dafader Marfoth Ali
Shah and LD (Dafader) Md Abul Hashem Mridha
in Bangabhaban on that day and that they never
resided at Bangabhaban and never came out of
Bangabhaban and then went back to
Bangabhaban.

195. This witness, the ADC to President
denied the defence suggestion also to the effect
that Khaled Mosharaff, with a view to capture
power, killed the leaders inside jail.

196. The PW 26 Captain AMM. Saifuddin is
2 retired pilot of Bangladesh Biman. This witness
mas deposed to the effect that on 3rd November,
1975 at 11-00 AM he was informed that he would
have to take some army officers to Bangkok by a
special flight as safety pilot and subsequently at 9-
30'10-00 PM, on that very date, they went to
Chittagong from Dhaka with some passengers by

az-1n
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plane and from Chittagong they flew for Bangkok
and reached Bangkok on 4th November. On 6th
November he came back to Dhaka and after
reaching Dhaka he came to know that the passen-
gers whom they took to Bangkok were involved
in the killing of Bangabandhu and his family
members and also in the killing of four leaders
Syed Nazrul Islam, Tajuddin Ahmed, Captain
Mansur Ali and Kamruzzaman. That about 30/35
passengers were in that plane.

197. PW 28 Mr Waliur Rahman was a direc-
tor of Foreign Ministry. The materials part of his
evidence is that on 3rd November, 1975 at about
5-00 PM acting Secretary of Foreign Ministry Mr
Nazrul Islam informed him that Lieutenant
Colonel Rashid and some other persons of his
group would go out of the country by a special
flight on that day and asked him to take necessary
permission from Burma and Thailand Embassy
and accordingly he and Shamsher Mobin
Chowdhury did all the needful and then at 10-00
PM, in that very night he went to old airport and
saw there Lieutenant Colonel Rashid, Lieutenant
Colonel Shahriar, Lieutenant Colonel Bazlul
Huda, Lieutenant Colonel Nur Chowdhury, Major
Ahmed Sharful Hussain, Captain Marfat Ali,
Kismat, Hashem, Nazmul Hussain Ansar,
Lieutenant Colonel Pasha, Moslem, Mridha and
Lieutenant Colonel Farooque who left the country
by the special flight. On the next morning he
heard about the Killing of four leaders inside the
jail. :

198. The PW 33 Mr Shamsher Mubin
Chowdhury, the Secretary, Foreign Ministry,
deposed to the effect that at the time of occurrence
he was working as Deputy Chief of Protocol in
the Foreign Ministry. That on 3rd November,
1975 at 9-30 AM he was called to Bangabhaban
by the Foreign Secretary Nazrul Islam and there
he was given a list of army officers by Mahbub
Alam Chashi and told to arrange their going away
abroad and accordingly he did all needful. That he
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also went to the airport and learnt that all the army
officers who prepared for going abroad already
crossed the immigration area and entered inside.
That thereafter in 1976, in the month of April he
went to different countries and handed over some
appointment letters to those army officers who
left the country for their appointments in different
Embassies of Bangladesh in different countries as
per direction of the then Foreign Secretary.

199. The PW 34 Md Yeakub Khan has
deposed to the effect that he was working as a
receptionist at Bangabhaban at the time of occur-
rence. That he was given duty to operate the per-
sonal telephone of the President Khandaker
Mustaque Ahmed. That during his tenure at
Bangabhaban he found Major Rashid, Major
Dalim, Major Noor, Aziz Pasha, Captain Moslem
and other army officers residing at Bangabhaban.
That on 3rd November, 1975 his duty period at
Bangabhaban was from 8-00 AM to 2-00 PM and
while he took over his duty from Khan
Mohammad Ali Olock (PW 17) the later informed
him that in the previous night at about 3-00 AM,
major Rashid from President’s room told him to
give telephone connection to IG (Prisons) and he
gave telephone connection at the residence of IG
(Prisons) and Major Rashid then talked to IG
(Prisons) and sometimes thereafter Major Rashid,
Major Dalim, Major Aziz Pasha, Major Noor,
Major Mazed came to the room of Khan
Mohammad Ali Olock in armed condition and
told him to connect IG (Prisons) over telephone
again and accordingly Khan Mohammad Ali
Olock again telephoned in the residence of IG
(Prisons) but IG (Prisons) was not at home at that
time and Khan Mohammad Ali Olock was
informed that IG (Prisons) went to jail; that as per
direction Khan Mohammad Ali Olock then gave
telephone connection to jail and Major Rashid
then asked IG (Prisons) whether Captain Muslem
went to jail; Major Rashid told also IG (Prisons)
to talk to President Mustaque Ahmed and accord-
ingly IG (Prisons) talked to President Mustaque
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Ahmed when he was given telephone connection
to President Mustaque Ahmed. That thereafter
Major Rashid and others went away. This PW 34
deposed also that Khan Mohammad Ali Olock
told him also that at dawn he saw Major Rashid
and his other party men to return to Bangabhaban.
This witness has stated further to the effect that he
himself also could gather from the conversations
of Major Rashid, Major Dalim, Aziz Pasha, Major
Noor, Captain Muslem that those army personnel,
in conspiracy with President Khandaker
Mustaque Ahmed, killed four leaders Tajuddin
Ahmed, Syed Nazrul Islam, Kamruzzaman and
Captain Mansur Ali and that on the next day while
he came to duty he knew that the said army per-
sonnel went abroad. During cross-examination
this witness has denied the defence suggestion
that he is a tutored witness.

200. These are the evidence which the pros-
ecution has relied on to prove its case that all the
accused persons made a criminal conspiracy to
kill four Awami League leaders Syed Nazrul
Islam, Tajuddin Ahmed, Captain Mansur Ali and
Kamruzzaman inside the Dhaka Central Jail and
in pursuance to this conspiracy a killing squad
was formed under the leadership of Risalder
Muslem Uddin with Dafader Marfoth Ali and
Lance Dafader Abul Hashem Mridha and others
and in the night following 2nd November, 1975 at
about 4 AM the said killing squad entered inside
Dhaka Central Jail and committed murder of the
said four Awami League leaders by shooting with
fire arms and subsequently another team of army
personnel also went inside Dhaka Central Jail and
made the death of those 4 leaders confirmed by
inflicting bayonet charges on their bodies.

201. From the above discussion of evidence
of the prosecution witnesses it appears that the
PWs 1t09, 10, 12, 19 and 20 have deposed cor-
roborating this prosecution case to the extent that
in that fateful night of the occurrence accused
Resalder Muslem Uddin along with four other
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army personnel entered into Dhaka Central Jail
and killed four Awami League leaders by shooting
with fite arms and subsequently another team of
army personnel made the death of those four
Awami League leaders confirmed by inflicting
bayonet charges on their bodies. The PW 1-the
hen DIG (Prisons), the PW 2-the then Jailor of
Dhaka Central Jail and the PW 3-the then IG
Prisons) deposed to the effect also that in that
fateful night of occurrence, before the incident of
lling of 4 leaders, there were several telephonic
onversations between IG (Prisons) and accused
Major Rashid and President Khandaker Mustaque
Ahmed from Bangabhaban. The PW 3 IG
Prisons) deposed to the effect also that accused
Major Rashid informed him over telephone that
“aptain Muslem Uddin would go to jail and
nstructed him to allow Captain Musiem Uddin to
alk to 4 leaders Syed Nazrul Islam, Captain
vonsur Ali, Tajuddin Ahmed and AHM
xamruzzaman inside jail. The PWs 1-3 deposed
o the effect that after his arrival at jail Captain
vuslem Uddin, on their asking, told that they
vould kill the four leaders and that IG (Prisons)
nformed this very statement of accused Captain
vuslem Uddin to Major Rashid and also
'resident Khandaker Mustaque Ahmed over tele-
hone and being thus informed even about this
tatement of accused Captain Muslem Uddin,
lajor Rashid and President Mustague Ahmed
nstructed IG (Prisons) to allow Captain Muslem
Jddin to do what he wanted to do. These evidence
f the PWs 1, 2 and 3 have been corroborated by
he evidence of PW 17 Khan Mohammad Ali
Jlok-a receptionist-cum-telephone operator of
3angabhaban. The PW 17 deposed to the effect
hat in the night following 2nd November, 1975
e had telephone duty at Bangabhaban and in that
ight, at 3-00 PM he was asked from President’s
oom to give telephone line to IG (Prisons) and
ccordingly he gave telephone line to 1G (Prisons)
t his residence and IG (Prisons) talked to Major
Rashid for sometime and thereafter also Major
Rashid again talked to IG (Prisons) over tele-
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phone and this time since IG (Prisons) was not at
his residence he gave telephone connection to the
phone of DIG (Prisons). That sometimes there-
after Major Rashid, Major Farooque, Major
Dalim, Major Bazlul Huda, Major Rashed
Chowdhury, Major Aziz Pasha came to his room
in armed condition and told him to connect I1G
(Prisons) through telephone; that he then tried to
connect IG (Prisons) but getting no line he ulti-
mately gave line to the phone of jailor and Major
Rashid then talked to IG (Prisons) through the
telephone of jailor and Major Rashid at that time
wanted to know whether Captain Muslem Uddin
reached the jail; that thereafter Major Rashid told
him (PW 17) to give telephone connection to
President Mustaque Ahmed and accordingly PW
17 gave telephone connection to President
Mustaque Ahmed and President Mustaque Ahmed
then talked to IG (Prisons). The PW 17 deposed
also that sometimes thereafter he saw Major
Rashid, Major Dalim, Major Farooque going out
of Bangabhaban and later at about 6-00 AM he
saw those army personnel and Risalder Muslem
Uddin, Dafader Marfat Ali, Abul Hashem Mridha
and others come back to Bangabhaban in very
tired condition. This PW 17 stated also that on the
next morning, while he handed over duty to PW
34 Yakub Hussain Khan he informed him about
this telephonic conversations of President
Mustaque Ahmed and Major Rashid with IG
(Prisons). PW 34 has corroborated the PW 17
mentioning that he heard about these telephonic
conversations from PW 17. PW 16 also has .
deposed to the effect that he heard about these
telephonic conversations between Bangabhaban
and Dhaka Central Jail from PW 34 Yakub
Hussain Khan who heard about that from PW 17
Khan Md Ali Olok.

202. All the witnesses from Bangabhaban
also, namely, the PW 11 Mokhlesur Rahman
Bhuiyan, PW 13 Md Shawkat Hossain, PW 16
Abdul Quiyum Choudhury, PW 17 Khan
Mohammad Ali Olok. PW 18 Md Manik Meah,
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PW 21 Commodore Golam Rabbani and PW 34
Md Yeakub Hussain Khan deposed in support of
the prosecution case to the extent that all the
accused persons made conspiracy to kill the four
leaders inside the jail and in pursuance of that
conspiracy Resalder Muslem Uddin, the present
accused-respondents Dafader Marfoth Ali Shah
and LD (Dafader) Md Abul Hashem Mridha and
some other army personnel were sent to Dhaka
Central Jail at about 3-00 AM in the night follow-
ing 2nd Novembet, 1975. The PW 11 deposed that
in the fateful night of jail killing, at about 9‘—30
PM, he saw all the accused persons includir

accused Resalder Muslem Uddin, accused:
respondents Dafader Marfoth Ali Shwxﬁﬂ
(Dafader) Md Abul Hashem Mridha on the 1st
floor of Bangabhaban talking about Syed Nazrul
Islam, Captain Mansur Ali, Tajuddin Ahmed and
Kamruzzaman who were confined in Dhaka
Central Jail at that time and that at that time, at the
asking of Major Dalim and Major Rashid he sup-
plied them with the telephone numbers of both the
residence and office of IG (Prisons), DIG
(Prisons) and Jailor of Dhaka Central Jail. This
witness deposed to the effect also that at that time
he heard the accused persons to discuss about
Dhaka Central Jail and %lso to tell that the task of
Dhaka Central Jail would have to be completed
within that very night and also heard Major
Farooque to talk over telephone to Dhaka Central
Jail and to ask where the detenues were kept
inside the jail. The PW 13 deposed to the effect
that in the fateful night of occurrence at about 7-
00/7-30 PM he saw Major Rashid, Major
Farooque Rahman, Major Shahriar, Major Dalim,
major Noor, Major Mohiuddin, Major Rashed
Chowdhury, Major Sharful, Captain Mazed and
Captain Muslem Uddin holding meeting' in the
room of Major Rashid and thereafter at &bﬂut 12—
00/12-30 AM in that very night he saw those army
personnel and also Taher Uddin Thakur and
Mahbub Alam Chashi holding meeting in the
meeting room of President Khandaker Mustaque
Ahmed in the 3rd floor of Bangabhaban and that

Rashid asking about the “big four” in the jail and

PW 17 Khan Mohammad Ali Olok narrated thos
to PW 34 and PW 34 subsequently told him abo
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in that meeting he himself and other “khedmat-
gar” Manik while were serving tea he heard
Khandaker Mustaque Ahmed asking Major
Rashid who would go to jail and in reply Major
Rashid to tell that Captain Muslem Uddin and his
men would go there. This PW 13 deposed also
that at about 3-00 AM in that very night he saw
Captain Muslemuddin, Dafader Marfoth Ali. LD
Abul Hashem Mridha and 2/3 other army person-
nel of lower rank going out of Bangabhaban by a
army jeep and sometimes thereafter Major Bazlul
Huda and Major Shahriar also went out of
Bangabhaban by another army jeep and thereafter
at about 6-00 AM Major Bazlul Huda awoke him
from sleep and told him to serve breakfast to all in
the 2nd floor. That he then went to the room of
Captain Muslem Uddin with breakfast and saw
there Major Rashid, Major Farooque Rahman,
Major Dalim, Major Shahriar, Major Rashed
Chowdhury, Major Mohiuddin, Captain Mazed
and Captain Muslem Uddin and heard Major

in reply Captain Muslem Uddin telling that all
were finished in jail. The PW 16 deposed to the
effect that during his duty in Bangabhaban he saw
all the accused persons roaming in Bangabhaban
with pomp and power and that in the later part of
October, 1975 there was prevailing an unusual sit-
uation in Bangabhaban; that on 2nd November,
1975 after performing his duty he went away from
Bangabhaban at 2-00 PM and thereafter on the
next day he came to Bangabhaban at 2-00 PM and
heard from Yakub about the killing of four leaders
inside the jail and heard als¢ that Major Dalim,
Major Farooque and Major Rashid group had
committed that killing. This PW 16 has corrobo-
rated also the evidence of PW 17 mentioning tha

that. The evidence of PW 17 has already been stat-
ed above. The PW 18 deposed to the effect th
during his tenure in Bangabhaban he saw Maj
Rashid, Major Farooque, Major Shahriar, Majo
Dalim, Major Mohiuddin, Major Bazlul Hud
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Major Ahmed Sharful, Captain Mazed. Captain
Muslem Uddin, Abul Hashem Mridha. Marfat Ali
Shah and some other officers to stay in
Bangabhaban; that in the night following 2nd
November, 1975 at about 7-00/7-30 PM he saw
Major Rashid, Major Farooque, Major Bazlul
Huda, Major Shahriar, Major Dalim, Major
Mohiuddin, Captain Muslem Uddin sitting in the
room of Major Rashid and subsequently in that
very night at about 12-00/12-30 AM he saw those
army personnel holding a meeting in the meeting
room of President Khandaker Mustaque Ahmed
and in that meeting all of those army personnel
were found agitated and at that time President
Khandaker Mustaque Ahmed asked Major Rashid
who would go to jail and Major Rashid replied
that Captain Muslem and his men would go inside
the jail and that subsequently at about 3-00 AM, in
that very night, he saw Captain Muslem Uddin,
Marfoth Ali Shah, Abul Hashem Mridha and two
other army personnel to go out of Bangabhaban
by a army jeep and later by another jeep Major
Bazlul Huda and Major Shahriar also went out of
Bangabhaban. Thereafter at about 6-00 AM Major
Bazlul Huda awoke them from sleep and told
them to serve breakfast and while he and PW 13
Shawkat was serving breakfast in the room of
Muslem Uddin they saw there Major Rashid,
Major Farooque, Major Shahriar, Major Bazlul
Huda, Major Dalim, Major Mohiuddin and some
other army officers and at that time Major Rashid
asked Captain Muslem whether “the big four” in
the jail were finished and in reply Captain
Muslem Uddin told all were finished. The PW 21
Commodore Golam Rabbani the ADC to the
President deposed to the effect that after the
killing of Bangabandhu and his family members
Major Farooque, Major Rashid, Major Dalim,
Major Shahriar, Major Noor, Major Mohiuddin,
Major Aziz Pasha, Captain Mazed, Nazmul,
Kismat, Hashem, Resalder Muslem Uddin,
Dafader Marfoth Ali and Dafader Hashem Mridha
and many others used to reside at Bangabhaban.
This witness deposed also that the army officers-
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who used to reside in Bangabhaban bypassing
army command-were being tried to be taken back
to barrack by army head quarter and in the later
part of October, 1975 there was a hint that the
army head quarter would take action-against that
army personnel. That during that period Resalder
Muslem Uddin, Dafader Marfoth Ali and Dafader
Mridha and their other companions used to keep
armed all the time and they used to stay in
Bangabhaban as the personal guards of President
Mustaque Ahmed. This PW 21 deposed further
that in the night following 2nd November, 1975 at
about 2-00 AM one messenger of President
Mustaque Ahmed awoke him from sleep and told
him that President Mustaque had called him and
he then went to the room of President Mustaque
and saw there Major Rashid and Major Dalim
who were busy making telephone calls and that
the President asked him about the guards and he
replied that he did not know whether the guards
went out of Bangabhaban. That sometimes there-
after he went to his office room and at that time he
saw Resalder Muslem Uddin, Dafader Marfoth
Ali Shah and Abul Hashem Mridha along with
others in a very restive condition and a little time
thereafter he saw Resalder Muslem Uddin,
Marfoth Ali Shah and Abul Hashem Mridha along
with some others going out of Bangabhaban and
subsequently he saw some other officers also
going out of Bangabhaban and later at about 6-00
AM, in the morning, he saw all those army per-
sonnel to come back to Bangabhaban. This wit-
ness deposed also that in the meantime they gould
know that Resalder Muslem Uddin, Dafader
Marfoth Ali Shah and Abul Hashem Mridha and
some others killed the four leaders inside the jail.
This witness deposed also that the army personnel
and others who were involved in the killing of
15th August, 1975 and 3rd November, 1975 went
abroad on 3rd November. The PW 34 deposed to
the effect that during his tenure at Bangabhaban
he found Major Rashid, Major Dalim, Major
Noor, Major Aziz Pasha, Captain Muslem and
other army officers residing at Bangabhaban and
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that on 3rd November, 1975 at 8-00 AM while he
took over his duty from PW 17 Khan Mohammad
Ali Olok the later informed him about the tele-
phonic conversations of President Mustaque
Ahmed and Major Rashid with IG (Prlsons) in the
previous night.

203. The above narrated evidence of PWs
11, 13, 16, 17, 18, 21 and 34 coupled with the evi-
dence of PWs 1 to 9, 10, 12, 19 and 20- asaagrrat-
ed above-support the prosecution case stron
that the accused persons made a COIlSplI'&GX :§o kl,ll
the four Awami League leaders inside the jail and
in pursuance of that conspiracy accused Resa
Muslem Uddin, the present accused-res
Dafader Marfoth Ali Shah and LD (Dafaéet} Abul
Hashem Mridha along with two other arm;r per—
sonnel were sent to Dhaka Central Jail in the: mght
following 2nd November, 1975 at about 4-00 PM
and all these five members of this killing squad
entered inside the jail and killed the four Awami
League leaders Syed Nazrul Islam, Tajuddin
Ahmed, Captain Mansur Ali and Kamruzzaman
by shooting with fire arms and subsequently,
within a short time, another team of army person-
nel entered the Dhaka Central Jail and ii_lf_l_ig_t&d
bayonet charges on the bodies of slain leaders to
ensure their death. '

204. The trial court though appears to have
raised some questions in the first part of his judg-
ment about the credibility of the above mentioned
prosecution witnesses but ultimately believed the
above narrated evidence of these PWs and relying
on these evidence convicted and senwﬁceﬂ 15
accused persons including the present accus
respondents-as already mentioned above. ”B?é‘t"the
High Court Division-the appellate com‘tiﬁd ﬁot
believe the PWs 1 to 3 and the other pr
witnesses from Bangabhaban. The Pﬂgﬁ“‘@%ﬁﬂ
Division though has accepted the prosecaﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁse
that the accused Resalder Muslem Udﬁh“ﬂmg
with some other army personnel murdered four
Awami League leaders inside the jail at about 4-
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00 AM in the night following 2nd November,
1975 as true and therefore confirmed the convic-
tion and sentence of the accused Resalder Muslem
Uddin, but has disbelieved almost all the above
mentioned prosecution witnesses.

205. The High Court Division has disbe-
lieved the PW 1the informant and also an eye wit-
nesses of the occurrence of jail killing mainly on
the ground that “he (PW 1) had disclosed many a
thing before the court which were not there in the
purported FIR”

206. It should be mentioned here that in the
FIR-the PW 1 stated thus:

“on 3-11-1975 at about 4-00 AM one
army officer wearing khaki uniform giving
his identify as Captain Muslem Uddin
_attached to Bangabhaban accompanied by
four army personnel wearing khaki uniforms
came to the jail. They were armed with Sten
gun and SLR etc. They entered into the jail
and killed four persons, namely, Mr Tajuddin
Ahmed, Mr Monsur Ali, Mr Syed Nazrul
Islam and Mr AHM Kamruzzaman. More
details about the incident will be furnished in
due course. The incident has been reported
verbally by the Inspector General of Prisons
to the Secretary of the Ministry of Home
Affairs yesterday (3-11-1975). The dead bod-
ies of four persons are still lying in the jail,
necessary action may kindly be taken in the
matter.”

207. During examination before the court
this PW 1 has proved that detailed report men-
tioned in the FIR which he submitted on 5-11-
1975 to the Inspector General of Police narrating
about the telephonic conversations between IG
(Prisons) and accused Major Rashid and President
Khandaker Mustaque Ahmed in that fateful night
of occurrence and also narrating the occurrence of
jail killing in details-which has been marked as
Exhibit 2.




88 DLR (AD) (2016)

208. However, the High Coust Division &id
not place reliance on the evidence of PW 1 for the
reason also that the FIR did not contain name of
the accused persons except Captain Muslem
Uddin. These reasons assigned by the High Court
Division for disbelieving the evidence of PW |
cannot be accepted in the given facts and circum-
stances of the case. It is a settled position of law
that an FIR does not require to comtain all the
details about the occurrence. The FIR generally is
lodged immediate after an occurrence 1o start the
investigation in the matter, the details of the
occurrence may be disclosed at a later stage dur-
ing investigation. However, in this particular case
considering the very nature of the occurrence of
jail killing we are of the view that the non-men-
tioning of the fact of telephonic conversations
between accused Major Rashid and President
Mustaque Ahmed from Bangabhaban and the PW
3 IG (Prisons) in that fateful night of occurrence
cannot be a reason for not believing the PW 1-
who lodged the FIR within a short time of the
occurrence of jail killing mentioning that he
would submit a detailed report about that incident
afterwards. This PW 1, in his deposition before
the court, did not name any other accused persons
except accused Muslem Uddin. He named
accused captain Muslem Uddin only stating that
Captain Muslem Uddin himself disclosed his
identity as Captain Muslem Uddin. This PW 1
though stated also that Captain Muslem Uddin
and his other companions put their signatures in
the Gate register, but it cannot be expected that
seeing the signatures (which might be initials
only) the names and other identities of the signa-
tories could be ascertained. In the circumstances
how the High Court Division could say that this
PW 1 cannot be believed for the reason also that
the FIR did not contain the name of other accused
persons except accused Captain Muslem Uddin.

209. The High Court Division has disbe-
lieved the PW 2the’ then jailor of Dhaka Central
Jail Md Aminur Rahman also, but we fail to find

State vs Dafader Marfoth Al Shah Nz Ara Sidiana J) 87

out from the impugned judgment of the High
Court Division any reason for which the High
Court Division disbelieved this PW 2.

210. The High Court Division stated thus:—

“We do not find this witness (PW 2) a
trustworthy one because his disclosure
amounts to travesty of truth.”

211. We have examined the evidence of this
PW 2 minutely. We do not find anything to say
that this PW 2 is not trustworthy. We don’t under-
stand why the High Court Division made this
comment that the evidence of PW 2 “amounts to
travesty of truth.”

212. The High Court Division disbelieved
the PW 3 the then Inspector General of Prisons
also stating to the effect that the FIR did not dis-
close any reference whatsoever about the tele-
phonic conversation from Bangabhaban with him
at the Central Jail and that the alleged detailed
report submitted by him one day after on 5-11-
1975-the Exhibit 6 containing details about the
telephonic conversation of the accused persons
from Bangabhaban with this PW 3 and others at
the central jail was fabricated one-created subse-
quently for the purpose of this case. The High
Court Division disbelieved this Exhibit 6 for the
reason only that in the FIR there was no disclo-
sure about the telephonic conversation between
the accused persons from Bangabhaban and this
PW 3. We cannot agree with the High Court
Division on this point also. The only fact of non-
disclosure about the telephonic conversation in
the FIR cannot prove this Exhibit 6 false and fab-
ricated. In this case, in the very FIR, it was stated
clearly that a detailed report about the occurrence
would be submitted afterwards. Moreover this
fact of telephonic conversations between the
accused persons from Bangabhaban and the IG
(Prisons) have been corroborated by the PW 17-
the then telephone operator of Bangabhaban-a
most competent witness. The High Court Division

(kA MMMBRCSEARRH - .| LA 50 1 L4 L2hck L
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disbelieved this PW 17 Khan Mohammad Ali
Olock also on the contention that there was no
proof to prove that this PW 17 actually was an
employee of Bangabhaban at that relevant time.
The High Court Division pointed out that the
attendance register for the employees of
Bangabhaban of that relevant time was not pro-
duced by the prosecution before the court ‘ﬁ) pmve
that this PW 17 was actually an empl‘@yee of
Bangabhaban at that relevant time. The: High
Court Division, obviously, did not take. mta een-
sideration at all the fact that the investigatio
this case started long 21 years after the.
occurrence and in that circumstances it m
be possible for the prosecution to find ﬂﬁ% y:.ei—
evant attendance registers of the employees of
Bangabhaban. In this connection it is- also men-
tioned here that the High Court Dwmmn" hﬁﬁ é:mn
egister of
the Dhaka Central Jail containing the signatures
of the assailants warranted an adverse presump-
tion under section 114(g) of the Evidence Act. The
High Court Division has stated that according to
the PW 1 all the 5 assailants who committed mur-
der of four leaders put their signatures in the gate
register before their entrance inside the jail and in
the circumstances those gate registers could have
been most vital document to connect all the 5
assailants in this case. This time also ‘the High
Court Division did not take into consideration at
all the fact that the investigation of this case start-
ed long 21 years after the occurrenceaﬂ&m the
circumstances it might not be posmble& the part
of the prosecution to find out that gate 1 egister of
Dhaka Central Jail. The High Court ’BMSron
obviously, did not consider also that tﬁémm
or initials only of the assailants in thb’gﬁ&‘fegts-
ter might not be sufficient for ascertaining - the
name and identity of those assailants &ﬁ in that
circumstances the non-production of gﬁe register
was not fatal at all-specially where neither the FIR
nor any of witnesses from jail named’a&ymcused
person excepting accused Rlsalder Muslem Uddin
only. G

has. disbelieved the evidence of the prosecution
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213. It appears that the High Court Division

witnesses from Bangabhaban, namely, PWs 11,
13, 16, 17, 18, 21 and 34 relying on some state-
ments of PWs 21, 29 and 46 also. Taking into con-
sideration some statements of these PWs 21, 29,
and 46 the High Court Division arrived at the
findings that in the very night of occurrence there
was no telephone connection at Bangabhaban as
that was snapped by the rebel group of brigadier
Khaled Mosharraf and that brigadier Khaled
Mosharraf proclaimed coup in the night following
2nd November, 1975 and withdrew two Infantry
company from Bangabhaban at about 1-00 AM of
that very night and the inmates of Bangabhaban
having received a message of the coup by their
rival party was not in a position to move outside
Bangabhaban after 1-00 AM in that night follow-
ing 2nd November, 1975. On these findings and
observations the High Court Division disbelieved
all the evidence regarding telephonic conversa-
tions between 1G (Prisons) and Major Rashid and
President Khandaker Mustaque Ahmed and also
regarding going out of army personnel including
the present accused-respondents from Bangabha-
ban in that fateful night of occurrence. Before
weighing these findings and observations of the
High Court Division we require to state the rele-
vant portion of the evidence of PWs 29 and 46
here.

214. PW 29 Colonel Safayet Jamil (Retd.)
who was posted at Dhaka as 46 Brigade
Commander at the time of occurrence-deposed to
the effect that after 15th August, 1975 Khandaker
Mustaque Ahmed became the President of
Bangladesh and Khandaker Mustaque Ahmed and
his associates-the assailants Major Rashid, Major
Farooque Rahman, Major Dalim, Major Shahriar,
Major Noor Chowdhury, Major Rashed
Chowdhury, Major Huda, Major Ahmed Sharful
Hossain, Major Aziz Pasha, Lieutenant Kismot,
Lieutenant Ansar, Resalder Muslem and others
used to reside at Bangabhaban. That on Ist
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November, 1975 Khaled Mosharaff, Brig.
Nuruzzaman and he (the witness) himself had a
meeting at the office of the Chief of General Staff
where they decided that in the night following 2nd
November, 1975 at 12-00 hours two Infantry
company under him would be withdrawn from
Bangabhaban and taken to the Cantonment and
that it was the hint or proclamation of the coup.

215. That subsequently in the night follow-
ing 2nd November, 1975 at 12-00/1-00 AM two
Infantry company from Bangabhaban were with-
drawn; that in order to disconnect the rebels stay-
ing at Bangabhaban one battalion of soldiers was
sent to Bangabhaban under the leadership of
Captain Hafizulla. Captain Hafizulla snapped the
telephone  connection for disconnecting
Khandaker Mustaque from the rebel officers. This
PW 29 deposed also that at dawn of 3rd
November, 1975 there started oral fight (I=¥%)
between them and the rebel group residing at
Bangabhaban over telephone, but all the attempts
for negotiation failed and they then gave intima-
tion of Air Strike and then Khandaker Mustaque
Ahmed demanded safe passage of rebels through
General Osmani and they agreed to avoid further
bloodshed as they knew that subsequently the
rebels could be brought back to country through
[nterpol; that the rebels were then sent to Bangkok
with the help of Chief of Air force A.B.M. Toab.
That Major Rashid, Major Farooque Rahman,
Major Shahriar, Major Dalim, Major Noor, Major
Huda, Major Rashed Chowdhury, Major Ahmed
Sharful Hossain, Captain Mazed, Lieutenant
Ansar, Lieutenant Kismot, Resalder Muslem and
Sarwaer and Captain Zaman left the country.
During cross-examination this witness denied the
defence suggestion to the effect that he himself
and Khaled Mosharaff committed that jail killing
with a view to capturing power.

216. The PW 46 Lieutenant Colonel (Retd.)
Anwaruzzaman deposed to the effect that in 1975
he, as a Major, was posted at Reverine Support
AD-12
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Unit at Sadarghat, Dhaka. That the then Vice
President Syed Nazrul Islam was his “Fufa”. That
on 3-11-1975 at 10-00/11-00 AM he was
informed by his paternal uncle late Asaduzzaman
over telephone that in the night following 2-11-
1975 there was firing inside Dhaka Central Jail
and asked to take information about that, but as he

'was busy, he sent one Habilder to take informa-

tion; but that Habilder could not get any informa-
tion. That on 3-11-1975 Khaled Mosharaff pro-
claimed coup and, as such, he (the witness) him-
self could not come out of his unit. That on 04-11-
1975 he again sent another person to Dhaka
Central Jail but that person informed him that his
“Fufa” and other leaders were well. Thereafter he
was called to Dhaka Cantonment and at the time
of his return in the evening, he went to jail and
could know that in the night following 2-11-1975
the four leaders were killed inside jail. In course
of cross-examination this witness stated that on 2-
11-1975 Khaled Mosharaff proclaimed coup, but
they could not capture Bangabhaban; that on 3-
11-1975 Khandaker Mustaque Ahmed was com-
pelled to give up power and that on 2-11-1975 the
situation of Dhaka town was such that it was not
possible on his part to collect information from
central jail for the sake of his personal security.

217. From the above narrated evidence of
PW 29 Colonel Safayet Jamil it is evident that this
PW 29 did not state at all that the telephone con-
nections of Bangabhaban were snapped in the
night following 2nd November, 1975, rather this
witness by deposing that at dawn of 3rd
November, 1975 they had oral fight (a/<3=) with
rebel group residing at Bangabhaban over tele-
phone has confirmed that in the night following
2nd November, 1975 the telephone connections of
Bangabhaban were intact. Obviously the High
Court Division ignored this very clear statement
of PW 29 that in the dawn of 3rd November, 1975
they talked to the inmates of Bangabhaban over
telephone. It appears that the High Court Division
has relied on the evidence of PW 21 Commodore
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Golam Rabbani also to come to the finding that in
the fateful night of occurrence there was no tele-
phone connections in Bangabhaban. This PW 21-
the ADC to the President Khandaker Mustaque
Ahmed-deposed to the effect that in the fateful

‘night of occurrence, at about 2-00 AM one mes-

senger of President Mustaque Ahmed awoke him
from sleep and informed him that he was called by
the President. The High Court Division inferred
that the President could talk to his ADC the PW
21-over telephone and since the President did not
do that, rather sent a messenger to eﬁm it
indicated that the telephones of Bangabhabs
were not in operation in that night following :
November, 1975. But we are unable ww this
inference arrived at by the High Court Division. It
cannot be accepted that the President had to com-
municate with his ADC through telephone all the
time and he was not supposed to call his ADC by
sending a messenger. The calling of his ADC by
the President by sending a messenger is no proof
of disconnection of telephone lines of Bangabha-
ban in that fateful night of occurrence. Moreover,
as we have already pointed out above, the evi-
dence of PW 29-whom the High Court Division
has relied on-has proved sufficiently that in the
night of occurrence i.e. in the night following 2nd
November, 1975 the telephone connections of
Bangabhaban were intact.

218. Relying on the evidence of PWs 29 and
46 the High Court Division came to the findings
also that in the night following 2nd Nﬁfember
1975 brigadier Khaled Mosharaff proclaimed
coup and withdrew two Infantry company from
Bangabhaban and thus the inmates of Bangabha-
ban received a message of coup hyﬂieir rival
party in that very night and in that eircumstances
it was not possible on the part of mm of
Bangabhaban to go out of Bangam in that
night following 2nd November, 1975 and then
again to return to Bangabhaban in the early morn-
ing of 3rd November, 1975. The High Court
Division thus disbelieved the evidence of the PWs
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regarding going out of army personnel including
accused Resalder Muslem Uddin and the present
accused-respondents Dafader Marfoth Ali Sh
and LD (Dafader) Abul Hashem Mridha fro
Bangabhaban in that night following 2n
November, 1975 and also their subsequent com
ing back to Bangabhaban in the dawn of 3rd
November, 1975. But on scrutiny of the evidence
of PWs 29 and 46 we are unable to agree with
these findings also of the High Court Division.
The PW 29 though stated to the effect that in the
mid night following 2nd November, 1975 two
Infantry company from Bangabhaban were with-
drawn, but this statement does not prove that the
control of Bangabhaban was taken over by the
group of brigadier Khaled Mosharraf in that very
night and that the withdrawal of two Infantry
company only from Bangabhaban was sufficient
to give a message of coup by the rival party to the
inmate of Bangabhaban. Rather, the clear state-
ment of PW 46 in his examination-in-chief to the
effect that on 3-11-1975 Khaled Mosharraf pro-
claimed coup suggests that in the night following
2nd November, 1975 there was not prevailing any
such situation in Bangabhaban for which the army
personnel residing at Bangabhaban did not dare to
go out of Bangabhaban. This PW 46, in course 0
cross-examination, though stated that on 2-11-
1975 Khaled Mosharaff proclaimed coup, but
they could not capture Bangabhaban and that on
2-11-1975 the situation of Dhaka town was such
that it was not possible on his part to collect infor-
mation from central jail for the sake of his per-
sonal security, but considering the other state-
ments made by this PW 46 himself in his exami-
nation-in-chief we are unable to accept these very
statements of PW 46 made in course of cross-
examination as correct. In his examination-in-
chief the PW 46 stated that in the morning of 3rd
November, 1975 he was informed by his relative
that in the previous night there was firing inside
Dhaka Central Jail and was asked to take infor
mation about that, but as he was busy he sent one
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Habilder to take information. In view of these
statements of this PW 46 it is evident that the
question of taking information of Dhaka Central
Jail on 2nd November, 1975 did no arise at all
and, as such, the statement of this PW 46 that on
2-11-1975 the situation of Dhaka town was such
that it was not possible on his part to collect infor-
mation from Dhaka Central Jail for the sake of his
personal security-which he made in course of
cross-examination-is not acceptable at all.

219. The High Court Division though has
drawn some adverse inference taking into consid-
eration some particular statements of PWs 29 and
46 and thus disbelieved the prosecution witnesses
but it did not consider why so many witnesses
including very responsible witness like PW 21
Commodore Golam Rabbani-the then ADC to the
President-would depose lie against the accused
persons. This PW 21, on taking oath, deposed to
the effect that in the night following 2nd
November, 1975 at about 3-00 AM he saw
Resalder Muslem Uddin, Dafader Marfoth Ali
Shah and LD (Dafader) Abul Hashem Mridha (the
present 2 accused-respondents) and other army
personnel to go out of Bangabhaban and subse-
quently to come back to Bangabhaban. We find no
reason to disbelieve these evidence of this PW 21
Commodore Golam Rabbani. We do not find any
reason to disbelieve the other PWs also of whom
PWs 1 to 3 also were responsible officers of
Government. None of the above mentioned pros-
-~ ecution witnesses could have been shown by the

defence to have any enmity or ill feelings with any
of the accused persons or to have any other reason
for deposing falsely against the accused persons.
However, we are unable to accept the reasonings
the High Court Division has assigmed in iis
impugned judgment for disbelieving the prosecu-
tion witness-as cogent or convincing.

220. It appears that the High Court Division
has dwelt much on the FIR and witimately has
concluded thus:
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B neither Exhibit 1 nor Exhibit 3 can
be treated as FIR in this case though these two
papers, as it could be gathered from attending
circumstances, undoubtedly contains the con-
tents of the report made by PW 1 first in point
of time with Lalbagh Police Station on 4-11-
1975.%

221. Obviously the High Court Division has
committed a mistake here. In this case it was stat-
ed by the prosecution itself that the original FIR
which was lodged by the PW 1 with Lalbagh
Police Station on 4-11-1975 was found missing
from the record of the GR case concerned while
the case was taken up for investigation after a long
period of 21 years and that the Exhibit 1 and
Exhibit 3 were two copies only of the said FIR
procured from two different places. The High
Court Division believed that these Exhibit 1 and
Exhibit 3 “undoubtedly contains the contents” of
the original FIR lodged by the PW 1 and also has
taken into consideration the contents of these
Exhibit 1 and Exhibit 3. We fail to understand
why the High Court Division then wrote so many
pages on these Exhibit 1 and Exhibit 3 where the
prosecution itself made these two papers
Exhibited as the copies only of the original FIR
The Exhibit 1 and Exhibit 3, admittedly, are the
copies only of the original FIR and these were
never tried to be put as the FIR The High Court
Division, however, has appreciated the correct
legal position that where there is no FIR or where
the FIR cannot be proved in accordance with law
in that case also the court will not detract the tes-
timony of the witnesses which will have to be
assessed on its own merits and the case is to be
assessed on merit on the basis of the evidence
adduced before it.

222. Mr Abdullah-al-Mamun, the learned
defence Counsel has tried much before us to dis-
credit the prosecution witnesses by pointing out
some alleged contradictory or discrepant state-
ments of these witnesses. The learned Counsel has
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pointed out that the PWs 1to 9 and 12 made some
discrepant statements regarding colour of the
wearing uniforms of the assailants and also
regarding the kind of the weapons they carried.
The learned Counsel has contended that these
contradictory statements of these PWs reasonably
make these witnesses untrustworthy. But we are
unable to accept this argument of the learned
Counsel in this present case. Considering the very
facts and circumstances of this case we rather, are
of the view that it was very much natu al Gﬁihe
part of the witnesses to make disc
ments regarding colour of the wearing ¢l
the weapons of the assailants and that
crepant or contradictory statements of the PV
are so trifling in nature that these cannot raise any
suspicion about the truthfulness of the witness or
about the occutrence they narrated. The learned
Counsel for the accused respondents has pointed
out some other alleged minor discrepant or con-
tradictory statements also in the evidence of the
prosecution witnesses, but we do not find any of
these alleged discrepant or contradictory state-
ments of the prosecution witnesses fatal at all to
raise any suspicion about the truthfulness of these
witnesses. Discrepancy always occurs even in the
evidence of the truthful witnesses. It is also settled
that one part of evidence of a witness even if is
rejected the other part of the evidence of the same
witness may be accepted. g

223. Mr Abdullah-al-Mamun has tried to
discredit the PW 17 making argument to the effect
that from the evidence of the PW 3 it is evids
that all the telephonic conversations between
Major Rashid and IG (Prisons) were made
through direct telephones, but PW 17 claimed that
all the telephonic conversations between
Bangabhaban and Central Jail were made through
PBX number operated by him. But we are unable
to accept this argument also of the learned
Counsel. We do not find that the evidence of PW
3 prove conclusively that the telephonic conversa-
tions between him and the accused %mﬂhld
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and President Khandaker -Mustaﬁue Ahmed were
made directly and not through P.B.X number.

224. Mr Abdullah-al-Mamun has given
much importance on the fact that PWs 11 and 17
could not say the name of the then military secre-
tary to the President correctly and has argued that
this fact also suggests that these two PWs 11 and
17 were not employees of Bangabhaban. But we
are unable to accept this argument also of the
learned Counsel for the defence. These two PWs
were employees of Bangabhaban long 21 years
before. So, it was not unnatural at all that they
might not recollect the name of military secretary
to the President correctly. Mr Abdullah-al-Mamun
has argued to the effect also that the evidence of
PWs 16 and 34 if considered together will show
that the PW 17 was not on duty in the
Bangabhaban in the night of occurrence. But we
find this argument also of the learned Counsel of
the accused-respondents not correct. We have
minutely examined the evidence of PWs 16, 17
and 34 the 3 receptionists-cum-PA and found that
it was clearly proved that the PW 17 Khan Md Al
Olok was on duty in Bangabhaban in the night
following 2nd November, 1975 and on the next
morning at about 8-00 am he handed over his duty
to PW 34 Yakub Hossain Khan.

225. The learned Counsel for the accused-
respondents has argued also that the defence case
has been supported by the evidence of the own
witness of the prosecution and in the circum-
stances, according to settled principle of law the
accused persons are entitled to get benefit of
doubt. In support of this argument the learned
Counsel has ‘cited several decisions also. The
learned Counsel has referred to certain portion of
the evidence of the PW 52 Syed Mahbub-al-
Karim, Special Officer to slain leader Syed Nazrul
Islam which is quoted below:—

“oTeTE FAPIER [AwrE SN WOl #M,
Res qzuFce T $919 4, M CPEE A9@
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226. Mr Abdullah-al-Mamun has argued that
this very statement of the own witness of the pros-
ecution has strongly supported the defence case
that Khaled Mosharraf and his partymen pro-
claimed a coup and that it was the four leaders of
Awami League who were the legitimate succes-
sors to the government after killing of
Bangabandhu and, therefore, Khaled Mosharaff
and his partymen, with a view to securing their
peaceful tenure of office, had killed those 4 lead-
ers inside the Central Jail and the innocent
accused persons have been falsely implicated in
this case. But we are unable to accept this argu-
ment also of the learned Counsel in view of this
very statement itself of PW 52. The above quoted
statement of PW 52, evidently, was a mere
assumption of the witness himself-it was neither
from his knowledge nor he was a witness of any
such occurrence; this witness did not or could not
say anything else also to show that his such
assumption was correct. Moreover, the above
quoted statement of the PW 52 itself shows that it
does not at all support the defence case, because
in the above quoted statement of PW 52 it was
clearly told that it was the assumption of witness
that after materializing the coup against Mustaque
Government and after arresting Ziaur Rahman,
Khaled Mosharraf and others, with a view to
securing their power which they captured through
coup, made conspiracy to kill Syed Nazrul Islam
and others inside the jail-who were legitimate
claimants of the power. Evidently, according to
this statement of PW 52 the conspiracy to kill the
four leaders inside the jail was hatched by Khaled
Mosharaff and his partymen after they material-
ized the coup against Mustaque Government and
arrested Ziaur Rahman. But undisputedly the four
leaders were killed inside the jail in the night fol-
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lowing 2nd November, 1975 before the coup by
Khaled Mosharraf was materialized and also
before the arrest of Ziaur Rahman. So, evidently,
the above quoted statement of PW 52 does not
support the defence case at all and also is of no
help for the defence.

' 227. The other points raised by the learned
State Counsel for the accused-respondents have
already been answered before while discussing
about the impugned judgment of the High Court
Division.

228. However, in view of the above discus-
sion it is evident that in this case it has been
proved by sufficient evidence that in the night fol-
lowing 2nd November, 1975 at about 4-00 PM the
accused Resalder Muslem Uddin along with the
present accused respondents Dafader Marfoth Ali
Shah and LD (Dafader) Abul Hashem Mridha and
two other army personnel entered inside the
Dhaka Central Jail and there they killed four
Awami League leaders by shooting with fire arms.
The evidence of PWs 1-10, 12, 19 and 20 to the
effect that in the night following 2nd November,
1975 at 4-00 AM accused Risalder Muslem Uddin
along with 4 other army personnel entered inside
Dhaka Central Jail and killed 4 leaders Syed
Nazrul Islam, Captain Mansur Ali, Tajuddin
Ahmed and AHM Kamruzzaman by shooting
with fire arms-coupled with the evidence of PWs
13, 17, 18 and 21 to the effect that in that fateful
night of occurrence at about 3-00 AM they saw
accused Risalder Muslem Uddin and the present 2
accused respondents Dafader Marfoth Ali Shah
and LD (Dafader) Abul Hashem Mridha along
with 2 other army personnel to got out of
Bangabhaban by a army jeep and subsequently at
6-00 AM they saw those army personnel to come
back to Bangabhaban prove sufficiently that the
present 2 accused-respondents Dafader Marfoth
Ali Shah and LD (Dafader) Abul Hashem Mridha
also were with accused Risalder Muslem Uddin at
the time of alleged occurrence and were actively
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involved in the murder of 4 leaders inside the jail.
These 2 accused-respondents remained abscond-
ing all through till date and their such absconsion
also very reasonably tells in favour of their guilt.
The trial court, therefore, rightly convicted and
sentenced the present accused respondents
Dafader Marfoth Ali Shah and LD (Dafader) Abul
Hashem Mridha. The High Court Division, evi-
dently, has committed wrong and in juscitce in
finding these two accused-respondents not guilty
and thereby in acquitting them of the charges lev-
elled against them.

229. Before parting with this judgment we
shall have to deal with another important question
as agitated from the side of the State-appellant. It
has already been stated above that in this case
though charge under section 120B of the Penal
Code was framed against all the accused persons
by the trial court, but the trial court found this
charge not proved and consequently acquitted all
the accused persons of the charge of criminal con-
spiracy. Against this order of the trial court acquit-
ting the accused persons of the charge of criminal
conspiracy neither the State preferred any appeal
nor any relatives of the four slain leaders pre-
ferred any revision. At the time of hearing of the
death reference and appeals filed by some of the
convicted accused persons before the High Court
Division the State-respondents though appeared
and contested, but this time also the State did not
raise any question even against the acquittal of the
accused persons from the charge of criminal con-
spiracy. Before this Division also, at the time of
seeking leave to appeal against the acquittal of the
present two accused respondents Dafader Marfoth
Ali Shah and LD (Dafader) Abul Hashem Mridha-
the Sate-petitioner did not raise any question
against the acquittal of the accused persons from
the charge of criminal conspiracy. But at the time
of hearing of this appeal, for the first time, the
learned Counsel for the State appellant have made
submission regarding the charge of criminal con-
spiracy and have also prayed for conviction of the

State vs Dafader Marfoth Ali Shah (Nemun Ara Sultana J)

68 DLR (AD) (2016)

accused persons on the charge of criminal con-
spiracy also. Both Mr Anisul Huq and the learned
Attorney-General Mr Mahbubey Alam have made
elaborate submissions to the effect that in this case
there are overwhelming evidence on record to
prove the charge of criminal conspiracy against
the accused persons and in the circumstances,
considering the very nature of the offence of grue-
some and barbaric killing of 4 national leaders
inside jail, this Division-the apex court of th
country, by exercising its power of doing com-
plete justice under Article 104 of the Constitution,
can now consider whether the charge of criminal’
conspiracy was proved and if finds this charge o
criminal conspiracy proved then can pass appr
priate order at this stage also.

230. Criminal conspiracy has been defined
in section 120A of the Penal Code as under—

“When two or more persons agree to do,
or cause to be done,—

(1) an illegal act, or

(2) an act which is not illegal by illegal
means, such an agreement is desig-
nated a criminal conspiracy:

Provided that no agreement except an
agreement to commit an offence shall amount:
to a criminal conspiracy unless some act
besides the agreement is done by one or more:
parties to such agreement in pursuance there-
of.”

231. In this present case, from the evidence
narrated above, we, in agreement with the learned
Counsel for the State-appellant, find that there are
sufficient evidence to prove that there was a crim=
inal conspiracy to kill the 4 leaders inside jail. The
evidence of the PWs 1-3 and 17-whom we have
found trustworthy-have proved sufficiently that i
the fateful night of occurrence, before the
assailants accused Risalder Muslem Uddin and
others came to the jail, several telephone calls
from Major Rashid and others from Bangabhaban
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came to IG (Prisons) and that Major Rashid
mnformed 1G (Prisons) over telephone that
Risalder Muslem Uddin would go to jail and
asked IG (Prisons) to allow him to talk to 4 lead-
ers and later Major Rashid asked IG (prisons)
whether Risalder Muslem Uddin reached to the
jail and asked 1G (Prisons) to allow them to talk to
4 leaders and that after the arrival of accused
Risalder Muslem Uddin and his accomplices to
jail Major Rashid and President Khandaker
Mustaque Ahmed, being informed by the IG
(Prisons) that Risalder Muslem Uddin wanted to
kill the 4 leaders, told IG (Prisons) to allow
Risalder Muslem Uddin to do what he wanted to
do. These evidence of the PWs 1-3 and 17 lead to
the only inference that there was a criminal con-
spiracy to kill 4 leaders inside the jail. The evi-
dence of PW 11, PW 13 and PW 18 to the effect
that in the fateful night of occurrence they saw the
accused persons holding meeting and discussing
about the 4 leaders confined in the jail and also
heard President Khandaker Mustaque Ahmed to
ask who would go to jail and in reply Major
Rashid to tell that Risalder Muslem Uddin and his
men would go to jail-also, coupled with the other
evidence, support the charge of criminal conspir-
acy. The evidence of PW 17 to the effect that in
the night of occurrence, sometime after 3-00 AM,
Major Rashid, Major Faroogque, Major Dalim,
Major Bazlul Huda, Major Rashed Chowdhury
and Major Aziz Pasha came to his (PW 17’s) room
in armed condition and told him to connect IG
(Prisons) by telephone and while got telephone
connection Major Rashid asked the 1G (Prisons)
whether Captain Muslem Uddin reached to the
jail-coupled with the other evidence mentioned
above-strongly supports the prosecution case that
there was an agreement among the accused per-
sons to kill the 4 leaders inside the jail by sending
the killing squad of Risalder Muslem Uddin and
his men. The evidence of PWs 26, 28, 29 and 33
narrated above have proved that the accused per-
sons left the country together on the very next day
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of the occurrence. This fact of fleeing away of the
accused persons together on the very next day of
the occurrence also supports the prosecution case
that the accused persons together hatched criminal
conspiracy to kill the 4 leaders inside the jail.

232. Considering all these evidence and
facts and circumstances we are of the opinion that
in this case there are sufficient evidence-both
direct and circumstantial-to prove the charge of
criminal conspiracy.

233. Now the pertinent question is whether
at this stage, this Division can make any order
convicting and sentencing the accused persons or
any of them on the charge of criminal conspiracy
by exercising its power of doing complete justice
under Article 104 of the Constitution.

234.
Provides:

Article 104 of the Constitution

“The Appellate Division shall have
power to issue such directions, orders,
decrees or writs as may be necessary for
doing complete justice in any cause or matter
pending before it, including orders for the
purpose of securing the attendance of any
persons or the discovery or production of any
document.”

235. This article of the Constitution has
invested the last court of the country with wide
power of issuing necessary directions, orders etc.
for doing complete justice in appropriate cases.
The exercise of this power, however, “is cireum-
scribed only by two conditions, first is, that it can
be exercised only when Supreme Court otherwise
exercises its jurisdiction and the other is that the
order which Supreme Court passes must be nec-
essary for doing ‘complete justice in the cause or
matter pending before it.” [vide Chandrakant
Patil vs State, (1998) 3 SCC 38]. ‘Complete jus-
tice, however, has not been defined or described
in this article of the Constitution. Mr Mahmudul
Islam in his “Constitutional Law of Bangladesh™
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(First Edition) at page-536 para:5.200 has stated
thus:- -

“Power to do ‘complete justice’ is an
extraordinary power given to the highest tri-
bunal of the land and the power is to be exer-
cised sparingly and in exceptional circum-
stances to remove manifest and undoubted
_injustice. Facts may be of such varied pattern,
that it is difficult to lay down any fixed prin-
ciples for doing ‘complete justice’. All that
can be said is that ‘complete justice’ should
be done not according to the personal views
of the judges, but in exceptional circum-
stances on clear showing of injustice for the
removal of which the existing laws have not
made any provision.”

236. In the case of AFM Naziruddin vs
Hameeda Banu reported in 45 DLR (AD) 38 this
Division observed :—

“It is an extraordinary procedure for
doing justice for completion of or putting an
end to a cause or matter pending before this
Court. If a substantial justice under law and
on undisputed facts can be made so that par-
ties may not be pushed to further litigation
then a recourse to the provision of article 104
may be justified.”

237. In Prem Chand Garg vs Excise
Commissioner (AIR 1963 SC 996) the Indian
Supreme Court held:—

“an order which this Court can make in
order to do ‘complete justice’ between the
parties, must not only be consistent with the
fundamental rights guaranteed by the
Constitution, but it cannot even be inconsis-
tent with the substantive provisions of the rel-
evant statutory laws.” '

238. In a subsequent case of Union Carbide
Corp. vs Union of India (AIR 1992 SC 248) the
Indian Supreme Court observed that in order to
preclude the exercise of this constitutional power
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the prohibition of the statutory law must be

“shown to be based on some underlying
fundamental and general issues of public pol-
icy and not merely incidental to a particular
statutory scheme or pattern. It will again be
wholly incorrect to say that powers under
article 142 are subject to such express statu-
tory prohibitions. That would convey the idea
that statutory prohibitions override a constitu-
tional provisions. Perhaps, the proper way of
expressing the idea is that in exercising pow-
ers under article 142 and in assessing the
needs of ‘complete justice’ of a cause or mat-
ter, the apex court will take note of the
express provisions in any substantive statuto-
ry provision based on some fundamental prin-
ciples of public policy and regulate the exer-
cise of its power and discretion accordingly”.

239. Doing ‘complete justicé’ does not con-
template doing justice to one party by ignoring
statutory provisions and thereby doing injustice to
the other party by depriving him of the benefit of
law. If a valuable right is accrued to the other side
this fact should not be ignored in exercising the
power of doing ‘complete justice.

240. In the present case, as it has already
been mentioned above, the trial court acquitted al
the accused persons of the charge of criminal co
spiracy. Against this order of acquittal from
charge of criminal conspiracy the State had a righ
to seek remedy in appeal as per statutory provi
sions or by filing a revision by any of the relative
of the slain leaders. But none-of the aggrieved pa
ties including the State-informant filed any appe
or revision against that order of acquittal from th
charge of criminal conspiracy within the statutos
period of limitation or even beyond the statutor
period of limitation. Even before the appella
court-which heard the death reference and sor
appeals filed by the convicted accused perse
against the judgment of the trial court the Sta
respondents, though contested, but did not ras
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any objection against the order of acquittal from
the charge of criminal conspiracy. Even at the
time of seeking leave to appeal before this
Division against the judgment of the appellate
court the State-leave petitioner did not raise any
question against that order of acquittal from the
charge of criminal conspiracy. Leave to appeal
was granted only to examine whether the order of
acquittal of present two accused-respondents
Dafader Marfoth Ali Shah and LD (Dafader) Abul
Hashem Mridha from the charges under sections
302/34 and 302/109 of the Penal Code passed by
the High Court Division was correct and justified.
In the present appeal, therefore, the only matter
for our consideration is the propriety of the
impugned acquittal of these two accused-respon-
dents of the charges under sections 302/34 and
302/109 of the Penal Code only. But at the time of
hearing of this appeal, for the first time, the
learned Counsel for the State appellant have ques-
tioned the acquittal of all the accused persons
from the charge of criminal conspiracy by the trial
court and submitted that by exercising the power
under article 104 of the Constitution this Division
now, considering the overwhelming evidence on
record, can convict and sentence the accused per-
sons on the charge of criminal conspiracy.

241. But it has already been pointed out
above that the exercise of the power of doing
‘complete justice” under article 104 is circum-
scribed by two conditions, (i)that it can be exer-
cised only when Supreme Court otherwise exer-
cises its jurisdiction and (ii) that the order which
Supreme Court passes must be necessary for
doing “complete justice™ in the cause or matter
pending before it. Obviously the matter pending
before us in this appeal is the acquittal of two
accused respondents Dafader Marfoth Ali Shah
and LD (Dafader) Abul Hashem Mridha of the
charges under sections 302/34 and 302/109 of the
Penal Code. Leave to file this appeal was granted
to consider only whether the acquittal of the pres-
ent two accused respondents from the charges
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under sections 302/34 and 302/109 of the Penal
Code was correct and justified. So, obviously, the
question whether the acquittal of all the accused
persons from the charge of criminal conspiracy is
not at all a matter pending before us. It has already
been pointed out above that the present State-
appellant or any other aggrieved person had
opportunity to challenge the acquittal of accused
persons from the charge of criminal conspiracy as
per statutory provisions, but they did not avail that
opportunity and allowed a long period to be
elapsed rendering that opportunity to appeal time
barred and conferring the accused persons a right
to be treated acquitted from the charge of criminal
conspiracy as ordered by a court of law. In the
name of doing ‘complete justice’ this right of the
accused persons now cannot be ignored. '

242. In the case of AFM Naziruddin vs Mrs
Hameeda Banu [45 DLR (AD) 38] this Division
has cautioned the exercise of power of doing com-

plete justice thus:

“In the name of ‘complete justice’ if a
frequent recourse is made to article 104 then
this Court will be exposed to the opprobrium
of purveyor of “palmtree justice”.

243. In that case this Division observed alsp
thus:

“in the name of complete justice the
Appellate Division may not grant relief which
the Court of first instance will not be able
under the law to grant, otherwise no litigant,
in search of complete justice will rest till he
reaches the end of the long tunnel of litigation
in this Court.”

244. The learned Counsel for the State-
appellant have cited several cases of the apex
courts of this region where the apex courts exer-
cised the power of doing ‘complete justice’ by
issuing necessary orders. The learned Counsel
have cited the cases of DM Prem Kumari vs
Divisional Commissioner, Mysore, (2009) 12 SCC
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267, Gannysons Ltd. vs Sonali Bank, 37 DLR
(AD) 42, Balram Prasad Agarwal vs State of
Bihar, (1997) 9 SCC 338), Raziul Hasan vs
Badiuzzaman Khan, 48 DLR (AD) 71, AFM
Naziruddin vs Mrs. Hameeda Banu, (45 DLR
(AD) 38, Bangladesh vs Mashiur Rahman, 50
DLR (AD) 205, State vs Muhammad Nawaz, 18
DLR (SC) 503 and Chandrakant Patil vs State,
((1998) 3 SCC 38.

245. We have gone through all these Jjudg-
ments and found that the facts and circumstances
of all these cited cases were completely different
from the facts and circumstances of the present
case. In all those cases the Supreme Court exer-
cised the power of doing ‘complete justice” in the
matters which were pending before the Supreme
Court for decision.

246. In DM Prem Kumari vs Divisional
Commissioner, Mysore, the Supreme Court, con-
sidering the peculiar facts and circumstances of
the case, instead of deciding the matter on merits
which might have gone against appellant Prem
Kumari, directed the respondent authorities to
save appellant’s wrong appointment as primary
school teacher, without treating it as a precedent
in order to do complete justice. In that case the
matter for decision of the court was whether the
writ petitioner-appellant’s appointment as a pri-
mary school teacher was lawful.

247. In Gannysons vs Sonali Bank, Sonali
Bank obtained a decree in a suit for foreclosure of
mortgage of the property of Gannysons (which
was being treated as an abandoned property) and
levied execution of the decree. Gannysons filed
objection against the decree under section 47 of
the Code of Civil Procedure and the matter came
up before the Appellate Division which decided
the dispute in favour of Gannysons. But
Gannysons filed a review petition on the ground
that the order of the court was not fully in con-
formity with the decision. In allowing the review,
the court in exercise of the power under article
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104 gave relief to Gannysons declaring that the
property of Gannysons was not an abandoned
property against the fundamental principle of our
legal system of granting relief only to the person
approaching the court seeking it. The court exer-
cised this power saying that Gannysons had
already suffered and to compel it to further litiga-
tion in the form of a suit for declaring that the
properties in question were not abandoned prop-
erty would result not only in further harassment
but also long delay and deprivation of the enjoy-
ment of the property.

248. In Balaram Prasad Agarwal vs State of
Bihar, the accused persons were charge-sheeted
under sections 498A, 302 and 120B of Indian
Penal Code. But the trial court framed charge only
under section 302 of IPC which was not found
proved on trial by the trial court and the trial court
acquitted the accused persons from that charge
under section 302 of [PC, but the trial court, in its
judgment made some observations to the effect
that the evidence on record showed that the
accused persons used to torture the victim wife in
various way. The complainant, the father of the
victim filed revision against the acquittal of the
accused persons which ultimately came before the
Supreme Court of India. Considering the facts and
circumstances and evidence on record, the
Supreme Court, instead of remanding the case for
retrial, itself framed charge against the accused
persons under section 498A and on consideration
of the evidence on record found the accused per-
sons guilty under the said section and accordingly
convicted and sentenced them. In that case it was
held that in the circumstances of the case, the
Supreme Court can itself examine the question of
culpability of the accused for offence under the
said section so as to obviate protraction of trial
and multiplicity of proceedings against the
accused.

249. In Raziul Hasan vs Badiuzzaman Khan.
the respondent Badiuzzaman Khan filed a case
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before the Administrative Tribunal praying for a
declaration that he had been the Dircctor/Deputy
Secretary with effect from 18-04-1 = | or in the
alternative from 29-06-1981 and also for a decla-
ration that the placement of Raziul Hasan and
another above him in the seniority list was illegal
and void. The Administrative Tribunal allowed
that case. After disposal of that administrative tri-
bunal case Raziul Hasan, being informed about
that judgment of the Administrative Tribunal,
filed an appeal before the Administrative
Appellate Tribunal which was dismissed as time
barred. Thereafter, Raziul Hasan came to this
Division with a petition for leave to appeal and
leave was granted to consider the case of the
appellant Raziul Hasan for doing complete justice
under article 104 of the Constitution. Ultimately
this Division, on hearing both the parties, found
that the appellant Raziul Hansal was senior to
respondent and that a gross injustice had been
done to him for no fault or latches of his own and
held that since a valuable right accrued to the
appellant in law and fact it was the most appro-
priate case to exercise the jurisdiction under arti-
cle 104 of the Constitution and consequently
remanded the case to the Administrative Tribunal
to reconsider its order as to the gradation list only.

250. In AFM Naziruddin vs Mrs Hameeda
Banu, the appellant during the subsistence of his
marriage with the defendant built at his cost a
house on the land belonging to the defendant.
Subsequently the relationship became strained
and ended in dissolution. The appellant filed a suit
for declaration that he is the irrevocable licensee
of his wife and the real owner of the suit house.
The suit was decreed by the frial court, but was
dismissed by the High Court Division. This
Division, considering the facts and circumstances
of the case, made a rough and ready adjustment of
the claims of the parties and ordered that the
appellant will retain his possession in that floor of
the suit building where he was then residing with
no right to transfer his possession, the respondent
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may recover possession thereof any time within
one year from date on payment of Tk.6,00,000
(the construction cost of the building) in default of
which the appellant would have only right to live
in that floor of the building where he was then
residing during his life time.

- 251. In Bangladesh vs Mashiur Rahman, an
ex-parte decree was challenged on the ground of
being obtained by fraud by filing miscellaneous
case under Order IX, rule 13 of the Code of Civil
Procedure. The trial court dismissed that miscella-
neous case though found that fraud seemed to
have been practised. The High Court Division
also dismissed the miscellaneous appeal filed
against the judgment of the trial court. The case
ultimately came up before this Division. This
Division having found that fraud was practised
upon court in obtaining that ex-parte decree set
aside that ex-parte decree though the application
for setting aside that ex-parte decree was barred
by limitation for doing complete justice by pre-
venting abuse of the process of law,

252. In the case of State vs Muhammad
Nawaz the Supreme Court, issued suo moto
notices to the accused persons who were improp-
erly acquitted by the High Court and ultimately,
after hearing, convicted and sentenced some of
those accused persons exercising its power under
article 104 of the Constitution. In that case 28 per-
sons were tried for offences under sections 148,
333, 307 and 302 of the Penal Code read with sec-
tion 140 of the Penal Code by the trial court. The
trial court acquitted 10 persons and convicted 18
of the accused. Muhammad Nawaz and Fazal
Ilahi-the two accused persons were sentenced to
death while the rest were awarded sentences of
transportation for life. On appeal the High Court
upheld the convictions and sentences of 7 of the
convicts and acquitted the rest. The two accused
who were awarded death sentences were also
among those acquitted. The 7 persons whose
appeal was dismissed by the High Court were
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granted special leave to appeal and by the same
order, leave was also granted to the State to appeal
against the acquittal of the remaining 11 persons
by the High Court. Ultimately the Supreme Court,
on objection raised from the accused persons
rejected the appeal preferred by the State on the
ground that it was barred by limitation. However,
the Supreme Court found out that “the High Court
purported to adopt two criteria for convicting
some of the accused persons. They held that 6 of
the accused who had admitted their presence dur-
ing the occurrence and had raised the plea of self-
defence, should be convicted along with those
who were named by the injured PWs as their own
assailants. While giving effect to these findings,
however, the High Court committed an error in so
far as, inadvertently, it failed to record convictions
against three of those 6 who had admittedly been
present at the spot at the relevant time and 2 oth-
ers who had been named by Raja PW as his own
assailants, those 5 being included among those
who were convicted by the trial judge.” On such
findings the Supreme Court held, “the error being
patent on the record in this case, this Court should
have suo motu issued notices to those of the
respondents who had secured an acquittal from
the High Court as the result of the above men-
tioned error.” The Supreme Court ultimately, after
hearing the learned Counsel for those acquitted
accused persons convicted and sentenced some of
them.

253. In the case of Chandra Kant Patil vs
State [(1998) 3 SCC 38] the Supreme Court of
India, considering the very grave nature of the
offence committed, enhanced the sentences of the
accused appellants by exercising its power of
doing complete justice.

254. Obviously in all these above cited
cases, excepting the case of State vs Muhammad
Nawaz, the apex courts exercised the power of
doing complete justice in the matters pending
before the court and in very exceptional circum-
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stances. In the case of State vs Muhammad Nawaz
the Supreme Court exercised the power of doing
complete justice to rectify the patent error made
inadvertently by the High Court. So none of these
cited cases is of any help for the learned Counsel
of the State-appellant to support their argument
that in the present appeal filed challenging the
acquittal of two accused-respondents from the
charges under sections 302/34 and 302/109 of the
Penal Code the other accused persons-who were
acquitted by the trial court from the charge of
criminal conspiracy-can be convicted now on the
charge of criminal conspiracy.

255. However, considering the above stated
facts and circumstances and the legal position we
do not find that there is any scope now to convict
the accused persons or any of them on the charge
of criminal conspiracy by exercising the inherent
power of this Division under article 104 of the
Constitution.

256. However, this appeal is allowed. The
impugned judgment of the High Court Division.
so far as it relates to the accused-respondents
Dafader Marfoth Ali Shah and LD (Dafader) Abul
Hashem Mridha is set aside. The order of convic-
tion and sentence of these two accused-respon-
dents passed by the trial court is maintained.

Syed Mahmud Hossain J : I have gone
through the separate judgments prepared by
Surendra Kumar Sinha, J. and Nazmun Ara
Sultana, J. I agree with the reasoning and findings
given by Nazmun Ara Sultana, J.

Muhammad Imman Ali J : | have gone
through the separate judgments prepared
Surendra Kumar Sinha, J. and Nazmun A
Sultana, J. I agree with the reasoning and findin
given by Nazmun Ara Sultana, J.

Ed.
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behind the back of the leave-petitioner, we are of the view

that as soon as the leave-petition was filed the leave-peti-

tioner has the option to assail the judgment on merit.
(16 & 14)

Sara Hossain, Advocate, instructed by Md Zahirul
Islam. Advocate-on-Record—For the Petitioner.

None Represented—Respondents.

Judgment

Syed Mahmud Hossain J : This civil petition
for leave to appeal is directed against the judgment
and order dated 5-8-2010 passed by the High Court
Division in Writ Petition No. 8493 of 2006 making
the Rule absolute with directions.

2. The facts, leading to the filing of this civil
petition for leave to appeal, in a nutshell, are:

The writ petition is premised on an advertise-
ment published in a comic magazine named
“Bicchu™ dated 6-8-2006 which was circulated as a
magazine of a national daily “The Daily Jugantor”.
The advertisement was published for the subscribers
of Grameen Phone, Bangla Link and Aktel (present-
fy. Robi) for the downloading of Ringtone to be
played in their respective mobile phones. The said
advertisement contained an assortment of songs,
both folk and modem, in Bangla and Hindi as well
#s some English songs to be played in the mobile
phome of any individual subscriber as a Ringtone
captioned under the heading ‘Fem fraw, ‘w’,
TR, RN ¢ ‘eRNfe’, ‘qwm Wy étc.
I ®e Bm of ‘=PTEIR’, songs, the first item
#ppearmg therein is the National Anthem of
Bamgiadesn
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4, Being aggrieved by and dissatisfied with
the failure of the writ-respondents to withdraw pub-
lic offer published in the Daily Jugantor’s comic
magazine ‘Bicchu’ dated 6-8-2006 so far as it relates
to downloading option for the National Anthem of
Bangladesh as Ringtone, the petitioner filed a writ
petition before the High Court Division and obtained
Rule Nisi in Writ Petition No. 8493 of 2006.

5. The writ-respondent Nos. 6 and 7 filed sep-
arate powers but no affidavit-in-opposition was filed
controverting the material statements made in the
writ petition.

6. The learned Judges of the High Court
Division upon hearing both the sides by the judg-
ment and order dated 5-8-2010 made the Rule
absolute with directions.

7. Feeling aggrieved by and dissatisfied with
the judgment and order of the High Court Division,
proforma-respondent No. 10 as the leave-petitioner
has filed this civil petitions for leave to appeal
before this Division.

8. Ms Sara Hossain, learned Advocate,
appearing on behalf of the leave petitioner, submits
that the High Court Division committed illegality in
directing the leave-petitioner to donate a sum of
Taka 50,00,000 (fifty lakh) to the National Institute
of Cancer Research Institute and Hospital,
Mohakhali, Dhaka, without issuing any Rule on it
and as such, the aforesaid direction should be set
aside. She further submits that in the judgment deliv-
ered in Civil Petition for Leave to Appeal Nos. 342
and 327 of 2011 arising out of the same impugned
judgment this Division directed that national anthem
could be played only at the places and on the occa-
sions specified in the Rules and that such restriction
should be removed and that national anthem may be
sung so long as it is done with due respect as a salu-
tation to the motherland and proper decorum is
maintained.

9. We have considered the submissions of the
learned Advocate of the leave-petitioner, perused the
impugned judgment and the materials on record.

68 DLR (AD) (2016)

10. Admittedly, from the same impugned judg-
ment, Civil Petition for Leave to Appeal Nos. 342
and 327 of 2011 were filed and those civil petitions
were disposed of by the judgment dated 11-5-2015.

11. In the earlier judgment, we have held that
the national anthem is the nation’s cherished proper-
ty. We protect the national anthem because it is an
important song of national unity. Bangladeshis
regard the national anthem with an almost mystical
reverence regardless of what sort of social, political
or philosophical beliefs they may have. Commercial
use of national anthem amounts to its desecration.

12. There is no gainsaying the fact that the
leave-petitioner has been charging revenue for play-
ing the national anthem on the mobile phones. On
consideration of the relevant provision of National
Anthem Rules, 1978, we have held that national
anthem can be played only at the places and on the
occasion specified in the Rules. We are, however, of
the view that singing of national anthem should not
be restricted in respect of the occasions and places
specified in the Rules.

13. It is not possible to give an exhaustive list
of occasions, on which, singing (as distinct from
playing) of the national anthem can be permitted.
But there is no objection to the singing of the nation-
al anthem accompanied by mass singing so long as
it is done with due respect as a salutation to the
motherland and proper decorum is maintained.
Similar view has also been expressed in “the orders
relating to national anthem of India.”

14. In the earlier judgment, we have held that
there is no scope for commercial use of national
anthem and such commercial use of national anthem
shows utter disrespect to the national anthem. As
regards passing the judgment behind the back of the
leave-petitioner, we are of the view that as soon
the leave-petition was filed the leave-petitioner h
the option to assail the judgment on merit.

15. Ms Sara Hossain, however, could not as
the impugned judgment on merit.
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16. In the light of the findings made above, we
are of the view that the High Court Division was jus-
tified in making the Rule absolute. We are, however,
of the view that singing of national anthem should
not be restricted only in respect of the occasions
specified in the Rules only. We have already modi-
fied the restriction of the singing of national anthem
in the body of the judgment.

17. The donation to be paid by the leave-peti-
tioner is reduced to Taka 30,00,000 (thirty lakh) and
the amount shall have to be paid to the National
[nstitute of Cancer Research Institute and Hospital,
Mohakhali, Dhaka.

Accordingly, this cw;i petition is disposed of
with the observations made above.

Ed.
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tion 4 of the Partition Act cannot be invoked to
buy out the share of a stranger purchaser in the
suit land.

SJ Kishori Sarker vs Azizur Rahman, 40 DLR (AD)
150 and Sayesta Bibi vs Juma Sha, 42 DLR (AD) 53 ref.

AJ Mohammad Ali, Senior Advocate, instructed by
Zainul Abedin, Advocate, Advoca!e -on-Record—For the

Petitioner.

Mahbubey Alam, Senior Advecate, with Abdul
Quiyum, Senior Advocate, instructed by Syed Mahbubur
Rahman, Advocate-on-Record—For the Respondents (In
both the Petitions).

Judgment
Md Muzammel Hossain CJ : This civil peti-
tion for leave to appeal is directed against the
impugned judgment and order dated 2-8-2012
passed by the High Court Division in Civil
Revision No. 5786 of 2000 discharging the Rule.

2. The facts relevant for disposal of the Rule
are that the respondent No. 1 Abdul Wahab as
plaintiff on 29-1-1975 filed Title Suit No. 17 of
1975 in the 3rd Court of the then sub-ordinate
Judge, (presently Joint District Judge) Dhaka for
partition of his purchased land mentioned in the
schedule B to the plaint out of Schedule A to the
plaint stating inter-alia, that the CS Plot Nos. 16
and 17 under Khatian No. 842 “Dha” of Mouza
Shahar Dhaka belonged to Sonabi Bewa in rayati
jote right and in the column her name was shown
as tenant as Dhakhalker korfa tenant; that after CS
operation, the Korfader left the plot and went
away to some other village and Sonabi Bewa
brought the plot to her khas possession and con-
tinued her possession; that CS plot No.19 was
Baganbari which is adjacent to Plot No. 17; that
Sonabi Bewa began to possess about 08 decimals
of land of CS Plot No.19; that while Sonabi Bewa
was in possession of the said plots by erecting
huts and letting out those to tenants, she died leav-
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ing behind a son, salam and a daughter, Akhtbi
Bibi who inherited the property; that in course of
time Salam died leaving only son, Rahlm, who
got his father’s share; that Rahim and his aunt
Akhtbi Bibi sold their shares to one Ram Charan
Femari by registered deed dated 20-12-1946 and
delivered possession; that while in possession of
the purchased land, Ram Charan Femari sold .262
ajutangsha of land from CS Plot No. 16 ta one
Nagar Bashi Gope and delivered possession to
him; that Ram Charan Femari subseqw&nﬁy sold
the rest from plot No.16 along with the land of
Plot No. 17 quite openly and exclusw@y WWI
Mohammad Elahadad by registered deed dated
22-3-1947 and delivered possessmn to t {’.?«.’_-‘?-'
chaser; that Mvi Elahadad while in su&f
sion adversely to all others died leaving 2 iséns
namely, Mohd. Khaleque Newaj and Mohd.
Rahim Newaj and 3 daughters, naméfy, ﬁ%gum
Raushan Akhtar Khatun, Begum Ayesha Akhter
Khatoon and Begum Nasima Akhtar Khatoon
who inherited their father’s entire share and while
they were in possession at a time found it difficult
to manage the same personally and thus the son
Rahim Newaj and his mother and sisters appoint-
ed Md Khaleque Newaj as their constituted
Attorney to manage the same and to transfer if
required; that Md Khaleque Newaj while in such
possession transferred 2125 ajutangsha of land
from CS plot No. 17 appertaining to Khatian No.
842 “DA” of Mouza Shahar Dhaka for self anc
Attorney of others to defendant No. 1 by registere
deed Nos.139, and 140 dated 4-1-54 and 5:
respectively; that the transferee went
sion and by erecting structures them_ﬁ@_; been
possessing personally in some portion and letting
out the same to different persons; that the heirs of
Md Elahabad transferred some land to d
Nos.1 and 3 and thus they acquired .
tangsha of land in plot No.17 and .310
sha of land in plot No.16 by registered
.0800 ajutansha of land in CS Plot No. 19
their predecessors were in adverse pe session
from long before; that the said land Wctly
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recorded in SA plot No.1162 under SA Khatian
No. 174 in the name of defendant No.1 to 3; that
the defendant No.2 while in possession in ejmali
with other brothers sold the land mentioned in the
schedule B to the plaint by two registered deeds
dated 5-2-1974 and the defendant Nos. 1 to 3 sold
their share to defendant Nos. 4 and 5 which was
later on acquired by DIT; (presently RAJUK); that
the suit land never partitioned and the plaintiff in
January 1975 requested to make partition but the
defendant did not comply with the request, hence
the suit.

3. The defendant No. 1 along with his wife
contested the Title Suit No. 17 of 1975 by filing a
joint written statement. Upon consideration of the
cases of both the parties the then sub-ordinate
Judge, Dhaka decreed the suit in preliminary form
and allotted a saham to the plaintiff in respect of
.1100 ajutangsha of land, on partition of the suit |
property described in the Schedule A to the plaint.

4. Thereafter, the trial court appointed an
Advocate Commissioner to make the preliminary
decree final. In this state of affairs the plaintiff
decree-holder started taking preparation to enter
into the suit land with undesirable elements in the
name of the Commissioners of work for repay-
ment of suit land etc. The defendant has been liv-
ing in the suit property jointly with some other
defendants and to save his undivided dwelling
house from the stranger-purchaser preferred an
application under section 4 of the Partition Act to
purchase the share of the plaintiff in the undivid-
ed dwelling house property in suit at a price to b
determined by the court and the said applicatio
was registered as Miscellaneous Case No. 725 0
1989. ;

5. The predecessor of the present petitione
No.1 filed Miscellaneous Case No. 725 of 198
on 4-8-1989 before the learned sub-ordinal
Judge, (presently Joint District Judge) 3rd Cour
Dhaka under section 4 of the Partition Act arisin
out of the original Title Suit No. 17 of 1975 fil
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by respondent No. 1 for partition.

6. The Title Suit Nb. 17 of 1975 was
decreed in preliminary form by the learned sub-
ordinate Judge on 23-6-1979 and the plaintiff-
respondent No.1 got saham in respect of 0.11 acre
of land. Thereafter an Advocate Commissioner
was appointed on 5-9-1979. Against the said
decree dated 23-6-1979 the defendant-petitioner
unsuccessfully preferred First Appeal No. 1 of
1980 before the High Court Division and the pre-
liminary decree was affirmed on 22-3-1984 with
modification in holding that the plamtlff-respon—
dent No.1 would get a saham of 0.1062'/, acre of
land instead of 0.11 acre. Being aggrieved by the
impugned judgment and decree passed by the
High Court Division in FA No. 1 of 1980 the pred-
ecessor of the petitioner preferred the Civil
Appeal No. 2 of 1985 before the Appellate
Division which was dismissed affirming the
judgment and decree passed in FA No. 1 of 1980
by the High Court Division.

7. While the position was such the instant
Miscellaneous Case No. 725 of 1989 was filed by
Waliullah the predecessor of the petitioner stating,
inter alia, that the said Waliullah and the opposite
party Nos. 2-8 of the original application being
Miscellaneous Case No. 725 of 1989 are members
of the dwelling house of the joint undivided fam-
ily. The present opposite party No. 1 has con-
structed a one-storied building at the east side of
the suit plot and the building is a commercial con-
cern and a restaurant. The petitioner also made
other 11 semi-pucca rooms which were let out to
different commercial units including, SWASH
Corporation and Abul Watch. The opposite party
Nos. 3-8 of the original application have con-
structed semi-pucca homestead adjacent to Sadar
Road which were let out to defendant Nos. 7to 17
of the original Title Suit No.17 of 1975. The oppo-
site party No.l1 claimed that he had purchased
about 0.11 acre of land from oppesite party No. 2
by two deeds of sale dated 25-2-1974 and 5-2-
1974 and opposite party No. 1 had no construction
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~ in his purchased land in the suit plot. In the suit

plot No.1162 there were 4 semi-pucca rooms up
to 1966 and after 1966 the petitioner constructed
buildings at his own cost having approved plan
from DIT. The opposite party Nos. 1 is a stranger
purchaser and not a member of the undivided
family. The possession of the opposite party No.1
would be a threat to the privacy of the members of
the family in respect of their prestige, life, priva-
cy, pardah and peaceful possession. In order to
prevent the unexpected illegal trespass of opposite
party No. 1 the petitioner filed the instant miscel-
laneous case under section 4 of the Partition Act

8. The opposite party- respondent No.1 con-
tested the case by filing a written objection deny-
ing all material allegations made in the applica-
tion contending, inter alia, that to delay and frus-
trate the decree upheld upto the Appellate
Division the petitio'n:er filed the instant case. The
instant case is not mamtamab]e without a specific
undivided family dwellmg house. The land earlier
was vacant land in which later on many construc-
tions were made and gradually became a com-
mercial area. Admittedly the said area is a com-
mercial area and not a dwelling house and has
been let out to different persons including defen-
dant Nos. 7-17 of the original suit. The petitioner
himself has also started a hotel business in the
name of ‘Aloka Hotel’. The original partition suit
was long ago decreed on 23-6-1979 which was
affirmed by the Appellate Division. The opposite
party never intended to harass the members of the
family of the petitioner. The suit land is not a
dwelling house rather it is a commercial area
which is let out to different persons and it also
includes a hotel and different kinds of shops and
there is no legal reason to claim the commercial
area as a dwelling house belonging to the mem-
bers of an individed family. The opposite party
No. 1 has got a shop and some show rooms in a
part of suit land which are let out to the tenants.
The case is liable to be dismissed.

9. The trial court found that the suit land

L
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adjoining to the North South Road is a commer-
cial area and there is no reason to apprehend about
destruction of privacy and-pardah of the family
members of the petitioner, specially when there is
a restaurant-business conducted by the son of the
petitioner and there is no legal reason to invoke
section 4 of the Act in the given circumstances.

10. There were series of litigations mostly
regarding interlocutory matters and ultimately, the
learned sub-ordinate Judge, 3rd Court, Dhaka dis-
missed the Miscellaneous Case under section 4 of
the Partition Act by judgment and order dated 5-
9-2000. :

11. Bing aggrieved by the impugned judg-
ment and order dated 5-9-2000 passed by the
learned sub-ordinate Judge, the petitioner pre-
ferred the revisional application being Civil
Revision No. 5786 of 2000 before the High Court
Division and obtained the Rule on 14-12-2000. A
Single Bench of the High Court Division by the
impugned judgment and order dated 2-8-2012 dis-
charged the Rule and thereby affirmed the judg-
ment and order dated 5-9-2000 passed by the
learned sub-ordinate Judge (Presently Joint
District Judge). The opposite party No.l petition-
er being aggrieved by the impugned judgment and
order dated 2-8-2012 passed by a Single Bench of
the High Court Division preferred the instant civil
petition for leave to.appeal before this Division.

12. Mr AJ Mohammad" Ali, the learned
Senior Advocate, appearing for the petitioner sub-
mits that the High court Division without consid-
ering the provisions of section 4 of the Partition
Act and the facts of the present case regarding
undivided Muslim family dwelling house proper-
ty discharged the Rule by the impugned judgment
and order which is liable to be set-aside.

13. Mr Mahbubey Alam, the learned Senior
Advocate, appearing for the respondents submits
that there is no illegality in the impugned judg-
ment and order passed by the High Court Division
and, as such, there is no scope for interference by

this Division. He then submits that the High Court
Division rightly found that the trial court upon
proper appreciation of evidence, particularly the
evidence of PW 3 and other materials on record
dismissed the Miscellaneous Case because the
subject matter of the dispute not being a dwelling
house belonging to an undivided family is nothing
but a commercial place upon which the son of the
petitioner has been running restaurant business.
Mr Alam then submits that the petitioner failed to
prove that the suit property is an undivided home-
stead and, as such, the Miscellaneous Case filled
under section 4 of the Partition Act is miscon-
ceived in law. The learned Senior Advocate con-
tends that admittedly in paragraphs 3 and 5 of the
plaint of the Miscellaneous Case the petitioner
stated that the opposite party No.1 has got no con-
struction in the suit plot inasmuch as the plaint
does not disclose definite identification of the
dwelling house as to the quantum of land covering
the same. Mr Mahabubey Alam finally submits
that the essential ingredients of section 4 of the
Partition Act having not been proved and estab-
lished by the petitioner the Miscellaneous Case is
not tenable in law which has been rightly found
by the High Court Division in passing the
impugned judgment and order in discharging the
Rule and affirming the order passed by the learned
sub-ordinate Judge (presently Joint District
Judge) and, as such, the leave petition is liable to
be dismissed.

14. We have heard the learned Senior
Advocates for both the parties and perused the
leave petition, impugned judgment and order
passed by the High Court Division in Civil
Revision No. 5786 of 2000 and other materials on
record.

15. In the instant case, Waliullah, the prede-
cessor of the petitioner Hossain Shahid Chinu was
the defendant No. 1 in Title Suit No. 17 of 1975
which was a suit for partition filed by Abdul
Wahab as the plaintiff. The Title Suit No. 17 o
1975 was decreed in preliminary form by the
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learned sub-ordinate Judge (present Joint District
Judge), Dhaka on 23-6-1979 and the plaintiff-
opposite party got saham in respect of 0.11 acres
of land. An Advocate commissioner was appoint-
ed on 5-9-1979. Being aggrieved by the aforesaid
judgment and decree the defendant No. 1-peti-
tioner preferred First Appeal No.1 of 1980 before
the High Court Division which was dismissed
affirming the preliminary decree on 22-3-1984
with modification; that the plaintiff-opposite party
No.1 would get a saham of 0.1062'/, acre of the
suit land instead of 0.11 acre of land. Being
aggrieved by the judgment and order passed in FA
1 of 1980 the defendant-appellant preferred Civil
Appeal No. 2 of 1985 by leave of this Division.
The Civil Appeal No. 2 of 1985 was dismissed
affirming the judgment and decree passed by the
High Court Division in First Appeal No. 01 of
1980.

16. On perusal of the facts of the case and
the evidence of witnesses it appears that the peti-
tioner filed the Miscellaneous case under section
4 of Partition Act in order fo delay the decree
passed in Title Suit No. 17 of 1975 which was
decreed in preliminary form against the predeces-
sor of the present petitioner wherein a saham of
0.11 acre of land was granted in favour of the
plaintiff-respondent which was affirmed with
modification of the quantity of saham from 0.11
acre to 0.1062'/, acre. The High Court Division
having considered the facts and circumstances of
the case and the evidence of witnesses rightly
found that according to the evidence of PW 1 the
defendant Nos. 2-17 of the original suit are admit-
tedly the tenants of shops under the petitioner and
according to the evidence of PW 2 the suit land is
situated adjacent to the pavement of the North
South Road and according to P'W 3 the petitioner
re-sides in a separate b ilding with his family.
From the evidence ofthe witnesses it appears that
the suit land is not a W or a dwelling
house but is a commercial place. Moreover, in
paragraph 2 of the Miscellaneous case petitioner
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admitted that he has constructed many shops in
the suit land in which his son has been running a
restaurant business under the name and style
“Chinu Curry House” and he rented all other
shops to different tenants including Swash
Corporation and Abul Watch for running their
business. The petitioner filed the application
under section 4 of Partition Act being
Miscellaneous Case No. 725 of 1985 to purchase
through court the share which was purchased ear-
lier by the stranger purchaser of the commercial
place under the guise of an undivided homestead
or dwelling house. The object of legislation is to
preserve the sanctity of an undivided dwelling
house against the intrusion of a stranger on the
basis of purchase of a portion of such a dwelling
house from some other co-sharers. In the case of
SJ Kishori Sarker vs Azizur Rahman reported in
40 DLR (AD) 150 this Division held that “the pur-
pose of section 4 is to see that a transferee out
sider does not force his way into a dwelling house
in which other members of the tranferor’s family
have a right to live, Once the partition decree is
made in preliminary form the rest is for the
Commissioner, but the Court at that stage is not
concerned as to what direction should be given to
the Commissioner for completing the partition.”
In the instant case the High Court Division having
considered the facts and circumstances of the case
and the object of the legislation rightly observed
as under: “The object of this legislation is reason-
able and it is quite consonance with the principle
of equity, justice and good conscience. Since in
the instant ease the plaintiff-petitioner opted to
purchase the share of the purchaser in the undi-
vided homestead in question immediately after
the purchase of the same by the stranger defen-
dant, we are of the view that the proper question
to determine whether the property is a dwelling
hut or not when the petitioner plaintiff ostensibly
opted to buy up the share of the stranger purchas-
er in the undivided dwelling house but it appears
that the property in question is not a dwelling
house belonging to an undivided family. The prin-
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ciple of law enunciated by their Lordships in the
case of Sayesta Bibi vs Juma Sha reported in 42
DLR (AD) 53 applies to the facts and circum-
stances of the present case and we are bound to be
in respectful agreement with the view taken there-
in.- XifETs i

_17. Proper safeguard have been provided for
the exercise of the statutory discretion. The parti-
tion Act also confers the valuable right of the pre-
emption on co-shares. Besides, under its provi-
sions, a stranger who has purchased a share in an
unclaimed dwelling house and seeks partition, can
be compelled to sell his share to the members of

the family who are the owners of the rest of the

house, and this prevents the instruction of the
stranger into the circle of the co-owners and thus
preserves the sanct1ty of the family dwelling
house.”

18. The High Court Division further
observed as under:

“Dwelling house in section 4 includes the
land and appurtenances which are ordinarily
and reasonably necessary for its enjoyment
and thus it includes garden, courtyard,
orchard but a.commercial public area cannot
became a part of the dwelling house, The
expression ‘dwelling house belonging to an
undivided family’ appearing in section 4 has
been borrowed from section 4 of the Transfer
of Property Act and bears the same meaning,
a . commercial business place cannot be
termed as a dwelling house under section 4 of
the Partition Act.” From the materials evi-
dence on record the High Court Division
found.- that the suit land is not a dwelling
house but it is a commercial business place
which includes restaurant and hotel run by the
petitioner and many shops rented to different
shop keepers for running business as com-
mercial place. The High Court Division also
found that the application under section 4 of
the Partition Act does not show any specific
identification of the dwelling house that cover
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the specific area of the suit land. From a clear
reading of the plaint of the Miscellaneous
case it does not appear that a specific and def-
inite case on dwelling house has been made
out. The High Court Division rightly found
that there are many shops and restaurant in
the suit plot and that the petitioners failed to
prove that the suit land is a dwelling house.
Considering the facts and circumstances of
the case, the High Court Division rightly held
that one cannot invoke section 4 of the
Partition Act to buy the share of a stranger
purchaser in the undivided commercial place
under the guise of undivided dwelling house.
Accordingly, the High Court Division rightly
found that “The trial court has arrived at a
correct decision upon proper appreciation of
pleading and evidence that the case of
dwelling house is not proved in evidence and
the property is a commercial one. Thus, there
is nothing to .interfere with the impugned
order.”

19. In view of the foregoing discussions,
observations and findings we are of the view that
the High Court Division rightly found that the suit :
land is not an undivided dwelling house rather it |
is admittedly a commercial place on which peti-
tioners and other co-sharers have been conducting
their business treating the suit land as commercial
premises. Since the suit land is not a undivided |
dwelling house but a commercial place an appli- |
cation under section 4 of the Partition Act cannot
be invoked to buy out the share of a stranger pur-
chaser in the suit land.

20. For the aforesaid reasons we do not find
any illegality in the impugned judgment and order
passed by the High Court Division and, as such,
no interference is called for by this Division.

21. In_the result, the leave petition is dis-
missed and the impugned judgment and order
passed by the High Court Division is affirmed.

Ed.
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ment) (LX of2013)
Section 15

Schedule offence&—&mces punishable
under sections 420, 462A, 4623,466 467, 468,
469 and 471 of the Penﬂ Gode have been
inserted in the schedule for the first time as
offences triable by the Special Judge under the
Durnity Daman Commission Ain without spec-
lfymg as to whether those offences are connect-
ed with the offences mentioned under the
Prevention of Corruption Aect and offences
punishable under sections 161, 162, 163, 164,
165, 166, 167, 168, 169, 217, 218, 409 and 477A
| of the Penal Code Wm arrayed as
- offences triable by the Sp ecial
son of this insertion of ﬂ;t&
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(From the judgment and |
#= High Court Division in
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Editor's Note: The case r
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tigations and trials of the proceedings under
the said offence have been postponed and
thereby administration of criminal Justice is
being hampered. :

We also find no cogent ground for inclusion of those
offences in the schedule to the Durnity Daman
Commission Ain _unIesS and_“untill those offences are relat-
ed to or conne_cted with the offeﬁces described- in the
schedule to the Durnity Daman Commission Ain. If the
cases in respect of those offences are investigated by the
police officers who have power to investigate those

offences and the Judicial Magistrates who have power to

inquire and try in respect of those offences, should inquire

and try those offence and if the ordinary criminal courts
are allowed to proceed with the trial of those offences, the
ends of justice will be defeated. iy 1 &12)

Code of Criminal Procedure (vor 1898)
Section 205C

Police have already submitted charge-
sheet against the accused and therefore, no fur-
ther investigation is necessary into the allega-
tions made in the FIR. We direct the
Commission to transmit the record if the
record has not been transmitted in the mean-
time along with the police report to the court of
Chief Metropolitan Magistrate for passing nec-
essary orders in accordance with law. The
learned Magistrate shall examine the record of
the case and if he finds that a prima facie
offence is disclosed, he shall proceed with the
case in accordance with section 205C of the
Code. ..(15)

Abdus Salam Mamun, Advocate, instructed by
Mohammad Abdul Hai, Advocate-on-Record—For the
Petitioner (In CriP No. 297 of 2015).

Momiazuddin Fakir. Additional Attorney-General,
fwith Khurshid Alam Khan, Advocate), instructed by Sufia
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Khatun, Advocate-on-Record—~For the Petitioner (In CriP.
Nos. 538 of 2011 & 345 of 2015).

None Represented—For the Respondents (‘fri CriP
Nos. 538 of 2014 & 345 of 2015). sl 2

Judgment
‘Surendra Kumar Sinha CJ : The &lay m
filing these leave petitions are condoned. In these
petitions common question of law is involved and

accordingly these petitions are d1spase¢oﬁby this
order. ¥ o

2. In Criminal Petition No. 297 of 2015 the
petitioner Al-haj Md Younus has been WW
before the Divisional Special Judge, Chittagong
for an offence punishable under sections W’lﬂ?
of the Penal Code for causing loss of Taka
76,00,000 by misuse of power in constructing the
Sarak Bhaban at Gashbaria under Follce Staﬁﬂn'
Chandnaliash, Chittagong. :

3. In Criminal Petition No. 538 of 2014, the
respondent No.1 was being prosecuted before the
Divisional Special Judge, Chittagong for an
offence punishable under sections 409/109 of the
Penal Code read with section 5(2) of Act Il of
1947 for alleged misappropriation of Taka
40,38,779 on the allegation that the contractor
without completmg the works wnhdrew ﬁe sald
amount.

4. In Criminal Petition No.345 of 2(
respondent No. 1 was being prosecuted
offence punishable under section 420:"{
Penal Code read with section 5(2) of M"ﬁ of

1947 for selling the disputed land to one Md'
Masudur Rahman in 2011 suppressing thembf'

mortgaging the same with the Agrani Bank He
Office.

5. Common question of lawmmm&e

High Court Division is that the prdbae&%hgs
before the Special Judges were abu ﬂﬁ“ the
process of the court, inasmuch as, the Specia

"_'?gm ‘
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Judges had no jurisdiction to hold the trial of the
cases. In two cases the accused persons being not
public servants, it was argued that their trials
under the Criminal Law Amendment Act were
without jurisdiction. In other case, it was argued
that the Special Judge had no jurisdiction, inas-
much as, the allegations made in the FIR are of
civil nature. ;

6. The High Court Division did not quash
the proceedings in Special Case No.13 of 2002
against Al-Haj Md Younus, but quashed the pro-
ceedings in Special Case No. 13 of 2002 pending
in the Court of Divisional: Special Judge,
Chittagong and GR Case No.158 of 2011 pending
in the Court of Metropolitan Magistrate, Dhaka
against Md Altaf Hossain.

7. In respect of proceedings in Special Case
No. 13 of 2002, besides Al-Haj Younus Mia, the
police report was submitted against two other per-
sons Col. Rtd. Oli Ahmed, then Communication
Minister and Md Nurul Anwar, Chairman . of
Harala Union Parishad. So far accused Al-Haj Md
Younus is concerned, the High Court Division
was of the view that withdrawal of the case in
favour of accused No. 1 Col. Oli Ahmed is not a
legal ground to hold the view that the Special
Judge has no jurisdiction to hold the trial, inas-
much as, the other two accused are public servants
and that there are allegations of misappropriation
of public money. In respect of the proceedings
against Md Nurul Alam though over the same
incident one Division Bench refused to quash the
proceedings and another Division Bench quashed
the proceedings on the reasoning that Md Nurul
Alam had acted in his private capacity not in the
capacity of Chairman of the Union Parishad. In
respect of other proceedings, another Division
Bench held that the learned Special Judge had no
jurisdiction, inasmuch as, whatever allegatio
were made against the accused which were n
triable under the Durnity Daman Commission
Ain, and therefore, the ordinary criminal cou
had jurisdiction to hold the trial of the case.
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8. Common questions of law raised in these
petitions are that the High Court Division erred in
law in refusing to quash the proceedings, inas-
much as, the petitioners not being public servants,
the Special Judge has no jurisdiction to hold trial
of the cases and that since the case against Col.
Rtd. Oli Ahmed has been withdrawn from the
prosecution, the prosecution of the petitioner Al-
Haj Md Younus under sections 409/109 of the
Penal Code by the Special Judge is without juris-
diction.

9. ‘Public Servant’ under the Prevention of
Corruption Act, 1947 denotes those mentioned in
section 21 of the Penal Code including an
employee of any Corporation or other body or
organization set by the government and includes a
Chairman, Vice Chairman, Member, Officer or
other employee of a local autherity or a Chairman
or other employee of any Corporation or other
body or organization constituted or established
under any law. So a wider definition has been
given in respect of public servants. In the said Act
the offences punishable under sections 161, 162,
163, 164, 165 and 165A of the Penal Code have
been taken as cognizable offences to constitute an
offence of misconduct by a public servant if he
dishonestly or fraudulently misappropriates or
otherwise converse to his own use any property
and trusted to him or under his control as a public
servant or allows any other person to do so.
Besides other acts, it also included offences men-
tioned in clauses (a) , (b) ,(c),(d) and (e) of sub-
section (1) of section 5 as offences of criminal
misconduct.

10. Al offences punishable under the
Prevention of Corruption Act, 1947; offences pun-
shable under sections 161-169, 217, 218, 408,
09 and 477A of the Penal Code; abetment

described in section 109 including comspiracies
described in section 1208 : described
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and offences punishable under Durnity Daman
Commission Ain, 2004 are triable by the Special
Judge. Under this provision an abetment by any
person of those offences with a public servant has
been given jurisdiction to a Special Judge to hold
trial, section 17 of the Durnity Daman Commi-
ssion Ain authorizes the Durnity Daman
Commission to direct investigation or i nquire and
institute and conduct cases in respect of offences
described in section 17 Ka. In the schedule,
besides the offences mentioned in the said Ain,
the offences punishable under the Prevention of
Corruption Act, 1947, sections 161-169,217,218,
409 and 477A of the Penal Code and abetment
described in section 109 including conspiracy
described in section 120B and attempts described
in section 511 of Penal Code have been made cog-
nizable by the Special Judge. This Ain has been
amended by Ain, LX of 2013, amongst others by
substituting the schedule in respect of offences
punishable under sections 161, 162, 163, 164,
163, 166,167, 168, 169, 217, 218, 408, 409, 420,
462A, 462B, 466, 467, 468, 469, 471 and 477A of
the Penal Code; offences punishable under the
Prevention Corruption Act; Money Laundering
Ain, 2012 and abetment described in section 109
including conspiracy described in section 120B
and attempts described in section 511 of the Penal
Code.

11. We notice the offences punishable under
sections 420, 462A, 462B, 466, 467, 468, 469 and
471 of the Penal Code have been inserted in the
schedule for the first time as offences triable by
the Special Judge under the Durnity Daman
Commission Ain without specifying as to whether
those offences are connected with the offences
mentioned under the Prevention of Corruption Act
and offences punishable under sections 161, 162,
163, 164, 165, 166, 167. 168, 169, 217, 218, 409
and 477A of the Penal Code have been arrayed as

offences triable by the Special Judge. By reason |

of this insertion of those offences, the investiga-

tions and trials of the proceedings under the said |
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offence have been postponed and thereby admin-
istration of criminal justice is being hampered.

12. We also find no cogent ground for inclu-
sion of those offences in the schedule to the

Durnity Daman Cominission Ain unless and until

those offences are related to or connected with the
offences described in the schedule to the Durnity
Daman Commission Ain. If the cases in respect of
those offences are investigated by the police offi-
cers who have power to investigate those offences
and the Judicial Magistrates who have power to

"inquire and try in respect of those offence, should

inquire and try those offence and if the ordinary
criminal courts are allowed to proceed with the
trial of those offences, the ends of _;ustice wdl be

; defeated

13. In course of hearing Mr Khurshi_d-..eA_lam
Khan, learned Counsel appearing for the Durnity
Daman Commission has frankly conceded that the
Durnity Daman Commission has no sufficient
officers to hold investigation in respect of com-
mission of those offences by the officers now
working with it and about 4,258 cases are pending
before it. He has contended that by reason of
inclusion of those offences without consultation
with the Durnity Daman Commission a deadlock
has been created over the investigation of those
offences. In view of the above, it is submitted that
those offences which are not related to or con-
nected with the offences mentioned in the sched-
ule in the Durnity Daman Commission Ain prior
to the amendment by Ain LX of 2013 should be
allowed to be investigated by the police apd tried
by the ordinary criminal courts for ends of justice.

14. In respect of Special Case No.13 of 2002,
one former Minister and some public servants
within the meaning of the Prevention of
Corruption Act have been arraigned and therefore,
there is no legal bar to holding trial of the case by
the Special Judge because if there is abetment of
offence by any person other than public servants-
the Special Judge has power to hold trial against

closed, he shall proceed with the case in accor:
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him. In respect of GR Case No.158 of 2011 whic
arose out of Turag Police Station Case No.
13(12)2011 dated 30th December, 2011, thou
the offence is not related to or connected wi
offences punishable under the Prevention o
Corruption Ain or other offences punishable
under the Criminal Law Amendment Act, the FIR
and police report disclose offences under the
Penal Code. The-case was initially started befo
the amendment and accordingly the High Cou
Division has rightly held that the ordinary crimi
nal court is competent to hold the trial of the case
We direct the court below to transmit the record o
the case to the competent court for trial. The Hi
Court ‘' Division, however, directed the learn
Magistrate to transmit the record of the case to t
Special Judge with a further direction to
learned Special Judge to direct the Commission
investigate into the allegations as to whether ith
power to take cognizance of the offence or not .

15. It is on record that the police have alread
submitted charge-sheet against the accused and
therefore, no further investigation is necessary
into the allegations made in the FIR. We direct the
Commission to transmit the record if the reco
has not béen transmitted in the mean time alon
with the police report to the court of Chi
Metropolltan Magistrate for passing necess
orders in accordance with law. The learned
Magistrate shall examine the record of the ¢
and if he finds that a prima facie offence is di

dance with section 205C of the Code of Criminal
Procedure.

16. In respect of Special Case No.13 of 200
there is no legal bar to holding the trial by
Special Judge since there are allegations that
accused respondents along with two others
withdrawn money without completing constru
tion works of a three storey building. There
allegations that the accused respondent and anot
er have derived pecuniary benefit out of the co
struction. The High Court Division erred in law i
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than one month at such convenient place as he
may determine informing the persons concerned
about the last date of filing objections under rule
30. Rule 30 prescribes procedure for making or
giving objection in respect of draft publication of
record-of-rights; whereas rule 31 provides the
forum for preferring appeal against the order
passed under rule 30. Before passing the final
order on such an appeal the contending parties
shall be afforded the opportunity to present their
part of the case. After disposal of appeal under
rule 31, the Revenue Officer shall have to take ini-
tiative for final publication of the record-of-rights
on obtaining necessary permission from the
Government to be issued by general or special
order for the purpose of printing of the same in
manuscript according to rule 32. Under rule 33 the
Revenue Officer shall publish the final record-of-
rights within 30(thirty) days from the date of
receipt of the general or special order of the
Government. Rule 34 provides procedure for issu-
ing certificate stating the facts of such final publi-
cation. The Government is empowered by sub-
rule (2) of Rule 34 to declare notification in the
official Gazette that the record-of-rights has been
finally published with regard to an specific area
for every village and such notification shall be
conclusive proof of such publication. Rule 35
speaks about presumption as to the correctness of
the record-of-rights. When a record-of-rights is
finally published under rule 33, the publication
shall be conclusive evidence that the record has
been duly revised under section 144 of the SAT
Act. Every entry in a record-of-rights finally pub-
lished shall be presumed to be correct until it is
rebutted on taking evidence before the appropriate
civil court.

15.Chapter VIII of the Rules, 1955 deals with
the power of the Settlement Officer in revising
record-of-rights under section 144 of the SAT Act.
In accordance with rule 36, a Revenue Officer
appointed with or without additional designation
of the Settlement Officer or Assistant Settlement
Officer for Revision of a record-of-rights under

HC-6
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Chapter XVII of the Act within any district, part
of a district or local area, shall have the power to
revise the same upon following the procedure as
laid down in the Code of Civil Procedure, 1908
for the trial of suit; and to enter upon any land
included within the area in'respect of which an
order under section 144 of the Act has been made
to survey, demarcate and prepare a map of the
same. Rule 40 empowers the Settlement Officer to
initiate proceedings relating to objections under
rule 30 and appeals under rule 31 for disposal by
any Assistant Settlement Officer subordinate to
him. Rule 41 empowers the Settlement Officer to
withdraw cases from the file of any Assistant
Settlement Officer or Revenue Officer subordi-
nate to him relating to any of the proceedings
under Chapter VII and to dispose of the same by
himself or by transfering them to any other
Assistant Settlement Officer or Revenue Officer
subordinate to him for disposal. However, rule 42
provides special power to the Revenue Officer
appointed with the additional designation of the
Settlement Officer who may at any time before
publication of the final record-of-rights direct that
any portion of proceedings referred to in rules 28
to 32 -in respect of any district, part of a district
or local area shall be cancelled and to take up the
proceeding afresh from such stage as he may
direct. Pursuant to a complaint or on receipt of an
official report the Revenue Officer with the addi-
tional Designation of Settlement Officer has juris-
diction to correct a fraudulent entry in the record-
of-rights upon consulting the relevant records and
making other inquiries as he may deem necessary
and direct excision of the fraudulent entry as per
the provision of rule 42A. However, before such
excision the contending parties shall be notified
giving opportunities of personal hearing. Under
rule 42B the Revenue Officer shall make correc-
tion of obvious errors i.e. arithmetical or clerical
before final publication of the record-of-rights.
Rule 44 empowers the Director of Land Records
and Surveys to discharge all the aforesaid func-
tions of a Revenue Officer as empowered under
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the aforesaid Rules including rules 40 to 42.

16. The provisions of rules 42 and 42A are
reproduced below for ready reference:

42. “Special power of Revenue-officer
appointed with the additional designation of
Settlement Officer: A Revenue-officer
appointed with the additional designation of
‘settlement officer’ may, at any time before
the publication of final record-of-rights,
direct that any portion of the proceedings
referred to in rules 28 to 32 in respect of any
district, part of a district, or local area, shall
be cancelled and that the proceedings shall be
taken up fresh from such stage as he.may
direct.”

42A. Correction of fraudulent em:ry
before final publication of record-of-rights-
The Revenue-officer, with the additional des-
ignation of ‘Settlement Officer’® shall, on
receipt: of an application or on receipt of an
official report for the correction of an entry
that has been procured by fraud in record-of-
rights before final publication thereof, after
consulting relevant records and making such
other enquiries as he deems necessary, direct
excision of the fraudulent entry and his act in
doing so shall not be open to appeal, at the
same time, the Revenue-officer shall make
the correct entry after giving the parties con-
cerned a hearing and recording his finding in
a formal proceeding for the purpose of future
reference.

17. On a perusal of both the provisions it
appears that rule 42 grants special power to the
Revenue Officer to cancel any portion of the pro-
ceedings referred to in rules 28 to 32 in respect of
any district, any part of a district or local area, and
direct the proceedings to be taken up afresh from
such stage as he may direct. The word “proceed-
ings” as appearing in rule 42 is to be understood
considering the context of each case. In the instant
case, after disposal of the appeal under rule 31 of
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the Rules, 1955 an application was filed before
the Settlement Officer at Dhaka mentioning rule

. 42A of the Rules, 1955 at the instance of the

respondent No. 5 praying for hearing of the four
appeal cases or taking a decision afresh as men-
tioned above. Rule 42A of the Rules, 1955 grants
power to the Revenue Officer with the additional
designation of the Settlement Officer to hear and
dispose of any application filed alleging fraud. In
the instant case the application as has been filed
by the respondent No. 5 mentioning rule 42A is a
misconceived one. The Revenue Officer after dis-
posal of the appeal under rule 31 may at any time
before final publication of the record-of-rights ini-
tiate a proceeding afresh at the stage he may
direct. That power of the Revenue Officer has
been given under rule 42 of the Rules, 1955. In the
instant case, we hold that the application as has
been filed by the respondent No. 5 should not be
treated as an application under rule 42A of the
Rules, 1955 rather it should be considered as an
application under rule 42 thereof. It is to be noted
here that misquoting of rule or non-mentioning of
a particular section in the concerned application
does not preclude the Settlement Officer to act
under applicable provision of the SAT Act and
Rules thereof for the purpose of arriving at a cor-
rect decision with regard to the final publication |
of the record-of- rights.

18. The contention of the learned Advocate
for the petitioners to the effect that final publica-
tion of the record-of-rights was made in the name
of the petitioners under Khatian No. 1645 under
section 144(7) of the Act read with rules 31 and 32
of the Rules, 1955 has been controverted by the
learned Deputy Attorney General (DAG) Mr
Sashanka Shekhar Sarker. He produced a letter
dated 27-4-2015 under the signature of the Zonal
Settlement Officer, Dhaka, on behalf of the
respondent No. 2 by way of an affidavit-in-reply
dated 9-4-2015, which is reproduced below.
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“The Government of the People’s Republic  been prepared under Khatian No. 1645 ‘in the
of Bangladesh” name of the petitioners having regard to the pro-
Zonal Settlement Office, Dhaka visions of rules 32, 33 and ;’;4 of the Rules, 1955.
»8 Shahid e = ) [t cannot, therefore, be said that the repord-of-
§ Sha 1 Tejuddin Ahmed Sarani rights had been finally published in the name of
Tejgaon, Dhaka- 1208. the petitioners as contended by the learned
Memo No 31.8.2692022.44.00 1,14-217 Advocate for the petmom.'-,:rs. Moreover, from
; Annexure-2, Gazette Notification dated 12th

| dt. 27-4-15 ; : ; L
April, 2009, it appears that final publication of the
Sub: An official report in respect of City Jarip record-of-rights had been made except DP
Khatian No-1645 belong to Mouza Khatian No. 1645 along with some other Khatians
Tejgaon Industrial Area, JL No. 6, Police  in respect of Mouza Tejgaon Industrial Area. This
Station-Tejgaon, District Dhaka. being so, for the purpose of arriving at a correct

R : decision about the final publication of the record-
Ref: 1. Aletter from the office of the Attorney  4f. rights we can easily infer that the final publica-

General for Bangladesh under the signa- o of the record-of-rights has not been published
ture of assistant attorney General Mr 5 the name of the petitioners with regard to the
Arobinda Kumar Roy. draft Khatian No. 1645 in compliance with rules
32 and 33 of the Rules, 1955. The draft record-of-
rights shall accordingly not be conclusive evi-
dence of its publication under section 144 of the
. Act, 1950. We should however refrain from mak-
Following the above mentioned letter it is ingany observations in respect of title of the prop-
stated that Khatian No-1645 belong to Mouza erty in question inasmuch as the First Appeal is
Tejgaon Industrial Area, JL No. 6, Police awaiting disposal before this Court on a similar
Station-Tejgaon, district-Dhaka has not yet point. Moreover, the record-of-rights_ neither cre-
been finally published and notified by ates nor destroys title. It is merely a record of
Gazette under section 32, 33 and 34 of the physical possession at the time when it is pre-
East Bengal Tenancy Rules, 1955 due to pared. With regard to the decisions as referred to

pending Civil Suit No. 211/2001 and writ Dy the learned Advocate for the petitioners we
Petition No. 4912 of 2003. find the same not applicable in the context of the

present facts and circumstances of the case and
accordingly the same are not discussed.

2. Instruction of Director General,
Department of Land Records and
Surveys. '

Signed illegible

27-4-15
Zonal Settlement 20. In view of what has been stated above
Officer, Dhaka and considering the relevant provisions of law are

Phone : 913-1573 of the view that the Settlement Officer appointed

= with the additional designation of Assistant

Mr Arobinda Kumar Roy Settlement Officer may at any time before final

Assistant Attomey-i:'_';_r__ : publication of the record-of-rights exercise his

Office of the Attorney-C jurisdiction under rule 42 of the Rules, 1955.
Bangladesh Having regard to the observations and decisions, |

19, Onaperusaléf‘*ﬂié BheSald tetter s pro- we find no merit in this Rule 1
duced by the learned DAG before this Court, it 21. Accordingly, the Rule is discharged, how-
appears that in fact no final record-of-rights has ever, there will be no order as to costs.
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22. The order of stay granted at the time of
issuance of the Rule stands vacated.

:23. The Revenue Officer appointed with the
additional designation of Settlement Officer may
take a decision afresh about the disputed publica-
tion of the concerned record-of-rights in view of
the provisions of rule 42 of the Rules 1955.

In doing so, the respondent No. 4 is directed

‘to dispose of the matter pending before him in

accordance with the relevant provisions of laws
within the shortest ‘possible amount of time
preferably within 3(three) months from the m of
receipt of the judgment of this court. 2

Ed.

HIGH COURT DIVISION
(Civil Revnsmnal Jurisdiction)

SM Emdadul Huque J | Torab Ali aad.another
Defendant-Respondent
............... Petitioners

Vs
: Judgmenlat' Madris Ali Saha and
June 29th, 2015, others. s 3 Opposne

Code of Civil Procedure (vof1908)
Order IX, rule 13
Order XVII, rule 1(3)(4)(7)

If any case decreed ex-parte on failure of
the parties for non complaince of the -proce-
dure of sub-rules 3 or 4 of rule 1 of Order XVII
only then the question of setting aside the ex-
parte decree under sub-rule 7 of rule 1 of Order
XVII is applicable. g 1)

Md Khaled Ahmed, Advocate—For the Pelitioners.

Mohammad Noor Hossain, Advocate—For Opposii
Party Nos. | and 2.

*Civil Revision No. 4994 of 2005.
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Judgment

On an application of the petitioner Torab Ali
and another under section 115(4) of the Code of
Civil Procedure without granting leave this court
issued Rule calling upon the opposite party Nos. 1
and 2 to show cause as to why the impugned judg-
ment and order dated 15-9-2005 passed by the
learned District Judge, Moulvibazar in Civil
Revision No. 34 of 2005 affirming the Order
dated 24-5-2005 Passed by the Senior Assistant
Judge, Kulaura, Moulvibazar in Miscellaneous

case No. 10 of 2005 arising out of Title Suit No.

153 of 2003 rejecting the Miscellaneous case
should not be set-aside.

2. Facts necessary for disposal of the Rule,
in short, are that the opposite party Nos. 1 and 2
as plaintiffs instituted Title Suit No. 153 of 2003
in the court of Senior assistant Judge, Kulaura,
Moulvibazar for declaration of title and , partition.
The summons were duly served upon the defen-
dant Nos. 1 and 2 who subsequently appeared
before the court and prayed time for filing written
statement which was allowed. But ultimately they
did not file written statement and also did not
appear before the court. The trial court took up the
case for hearing and decreed the suit ex-parte on
8-2- 2005

3. Against the said ex-parte decree the
defendant Nos. 1 and 2 filed application under
Order IX, rule 13 of the Code of Civil Procedure
for setting-aside the ex-parte decree and thus
Miscellaneous Case No. 10 of 2005 was started.
The trial court after hearing the parties and con-
sidering the facts and circumstances of the case
rejected the said application on the ground that the
petitioner failed to deposit Taka 2,000 provided
under rule 7 of Order 17 of the Code of Civil
Procedure while filing the application against the
judgment and Order dated 24-5-2005.

4. Against the said judgment and order of
the trial court the defendant Nos. 1 and 2 filed
Revisional application No. 34 of 2005 under sec-
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tion 115(2) of the Code of Civil Procedure before
the learned District Judge, Moulvibazar. Who
after hearing the parties and considering the rele-
vant law rejecting the revisional application on
the ground that the petitioner did not fulfill the
provision of rule 7 of Order 17 of the Code of
Civil Procedure by its judgment and order dated
15-9-2005.

5. Being aggrieved by and dissatisfied with
the impugned judgment and order of the courts
below the petitioner filed this revisional applica-
tion under section 115(4) of the Code of Civil
Procedure and according by the Rule was issued.

6. Mr Mohammad Noor Hossain, the
learned Advocate enter appeared on behalf of the
opposite party Nos. 1 and 2 through Vokalatnama
to oppose the Rule.

7. Mr Md Khaled Ahmed, the learned
Advocate appearing on behalf of the petitioners
argued that both the courts on misconception of
the provision of law erroneously rejected the
application of the petitioner. He argued that the
trial court rejecting the application on the ground
that the plaintiff did not deposit Taka 2,000 as per
provision of sub-rule 7 of rule 1 of Order XVII of
the Code of Civil Procedure without considering
that the petitioner did not file application under
sub-rule 7 of rule 1 of Order XVII or Order IX,
rule 13(a) rather he filed application under Order
IX, rule 13 of the Code of Civil Procedure. The
learned Advocate further argued that the learned
District Judge also committed emor in law while
rejecting the revisional application on misconcep-
tion of provision of law since in the instant case
the amendment provision of sub-rule 7 of rule 1 of
Order XVII of the Code of Civil Procedure is not
at all applicable in the instant case since the trial
court did not avail the procedure of sub-rule 3 and
4 of rule 1 of Order XVII so the judgment of the
courts below is eroneous one which should be
interferred with. He prayed for making the Rule
absolute. o
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8. On the contrary Mr Mohammad Noor
Hossain, the learned Advocate appearing on
behalf of the opposite party Nos. 1 and 2 argued
that the petitioners as defendants though appeared
but without filing written statement trying to
delay to proceed the suit even did not take any
step for adjornment of the matter thus the trial
court rightly took up the case for ex-parte hearing
and decreed the suit ex- parte in such a case the
newly amendment provision of the Code of Civil
Procedure is very much applicable in the instant
case and the courts below rightly passed the
impugned which should not be interferred with.
However, lastly he argued that this court may send
back the matter to the trial court to consider the
application on merit.

9. I have heard the learned Advocates of
both the sides, perused the impugned judgment of
the courts below, the papers and documents as
available on the records. It appears that the oppo-
site party Nos. 1 and 2 as plaintiffs filed Title Suit
No. 153 of 2003 before the Assistant Judge, Kula-
wara, Moulvibazar for declaration of title and par-
tition. The defendant Nos. 1 and 2 appeared
before the court and obtained time for filing writ-
ten statement but ultimately did not file written
statement and also did not take any steps to con-
test the suit and the trial court took up the case for
ex-parte hearing and decreed the suit ex-parie on
8-2-2005 without availing the procedure of rule 1
of order XVII of the Code of Civil Procedure.
Against the said ex-parte decree of the trial court
the defendant Nos. 1 and 2 filed application under
Order IX, rule 13 of the Code of Civil Procedure
for setting-aside the ex-parte decree. Which was
heard by the trial court and the trial court without
going to merit of the case of the petitioners only
considering the amendment provision of rule 1 of
order XVII the Code of Civil Procedure opined
that since the petitioners without depositing Taka
2,000 as provided under sub-rule 7 of rule 1 of
order XVII filed the application which is against
the provision of law and rejecting the application.
Against which the petitioners filed revisional
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application before the District Judge, Moulvi-
bazar under section 115(2) of the Code of Civil
Procedure, who after hearing the parties and con-
sidering the procedure of law also rejected the
revisional application considering the same view
as taken by the trial Court. The appellate court
opined to the effect;—

“Trie IetaR “ftafrre @it The Code
of Civil Procedure 3rd Amendment, 2003 ;<
59 TR SIATHR qaeﬁf‘ﬁﬂwwwﬁwﬁm
T FEFore—

“(7)suit dismissed or disposed of ex-

- parte under sub-rule (3) or (4) shall not be
revived for hearing unless the party for whose
noncompliance the suit was dismissed or dis-

posed of ex-parte, makes within thirty days of |

such dismissal or ex-parte disposal, non-
application together with cost of two thou-
sand taka into Court for such revival, and
upon such application being made, the suit
shall be revived for hearing without any fur-
ther proceeding, and cost deposited into Court
shall be paid to the other party.”

10. e wiZtTm St Ry /e sfm @

T @, RRAA-NA oFF oo S S FiRs

T4 wifE SfRmfReEm 7 w3 o) e e 7m amers
GIFOTICI o (e =i e | o
Rt endfers o witAee wra F% 220 Gena IR
39 WITAR FfEe q 72 Rftw Ryw S=piE 2000 B
I T @A Faiee s il wiike S e
fm wmere B a1l wgw e Y crewEie iy
(SIS JFweifae sfares | &g Ram-endfers wEem
Trafre Rz s a1 s menial sfRiEe » 52
e Yo W Rifm Rumrpie gvere s ™ @
Afzees A1 FRA do/r00e 7 R cuwwE W
Fmfers @3 R TR e fn ames Shestm e
ﬁﬁﬁmmﬁwmm?ﬁm%#mwm
SfaifReE |

ﬁwﬁﬂmﬁwmm%mwm
T (@ TR SR I iy w6 "/

I1. I have considered the impu
Judgment and the aforesaid provision of law.
appears that the courts below considering the
cedure of rule 1(7) of order XVII of the of
Code of Civil Procedure passed the impugned
Judgment but the trial Court without exhausting
the procedure of rule 1(3) and 1(4) of Order XVI
of new amendment law decreed the suit ex-part.

12. The trial court also without: considering
the procedure as laid down in the amendment
order 17 of the Code of Civil Procedure passed
the order. The rule 1 of order XVII of the Code of
Civil Procedure reproduced as under:

Order XVII

1.—(1) The Court may, if sufficient cause
is shown, at any stage of the suit grant time to
the parties or to any of them, and may from
time to time adjourn the hearing of the suit.

(2) In every such case the Court shall fix
a day for the further hearing of the suit, and
may make such order as it thinks fit with
respect to the costs occasioned by the
adjournment:

Provided that, when the hearing of evi-
dence has once begun, the hearing of the suit
shall be continued from day to day until all
the witnesses in attendance have been exam-
ined, unless the Court finds the adjournment
of the hearing beyond the following day to be
necessary for reasons to be recorded.

(3) Notwithstanding anything contained
in sub-rules (1) and (2), the Court shall not
grant more than six adjournments in a suit
before peremptory hearing at the instance of
either party to the suit, and any adjournment
granted to a party beyond the aforesaid limit
shall make such party liable to pay a cost of

- not less that two hundred taka and not more
than one thousand taka to the other party,
within time to be specified by it; noncompli-
ance with which, by the plaintiff shall render
the suit liable to be dismissed and, by the
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defendant shall render the suit liable to be
dismissed of ex-parte: provided that the Court
shall not grant more than three adjournments
to a party even with cost under this rule.

(4) Notwithstanding anything contained
in the Code, the Court shall not grant any
adjournment at the peremptory hearing stage
and thereafter in a suit at the instance of either
party to the suit:

Provided that if for ends of justice any
adjournment is granted to a party under this
sub-rule, the Court shall direct that party to
pay a cost of not less than two hundred taka
and not more than one thousand taka to the
other party, within time to be specified by it,
noncompliance with which, by the plaintiff
shall render the suit liable to be dismissed
and, by the defendant shall render the suit
liable to disposed of ex-parte: Provided fur-
ther that the Court shall not grant more than
three adjournments to a party even with cost
under the above proviso.

(5) Where applications are made by both
the parties for any adjournment under sub-
rule (3) or (4) and the applications are
allowed with costs, the Court shall direct each
party to pay such cost as revenue to the State.

(6) The Court shall net, of its own, order
any adjournment under this rule without
recording reasons therefor.

(7) A suit dismissed or disposed of ex-
parte under sub-rule (3) or (4) shall not be
revived for hearing unless the party, for
whose noncompliance the suit was dismissed
or disposed of ex-parte, makes within thirty
of such dismissal of ex-parte disposal, an
application together wmﬁ two thou-
sand taka into Court for such revival; and
upon such application being make, the suit
shall be revived for hearing without any fur-
ther proceeding; and cest depesited into
Court shall be paid to the other party.

13. In the aforesaid proceduse it is clearly

Torab Ali vs Madris Ali Saha SV Endadid Hugue J)

47

provides that if any case decreed ex-parte on fail-
ure of the parties for non complaince of the pro- |
cedure of sub-rule 3 or 4 of rule 1 of order XVII
only then the question of setting aside the ex-parte
decree under sub-rule 7 of rule 1 of order XVIli is |
applicable. But it appears that without prevailing
the aforesaid procedure the trial court decreed the
suit ex-parte. In such a case no scope to file appli-
cation under sub-rule 7 of rule 1 of order XVII
and the defendants Tightly filed the application
under rule 13 of order IX of the code of civil pro-
cedure, as such the findings of the courts below is
erroneous one. Even the procedure of Order IX,
rule 13 of the Code of Civil Procedure has not
been repealed, so, the Petitioner has every right to
invoke the said jurisdiction.

14. Order IX, rule 13 provides that if he sat-
isfies the Court that the Summons was not duly
served, or that he was prevented by any sufficient
cause from appearing when the suit was called on
for hearing the Court shall, make an order setting
aside the decree as against him upon such terms as
to costs, payment into Court or otherwise as it
thinks fit. So in such a case the Court shall con-
sider the application of the petitioner as provided
under the provision of Order IX, rule 13 of the
Code of Civil Procedure but errneously passed the
impugned Judgment considering the procedure of
rule 1 of order XVII of the Code of Civil
Procedure which they committed serious error in
law resulting in an error in the decision occasion-
ing failure of Justice.

15. Considering the aforesaid facts and cirs
cumstances of the case and the discussions made
above | find merit in the Rule.

16. Accordingly, the Leave is granted and the
Rule is made absolute. The impugned judgment
and order dated 15-9-2005 passed by the learned
District Judge, Moulvibazar in Civil Revision No.
34 of 2005 affirming the Judgment and order
dated 24-5-2005 passed by the Senior Assistant
Judge, Kulaura, Moulvibazar in Miscellaneous
case No. 10 of 2005 arising out of Title Suit No.
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153 of 2003 are hereby set-aside, however, with-
out any order as to cost. :

17. The trial court is directed to dispose of
the Miscellaneous Case No. 10 of 2005 filed
under Order IX, rule 13 of the Code of Civil
Procedure on merit considering the discussions as
made above. ' R

18. Since this is a long pending case, the trial
court is directed to dispose of the Mlseei;mam
case No-10 of 2005 as early as possible preferable
within 4 (four) months from the date of mcrf
the judgment. - 4032

19. The order of stay granted earhaa:ﬁy this
court is hereby recalled and vacated.

Send down the Lower Court’s Rgcemds at
once.
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Principles of Natural Justice
The principles of natural justice are those
rules which have been laid down by the courts
as being the minimum protection of the rights
of the individual against the arbitrary proce-
dure that may be adopted by a ,uw or
quasi-judicial authority while making an
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Judgment

Sharif Uddin Chaklader J : This appeal, at
the instance of the defendant, directed against

'~ judgment and decree dated 25-9-2011 passed by

the learned Joint District Judge, 1st Court, Dhaka:
decreeing Title Suit No. 6726 of 2008.

2. Plaintiff instituted the aforesaid suit pray-
mg for decree as:

(a) for a decree of Taka 6,90,13,116.90 (six
crore ninety lac thirteen thousand one
hundred sixteen and paisa ninety) only
as on 31-10-2008 in favour of plaintiff
and against the defendant;

A decree for interest @ 16% on suit
value wef 1-6-2007 to till realization in
full; with some other prayers including
interest at the rate of 16% with effect
from 1-6-2007.

®)

3. Learned Judge decreed the suit as:
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4, It is the plaint case that plaintiff is a
Private Limited Company and defendant is Public
Limited Company incorporated under the
Companies Act, 1913. Defendant Bank as a
schedule Bank, under the supervision and moni-
toring of Bangladesh Bank participates in various
service such as, keeping deposit of money, pro-
viding loan facilities for multipurpose, monitory
transactions of share business, open L/C for
export and import business and of its clients.
Western Union Financial Services International
referred to as Western Union, 2 USA based inter-
nationally reputed money transferring company
from one country to another. Defendant was
intended to participate in money transfer business
with Western Union but a scheduled bank does
not have sufficient manpower and logistic and
technical software support required for execution
and performance for agency agreement with
Western Union which is invelved in money trans-
ferring business from about 160 countries of the
world, to Bangladesh. Defendant also required no
objection letter from National Bank Lid_, as there
was an exclusive agency agreement executed
between Western Union and National Bank Ltd.,
since 1993. Subsequently on the basis of a deci-
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sion of the Board meeting of the directors of the
defendant, the defendant agreed to approach the
plaintiff to pursue Western Union on its behalf 10
enter into an agency business in Bangladesh with
Western Union engaged in money transfer busi-
ness from one country to another. Plaintiff being
the expert of technical software service and other
relevant functions relating to the money transfer
business and having well connection and business
relation with Western Union agreed to provide its
active assistance to finalize and execute a formal
agency agreement between the defendant and
Western Union. The plaintiff provided its utmost
sincere effort including monitory support to pur-
sue Western Union to execute a formal agency
agreement with the defendant. Moreover, plaintiff
managed no objection letter from National Bank
Ltd., since there was an exclusive agency agree-
ment executed for unspecified period of time
between National Bank Ltd., and Western Union
from 1993. Consequently, the formal agency
agreement was executed on 5th November, 2003
in pursuance of deed of agreement between plain-
tiff and defendant dated 20th October, 2003.
Under section 18A of the Foreign Exchange
Regulations Act, 1947, defendant required per-
mission from Bangladesh Bank to be an agent of
a foreign company. Plaintiff accordingly managed
the permission letter from Bangladesh Bank.
Plaintiff as per terms of the agreement dated 20-
10-2003 introduced, arranged, involved, negotiat-
ed and made all other necessary arrangement and
convinced Western Union to deposit more or, less
US $ 75,000 within 15 days of the execution of
the said agency agreement and accordingly,
Western Union did the same. The deposit of the
said amount was with a condition imposed on the
defendant by Bangladesh Bank through permis-
sion letter. Plaintiff and defendant discharged the
responsibility of promoting the business of
Western Union in Bangladesh by way of adver-
tisement and also developed the market for serv-
ice and enhancing the customer interest through
its service. Plaintiff and defendant agree to carry
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but joint marketing programme amongst the
Bangladeshi origin. The cost of such programme
have been mutually agreed to bear by the parties
on case to case basis. It was further agreed if
Western Union fails to remit the required remit-
tances according to the payment made by defen-
dant time to time and such cannot be restored by
the deposited amount held in the designated Bank
account, plaintiff was committed to help the
defendant to realize the shortage amount along
with interest. Moreover, when the agency agree-
ment will be terminated or suspended, the securi-
ty deposit will not be released till the outstanding
dues of the defendant are settled by the Western
Union and the plaintiff was under obligation to
cooperate in such situation to solve the problem.
Plaintiff discharged all the responsibilities and
obligations imposed upon by virtue of contract
dated 20-10-2003 confirmed in clause 12 that the
plaintiff and the defendant were intended to carry
out the contract most lawful way and they were
committed to change any unlawful or unenforce-
able provisions which might put the party in the
condition of economic loss. This means that the
plaintiff and defendant were committed to per-
form the contract overcoming any interventions of
law or person. Plaintiff is entitled to be paid for
their service by the defendant 21% of commission
which the defendant earned thought remittance
and foreign exchange gains from Western Union.
The share of commission and foreign exchange
gain agreed to settle between the plaintiff and the
defendant within 5 working days upon receipt of
the same from Western Union as per clause No.6
dated 20th October, 2003. The share of commis-
sion and foreign exchange gain agreed to settle
between the plaintiff and the defendant.
Defendant in compliance with the aforesaid
agreement continued to pay the commission to the
plaintiff from 5th November, 2003 to May, 2007
without any interruption and complain. Plaintiff
agreed with defendant to maintain very cordial
business relationship so that both parties of the
aforesaid agreement cold retain the business inter-
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est as long as the monitory transaction business of
the defendant and Western Union. Defendant sud-
denly on 31-5-2007 sent a letter purporting to ter-
minate the aforesaid agreement dated 20-10-2003
with effect from dated 1-7-2007 of 30 days notice
and stopped releasing of the commission since
June, 2007, hence the suit.

- 3. Defendant contested the suit by filing
written statement thereafter amended the written
statement in which defendant did not deny the
agreement dated 20-10-2003 and also that defen-
dant did not deny that plaintiff was expending the
business with the defendant and for running the
business of the defendant, defendant took several
time and as per terms of the agreement since
plaintiff was not acted enough the defendant can-
cel the agreement dated 20-10-2003.

6. On these pleadings of the parties learned
judge framed issues as to maintainability of the
suit, whether there was agreement on 20-10-2003
in between plaintiff and defendant, whether as per
terms of the agreement the termination letter is
illegal and what other relief or reliefs plamtn‘f was
entitled.

7. Learned Judge decreed the suit as afore-
said.

8. Mr Asaduzzaman, learned Advocate,
appearing for the defendant-appellant, submits
that, the impugned judgment is totally a wrong
Judgment as the learned Judge failed to consider
that it is cardial principal of law that plaintiff is to
prove his case but learned Judge did not at all con-
sidered the plaint case or deposition of the plain-
tiff, rather the learned judge found fault with
defendant’s case. Learned Advocate further sub-
mits that there being no clause in the agreement
for prior netice for cancellation of the contract,
cancellation having been done in accordance with
the terms of the agreement and being in exclusive
jurisdiction of the defendant, as such termination
cannot be called in question. Learned Advocate
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further submits that in the termination letter plain-
tiff was not given any stigma, it is simply a termi-
nation simplicitor letter by which plaintiff as per
terms of the agreement has no legal right to file
the suit. Learned Advocate further submits that
the decision relied by the learned Judge in arriv-
ing at the decision have no mariner of application
on the facts of the given case.

9, Mr Raghib Rouf Chowdhury, learned
Advocate, appearing for the plaintiff-respondent,
on the other hand submits that, before issuing ter-
mination letter, plaintiff was not given any chance
to explain its conduct as to whether plaintiff com-
mitted any wrong with the emltract/agreement as
such learned Judge committed no illegality in
decreeing the suit. Learned Advoeate relied on the
case of Kanchan Mala Bepari vs Ananta Kumar
Bepari, 6 DLR 254, wherein it is held as ‘Mere
unilateral repudiation in pais of contract does not
rescind the contract. Court’s decree necessary.’

10. Learned Advocate next relied on the case
of Government of Bangladesh vs Md Tajul Islam,
49 DLR (AD) 177, wherein on the question natu-
ral of justice, the Appellate Division held as ‘it is
well settled that a show cause notice is not a tech-
nical requirement or an idle ceremony. The notice
must not be vague or in bare language merely
repeating the language of the statute.’

11. Learned Advocatgmd relied on the case
of Mozibar Rahman vs ;7?8 Chairman, Dhaka
Improvement Trust DIT‘- uilding, Dhaka, 41 DLR
(AD) 131 wherein it is hsg as ‘allegation of bias
and malafide cannot be aﬂowed as the Chief
Engineer against whom thc same was made was

not even made a party in the writ petition.”

12. Learned Advocate next relied on the case
of D Wren International Lid vs Engineers India

Ltd, AIR 1996 Calcutta 42 m it is held as
‘challenge to cancellation of cor
that it does not contain reasons- €
because authority can produ
that such reasons are available on records.’
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13. Learned Advocate further relied on the
case of Desai and Co. vs Hindustan Petroleum
Corporation Limited, AIR 1987 (Guj) 19, wherein
it is held as ‘challenge to termination of dealer-
ship for sale of petroleum products by instrumen-
tality of State, Allegations that binding executive
instructions of Govt. not followed and that termi-
nation is arbitrary-challenge not raising question
purely of breach of contract.’

14. Learned Advocate relied on the case of
Jamuna Oil Company Limited vs SK Dey, 44 DLR
(AD) 104, natural justice wherein it is held as “nat-
ural justice in a case of disciplinary proceeding. In
a case of disciplinary proceeding against an
employee, in the absence of statutory rules, the
employee must be given prior notice of the pro-
ceeding so that he gets an adequate opportunity to
defend himself.’

15. Let us proceed with our judgment .

16. The case is that under contract plaintiff
was appointed to facilities the defendant to have
business with Western Union Financial Services
International, a USA based internationally reputed
money transferring company. As per terms of the
contract, it is admitted fact that, plaintiff’s per-
formed obligations i.e. plaintiff obtained no
objection certificate from National Bank and also
plaintiff provided, including monitory support, to
pursue Western Union to execute a formal agency
agreement with the defendant, plaintiff obtained
permission from Bangladesh Bank to be agent of
foreign company, plaintiff under take extensive
marketing programme all over the world, USA,
United Kingdom, Italy, France, Portugal, Spain,
Saudi Arabia, Malaysia, Brunei, Darussalam,
Kuwai, UAE, Oman, Bahrain, Libya, Iraq, Japan,
Australia, Canada, South Korea, Germany,
Sweden and many other countries. Defendant as it
appears did not deny the performances of plain-
tiff. Defendant’s case is that he made simply
agreement or contract and for that reason contract
does not specify any prior notice for termination.
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We have considered the deed of agreement, exhib-
it-2, wherein clause 11 regarding notice which
runs as any notice provided for in this agreement
shall be in written and shall be fist transmitted by
facsimile transmission and then confirmed
postage, prepaid registered mail or by a recog-
nized courier service, in the manner as elected by
the party giving such notice.

17. In the matter of termination, clause 4, i.e.
in the event of termination or suspension of the
said agency agreement mentioned herein above at
any stage, the security deposit shall not be
released till all the outstanding claim of BBL from
Western Union are settled by Western Union. First
Party shall use its good offices and extend co-
operation in settlement of outstanding issue of
BBL with Western Union and its agents as and
when required,

18. It is argued that agreement does not say
any prior notice for termination but when there is
termination itself gives a stigma which affect the
business of the terminated company or person as
such law requires prior notice. It is the case of the
defendant that plaintiff acted negligence with the
contract. In that case, it is defendant who requires
to justify termination letter and from that angle
learned judge considered defendant’s case. It
appears that learned Judge extensively considered
the case of natural justice upon referring to vari-
ous decisions of the apex court of this country and
on relying section 73 of the Contact Act, held that
‘defendant acted malafide in terminating the
agreement or contract with the plaintiff.’

19. Natural Justice has no definition. It is to
be inferred. It must be without bias and should
render the decision in a judicial spirit and in
accordance with the principles of substantial jus-
tice and fair play in action. The principles of nat-
ural justice are those rules which have been laid
down by the courts as being the minimum protec-
tion of the rights of the individual against the arbi-
trary procedure that may be adopted by a judicial
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or quasi-judicial authority while making an order
affecting those rights. These rules are intended to
prevent such authority from doing injustice. These
principles are now well settled and are four in
number:—

(1) That every person whose civil rights
are affected must have a reasonable
notice of the case he has to meet.

(2)

That he must have reasonable oppor-
tunity of being heard in his defence.

(3) That the hearing must be by an
impartial tribunal, i.e. a person who
is neither directly: nor indirectly a
party to the case or is already biased

against the party concerned.

(4) That the authority must act in good
faith, and not arbitrarily but reason-

ably.

20. In the case of Rex vs Sussex Justice
Exparte Meeonly, 1924 OB 256 at page 259, Lord
Hewart CJ laid down the eternal principle of nat-
ural justice as “.......That it is merely of some
importance but is a fundamental importance that
justice should not only be done, but should mani-
festly ad undoubtedly be seen to be done.”

21. On a reading of the contract itself it is our
considered view that when there is no clause
given prior notice before termination of the con-
tract defendant should act within the boundary of
principal of natural justice so that plaintiff could
not take shelter before law on the ground of vio-
lation of natural justice.

22. We find no substance in this appeal.

In the result, this appeal is dismissed. No
costs.

Connected Civil Rule No.395(f) of 2012 is
accordingly discharged .

Ed.
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HIGH COURT DIVISION
(Civil Revisional Jurisdiction)

Sheikh Abdul AwalJ | Promoda Sundari Sen
FRM Nazmul Ahasan ] | Kalyan Trust, Rangpur
.................. Plaintiff

-Appellant-Petitioner

VS
Momtaz Zafar Ahmed
Judgment andoﬂlersd """
Opposite Parties*

Artha Rin Adalat IAin (VIII of 2003)
Section 32 .

The 3rd party had enough scope to file an
application before the Adalat by way of filing
an objection under section 32 of the Ain,
against the execution of a decree passed by the
Adalat relating to the property.

Burmah Eastern Ltd. vs Burmah Eastern Employees
Union, 18 DLR 709 ref.

Abdul Quayum with HS Deb Brahman , Advocates—
For the Petitioner.

Zafarullah Chowdhury, Advocate—For the Opposite
Party Nos. 1-3.

Shamim Khaled Ahmed, Advocate—For the Opposite
FParty No. 7.

Judgment

Sheikh Abdul Awal J : This Rule was issued
on an application under section 115 of the Code of
Civil Procedure calling upon the opposite party
Nos.I1-7 to show cause as to why the impugned
judgment and order dated 12-5-2010 passed by
the learned District Judge, Rangpur in Other
Appeal No. 49 of 2010 dismissing the appeal
summarily and affirming the Judgment and decree
dated 29-4-2010 (decree signed on 5-5-2010)
passed by the learned Senior Assistant Judge,

*Civil Revision No, 2689 of 2010
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Sadar, Rangpur in Other Suit No.238 of 2009
rejecting the plaint should not be set-aside.

2. The material facts as necessary for dis-
posal of this Rule are that the present petitioner as
plaintiff brought a suit being Other Suit No. 238
of 2009 on 29-8-2009 in the Court of Senior
Assistant Judge, Sadar, Rangpur impleading the
present defendant-opposite parties praying for
permanent injunction in respect of the suit land as
described in the schedule of the plaint . The plain-
tiff's case in short is that Shib Krishna Sen and
Monikrishna Sen were the original owner of the
suit land as described in the ‘Ka’ schedule of the
plaint. Shib Krishna Sen executed a registered
will in favour of his brother Monikrishna Sen,
who obtained probate from the District Judge vide
Probate Case No. 14 of 1971 and has been owing
and possessing the suit land; that Monikrishna
Sen executed a will on 8-4-1991 in favour of
Shankar Basu, who obtained probate vide Probate
Case No. 43 of 1992 wherein, it has been stated
that the executor of will is not entitled to sell the
schedule property but to enjoy the same; that
Shankar Basu  established Monikrishna Sen
Decree College and after the death of Shankar
Basu the suit land came under Monikrishna Sen
Trust; that one NGO namely Grameen Samaj
Kendra took loan from the Agrani Bank, Tejgaon
Industrial Area Branch, Dhaka mortgaging the
schedule property as security of loan but the said
NGO failed to liquidate the loan and thereupon,
the Bank instituted a suit for realization of its out-
standing dues against the authority of Grameen
Samaj Kendra and the said suit was decreed ex-
parte beyond the knowledge of the trust authority;
that Shankar Basu was not empowered to mort-
gage the suit and as per will, the defendant Nos .1-
3 in connivance with each other created a kabala
vide its N0.9685 dated 22-7-1990 in the name of
Ranjit Basu in order to grab the suit property with
an ulterior motive; that after creating kabala deed
the defendants with the help of bad people
attempted to dispossess the plaintiff from the suit
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land on 15-9-2009 and thereafter, the defendant
Nos.1-3 in connivance with the defendant Nos. 4-
6 on 26-7-2009 at 9-10 AM illegally entered into
the suit land and also tried to evict the employees

: of Monikrishna Sen Trust. Hence, the suit.

3. After institution of the suit the plaintiff
f.iled an application under Order XXXIX, rule 1
and 2 read with section 151 of the Code of Civil
Procedure for restraining the defendants from
evicting the plaintiff of the suit land.

4. Decree holder, Agrani Bank Ltd. Tejgaon
Industrial Area Branch, Dhaka on knowing about
the said suit filed an application for addition of
party which was allowed resulting which Agrani
Bank Ltd. became party as defendant No.7 m the
suit.

5. The defendant No. 7 thereafter, on 15-10-
2009 filed an application under order 7, Rule 11 of
the Code of Civil Procedure for rejection of the
plaint stating, inter-alia, that the defendant No.7
as plaintiff instituted Artha Rin Suit 771 of 2004
before the Artha Rin Adalat No.1, Dhaka for
recovery of its outstanding dues amounting to
Taka 60,61,540 against the Grameen Samaj
Kendra which was decreed vide ex-parte judg-
ment and decree dated 2-9-2004 and thereafter,
the defendant No.7 as decree-holder Bank put the
decree into execution filing Artha in Execution
Case No. 638 of 2004 on 30-11-2004 in which the
decree-holder-Bank after exhausting all the legal
formalities executed a sale deed in respect of the
suit land as described in the ‘Ka’ schedule of the
plaint in favour of the highest bidder namely, (1)
Momtaz, Jafar Ahmed, (2) Md Ashif Wahed and
(3) Md Rashidul Alam and as such the suit is
impliedly barred by section 20 of the Artha Rin
Adalat Ain, 2003.

6. The learned Senior Assistant Judge upon
hearing the application under Order VII, rule 11 of
the Code of Civil Procedure and on considering
the contents of the plaint was pleased to reject the
plaint by his judgment and decree dated 29-4-
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2010 holding that the suit property was mortgaged
to bank against loan and the Bank for recovery of
its loan amount instituted a suit being Artha Rin
Suit No. 638 of 2004 and the Artha Rin Adalat
decreed the suit as prayed for and as such the suit
is impliedly barred by section 20 of the Artha Rin
Adalat Ain, 2003.

7. The unsuccessful plaintiff, thereupon as
plaintiff-appellant took an appeal being Other
Appeal No. 49 of 2010 before the learned District
Judge, Rangpur, who upon hearing the plaintiff
appellant by his judgment and order dated 12-5-
2010 dismissed the appeal summarily along with
an application under Order XXXIX, rules 1 and 2
of the Code of Civil Procedure for temporary

injunction holding that the suit is barred by sec-

tion 20 of the Artha Rin Adalat Ain, 2003 inas-
much as earlier over the self-same suit land the
Artha Rin Adalat passed a decree in Artha Rin
Case No. 771 of 2004 and thereafter, the suit
property was sold in auction in Artha Rin
Execution Case No. 638 of 2004 in accordance
with law.

8. Being aggrieved by the aforesaid judg-
ment and decree of two Courts below the present
plaintiff-appellant-petitioner has come before this
Court and obtained the present Rule.

9. Mr Abdul Quayum, the learned Advocate
appearing for the petitioner submits that both the
Courts below under misconception of law and
facts most erroneously arrived at a finding that the
suit is impliedly barred by section 20 of the Artha
Rin Adalat Ain, 2003 inasmuch as it is apparent
from the plaint of the suit that no relief was sought

for against the judgment and decree passed by the

Artha Rin Adalat in Artha Rin Case No0.638 of
2004

10. Mr Abdul Quayum, the learned Advocate
further submits that the plaintiff-petitioner is in
exclusive physical possession over the suit land
and admittedly he did not hand over delivery of
possession in favour of the defendant-opposite
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party Nos. 1-3 and, as such, both the Courts below
in rejecting the plaint of the suit committed an
error of law resulting in an error in the decision
occasioning failure of just . He further submits
both the Courts below having failed to consider
that the mortgage deed dated 26-5-1996
(Annexure X-1) allegedly executed by Shankar
Basu is contrary to the provisions of the
Succession Act as well as Hindu law.

11. Referring to the plaint of the suit Mr,
Abdul Quayum, the learned Advocate further
argues that the plaintiff-petiﬁéﬂér did not mention
any case being Artha Rin Case No. 771 of 2004 in
the body of the plaint and no relief was sought for
against the judgment and decree of the Artha Rin
case and as such without taking evidence there is
no legal scope at all to decide the question
whether the suit is barred by section 20 of the
Artha Rin Adalat Ain, 2003 or not. He adds that
the proposition of law is well settled that in decid-
ing the question as to whether the plaint should be
rejected the Court may look into the averments
made in the plaint and cannot go beyond the same
to find whether the plaint is rejected or not and in
this case both the Courts committed a serious
error in taking into consideration the application
of the defendant-bank and as such at any rate the
judgment of two Courts below are liable to be set-
aside.

12. Mr Abdul Quayum, the Learned
Advocate to fortify his submission has relied on
the decision reported in 7 ADC 291, 56 DLR (AD)
22, 10 BLC (AD) 8 and section 307 of the Indian
Succession Act, 1925.

13. On the other hahd, Mr Shamim Khaled
Ahmed, the learned Advocate appearing for the
opposite party No. 7, Agrani Rank Ltd. supports
the judgments of two Courts below, which were
according to him just, correct and proper. He in
the course of his argument upon placing the plaint
of the suit submits that the plaintiff through a
clever device under the camouflage of a suit for
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and decree of the Artha Rin Adalat, Dhaka passed
in Artha Rin Case No. 771 of 2004 stating in the
plaint that he came to know Shankar Basu and
others took loan in the name of Grameen Samaj
Kendro (NGO) from Agrani Bank mortgaging the
suit land and since the loan amount was not paid
and the Bank filed a suit and obtained a decree in
respect of the suit t' land from the Artha Rin
Adalat.

14. He further submits that the present plain-
tiff-petitioner with an ulterior motive in order to
frustrate the decree of the Artha Rin Adalat filed
the present suit for permanent injunction in
respect of the suit property as described in the
schedule of the plaint; which already have been
sold in auction in the proceedings of the
Execution Case No 368 of 2004 and in that view
of the matter both the Courts below rightly arrived
at a concurrent finding that the suit is impliedly
barred by section 20 of the Artha Rin Adalat Ain,
2003 and, as such, question of interference by this
Court sitting under revisional _]llr'lSdlCthl‘l does not
arise at all .

15. Mr Shamim Khaled Ahmed, the learned
Advocate finally relying on the decision reported
in 15 BLT 425 = 12 BLC 723 submits that in this
case it is apparent from the materials on record
that the delivery of possession of the suit proper-
ty has not yet been handed over to the auction pur-
chasers and thus, it ca.nnbt'be said that the execu-
tion case has been disposed of in accordance with
law and in such situation the present petitioner’s
door is still open to ventilate his grievance, if any,
as per the provisions of section 32 of the Artha
Rin Adalat Ain, 2003.

16. Zafarullah Chowdhury, the learned
Advocate appearing for the opposite party Nos.1-
3, auction purchasers submits that the present
defendant-opposite party No. 7 as plaintiff filed
Artha Rin Suit No. 771 of 2004 in the Artha Rin
Adalat. 1, Dhaka and obtained a decree for recov-
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ery of Taka 60,31,540 with interest till realization
of the same by selling the mortgaged property as
described in the schedule of the plaint and there-
after, in the execution proceeding the mortgaged
property was sold in auction to the opposite party
Nos.1-3 in accordance with law. He next submits
that plaintiff- petitioner deliberately with malafide
intention in a cunning manner filed other Suit No.
238 of 2009, seeking permanent injunction in
respect of the property which is subject matter of
judgment and decree passed in Artha Rin Suit No.
771 of 2004 as well as Execution case No. 368 of
2004 and both the Courts below on consideration
of the materials on record together with section 20
of the Artha Rin Adalat Ain, 2003 correctly
allowed the application for rejection of the plaint
holding that the suit is barred by section 20 of the
Artha Rin Adalat Ain, 2003 which does not call
for any interference .

17. Mr Zafarullah Chowdhury, finally relying
on a number of decisions namely the decisions
reported in 49 DLR (AD) 135, 8 BLC 411, 59 DLR
695, 51 DLR (AD) 221 and in an unreported judg-
ment passed in Writ Petition No. 2046 of 2006
submits that the proposition of law is by now well
settled that no separate suit lies against the judg-
ment and decree passed by the Artha Rin Adalat
even on the allegation of fraud and in the present
case from a plain reading of the plaint it is appar-
ent that the plaintiff-petitioner very technically
challenges the judgment and decree of the Artha
Rin Adalat as such both the Courts below acted
legally in rejecting the plaint of the suit.

18. We have heard the learned Advocates of
both the sides at length and perused the revisional
application, affidavit-in-reply dated 27-1-2011,
counter affidavits, judgments of two Courts below
along with other connected documents as filed
therewith. Now, to deal with the submissions of
the learned Advocates, let us examine first
whether the petitioner as plaintiff filed other Suit
No. 238 of 2009, seeking permanent injunction in
respect of the property which is subject matter of
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the judgment and decree of the Artha Rin Adalat
passed in Artha Rin Suit No. 771 of 2004 as well
as Artha Rin Execution Case No. 638 of 2004.

19. To resolve this dispute, we in it necessary
to quote hereunder a portion of the plaint which
reads as foll ows :

‘AR oW T i@ T GEn cuETE
TR FEE G | RAe r-2-6be3e St
TS TFF TG T 2 A T [PIAT I
@3 BIFR Al N 7Afe 72 wemier e
SICea M ofera St | SRws Jise S 8%
sifgs w1y Tl Al 2331 witter | e am
W @, AT T IR @ T JER| AT
TG (FF” TN I q7,f&F, ¢ T ST 7w B
G 1, G 23re e el Jffe e
T AR A9 s @3z TF 9 Afaritfee =
G I TEAF BIIW TG W A A
TR A e R o | @R e ok
FETH R G (FRE WIS S TR | 1T |
R T=E @ SR WeF TR PR e
11 A7 G2 w1 FhRTetE @, G $E e g
e s Ak @rEeT IRT @R FE
o R sfm Te e s vaw @ W
WHTEB! SIETIRTSlR |

20. From a reading of the above quoted aver-
ments of the plaint, it transpires that the property
as described in the schedule of the plaint is subject
matter of the judgment and decree of the Artha
Rin Adalat

21. Now, let us see the plaint of the Artha Ri
Suit No. 771 of 2004 and other connected d
ments including the judgment and decree of
said Artha Rin Suit as well as orders of Executi
Adalat passed in Artha Rin Execution Case
638 of 2004. It is found that Agrani Bank, Tej
Industrial Area Branch, Dhaka as plaintiff insti
ed Artha Rin Suit No. 771 of 2004 for realizati
of its outstanding dues amounting to T:
60,31,540 as stood on 28-4-2004 agains
Managing Director of Grameen Samaj Ke
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and others. The suit was decreed ex-parte vide ex-
parte judgment and decree dated 2-9-2004 by the
Artha Rin Adalat and thereafter, the decree-hold-
er-Bank put the decree into execution by filing
Execution Case No 368 of 2004 in which the
mortgaged property was sold in auction to the
present opposite party Nos.1-3 in accordance with
law. -

22. It is found that the said mortgaged prop-
erty is the suit property of the present suit of per-
manent injunction. Now, let us look at the relevant
provisions of both the old and new Artha Rin
Adalat Ain . -

23. Section 6 of the Artha Rin Adalat Ain,
1990 reads as follows:

“y | G A THECST FEE TOE | (3) €= Q
a7 = Ateers o ¥ SMECe ST, o,
T @ o It (] SIS A1 S (T FSOTFR

BRCCACEEE R R

() Tot-4rt (5) @ R R AT T @, @
e 41 gmEe Ige AR RErm ave oW
GFoawt T W ¥R & &A@ Code of Civil
Procedure, 1908 (Act V of 1903) @ Order IX
@3 rule 13 <7 YA TSRS WHAFTS 7 IRCS
wids o 31 TIF AR wdq TIE WS
WAATES ARS AMECS G| FECS 2309, 43 THHA
Tl A W 230 ORA WAL &% @1 - A 17

24. Similar provision has been provided in
section 20 of the Artha Rin Adalat Ain, 2003
which reads as follows:

“30 | WY ¥ HECESA SRR TUES! |-9%

TR Rym s, @F e A FEATE

o ¢ A SIS RBRIAE @ SR 1 BT

@ Sior, 7 41 e fem @F oy B =

TRTR A, R @R WA AT B S (i

WS A FTEATH [0 S S 1 A eI

W T e T 2B/A, dFH WA FH TS

TGrF ATy Bl 7 17

Sen Kalyan Trust vs Momtaz Zafar Suwin shdd seai ) 57

25. From a plain reading of the above quoted
provisions of the Artha Rin Adalat Ain, 1990/2003
it appears that except the provisions of this Act, no
question shall be raised before any Court or
authority about any pending proceeding in the
Artha Rin Adalat, or its order, judgment or decree,
and if any relief is claimed or prayed before any
Court or authority ignoring the provisions of this
Act, no Court or authority shall accept any such
prayer, the judgment or decree of the Artha Rin
Adalat is final and the same cannot be questioned
in any other Court under any separate proceeding.
In the connection it must bear in mind that the
Artha Rin Adalat Ain, 2003 is special law and the
provision provided therein prevails over the gen-
eral law.

26. Now, the only question for consideration
is, whether the trial Court and the lower Appellate
Court correctly held that the suit is impliedly
barred by section 20 of the Artha Rin Adalat Ain,
2003.

27. It appears that the trial Court below on
consideration of the materials on record allowed
the application for rejection of the plaint stating as
follows :

“Zm7 A9 Tnel oot afe iy e 1 g@
 gfdd &R Lob/o8 e TN MOW TS A

SEEW AW FWA (W e BT R @R ATE

R Aforre oite 1z T=w TR XA eRTS

e e g weE @A San 9 A qmeed

f&e challenge fa eyl fraqerm ardam

W G Q0b/oRe (RN WRE I | TR W

Wl TS WIZA, 2000 @7 0 YA THREA IR |

IER, TSI I AE 76 22 17

28. The lower Appellate Court in its turn
affirmed the above findings of the trial Court.

29. As already noticed that admittedly the
property as described in the schedule of the plaint
was sold in auction pursuant to the judgment and
decree passed by the Artha Rin Adalat in Artha
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Rin Suit No. 771 of 2004. Therefore, it is very dif-
ficult on our part to interfere with such concurrent
findings sitting under revisional jurisdiction.

30. To meet the main argument of Mr Abdu
Quayum, the learned Advocate for the p .;
that the plamtlff-petmoner in his plamt
mention any case being Artha Rin Suit Noﬁ 17
2004, no relief was sought for against thf%lj
ment and decree of the Artha Rin Suit and as |
the findings of the trial Court is perver_
contrary to law and facts, we have eareﬁx]lg [
ined the entire averments of the plalnt

with the connected materials on record

L

31. We agree with the submission of Mr.

Quayum that in deciding the questloﬁWW'

whether the plaint should be rejected the
may look into the averments made in t}m

2 - .xU o
the plaint is rejected or not. In this case 01:; ac

Cl0S€E
LY G

perusal of the averments of the plaint tog gethe
with the other materials on record, it appears t to us_

that the plaintiff-petitioner in a very cunning'man-
ner disputing the judgment and decree of the
Artha Rin Adalat under the camouflage of the
present suit for permanent injunction being Other
Suit No.238 of 2009 seeking permanent injunc-
tion in respect of the property which Js‘%bject
matter of the judgment and decree of Ar
Adalat passed in Artha Rin Suit No.77 1 C
In view of this, we do not find any posm e
to differ with the view taken by the two
below.

~ 32. In this connection we may re&r-,ﬁ ‘&e
view of Mr Murshed, CJ as given in th .
Burmah Eastern Ltd vs Burmah
Employees Unionreported in 18 DLR y 0
reads as follows: 3D

“Turning, now, to the plaint in the
suit, it is obvious, from a mere perus
plaint itself, that it must be held. the
prohibited under, if not by law. This b
position, even if the case does not cc me,

s
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‘erally and strictly, within the letter of Order 7.
~rule 11 the Code of Civil Procedure, there
cannot be any manner of doubt that the suit is
- prohibited under the law in the sense that is
barred under legal provisions. The Court
- should, therefore, have rejected the plaint in
+ limine because the suit itself is barred under
our legal system. If Order 7, rule 11 of the
Code of Civil Procedure cannot be prayed in
~aid, the inherent power of the Court should be
~ invoked.”

.1 33. In support of that view Mr Murshed Cl
referred to various decisions and discussed them
el_aborately.

34. Now, it remains for us to consider the
cases cited by Mr Abdul Quayum. On reading of

It the decisions reported in 7 ADC 291, 56 DLR
and cannot go beyond the same to find whether

(4D) 22, 10 BLC (AD) 8 and section 307 of the
Indian Succession Act, 1925, it seems to us that
the prmcnples as enunciated in those decisions as
well as the prowsmn of section 307 of the Indian
Succession Act, 1925 have no manner of applica-
tion in the facts and circumstances of the present
case. -

35 Mr Abdul Quayum the learned Advocate
at the fag end of the hearing has repeatedly argued
before us that after disposing of the execution
case the present auction purchasers (opposite
party Nos.1-3) threatened the plaintiff-petitioner
to vacate the suit property and thereby finding no
other way the plaintiff-petitioner in order to save

his property filed the present suit:

36. To this, Mr Shamim Khaled Ahmed, the

learned Advocate relying on the decision reported
O in 15 BLT 425 = 12 BLC 723 submits that sub-
~ section 7 of section 33 of the Ain, 2003 envisages
‘vesting of ownership of the property of the judg-
ment-debtor upon the decree-holder and the said
vesting of ownership includes delivery of posses-

sion of the property, without the delivery of pos-

- session, the execution case cannot be disposed of
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and admittedly, in this case the possession of the
suit property has not yet been handed over to the
auction on purchasers and as such it:cannot be
said that the execution case has a.h:eady been dis-
posed of.

37. To appreciate th'ms last branch of argu-
ment, we have carefully e)ﬁmmsd the provisions
of section 33 of the Artha Rin Adalat Ain, 2003
together with the demsw&rapqa’ted in 15 BLT 425
= 12 BLC 723, it appears to us that unless the pos-
session of the property is handed over to the auc-
tion on purchasers, the execution case may not be
finally disposed of, Therefnw, we find no sub-
stance in either of the contentions as raised by the
learned Advocate for the petitioner

38, Itis an admitted proposmon that the pres-
ent plaintiff-petitioner did not file any application
before the executing Adalat under section 32 of
the Ain, 2003 but he has filed the present suit
without even approaching before the executing
Adalat. The 3rd party petitioners have/had enough
scope to file an application before the Artha Rin
Adalat by way of filing an objection under section
32 of the Ain, 2003 against the execution of a
decree passed by the Artha Rin Adalat re]atmg to
the property. Therefore, it is clearly found that the
plaintiff-petitioner took a wrong way to ventilate
his grievances, other than the recourse prescnbed
by spemf‘ ic provisions g@vemmg the issue.

39. The submission made by . the leamed
Advocate for the oppGSJtepqrty Nos. 1-3 that the
instant suit is mlsconceived in law and designed
to frustrate the execution of the decree appears to
have substance.

40. Hence for all ﬂﬁsé reasons above, the
impugned judgments of Bﬂﬂl ‘the Courts below
does not call for any interference. The Rule is,
therefore, dlscharged without aﬁy order as to cost

hafe:

Let a copy of the Jil it along with lower
Court’s record be sent down at once.

- Bd. : *7108)
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HIGH COURT DIVISION
(Criminal Miscellaneous Jurisdiction)

M Enayetur Rahim J
Amir Hossain J

Salina Islam Beauty......
.....Informant-Petitioner

~ Judgment : . A&
December 14th, 2015.

...0Opposite Party* .
Code of Crlmma] Procedure (V of 1898)
Section 173(3B) _

Section 173 (3B) of the Code has given
power to the police to submit supplementary

State..

charge sheet on further investigation against
any person/persons, even who has earlier dis-
charged on final report, if it obtains further
evidence.

Code of Criminal Procedure (v of 1898)
Section 120A

The criminal conspiracy doctrine only
require overlapping chains of agreement that
link the physical perpetrator to the accused.
However, the lack of a direct agreement
between the defendant and the physical perpe-
trator is no bar to applying the conspiracy doc-
trine as long as the chain of overlapping agree-

ments connects them., A3

Abdus Sabur vs State, 8 BLC (AD) 166, Abdus
Salam vs State, 36 DLR (AD) 58; Syed Azharul Kabh;- VS
Syed Ehsan Kabir, 4 MLR (AD) 343 = 5 BLC (AD) 20;
Major Bazlul Huda vs State [Popularly known as
Bangabandhu murder case] 62 DLR (AD) 1; para 173] ref.

Abdul Baset Mazumder with Subrata Chowdhury,
and Mantu Chandra Ghosh, Advocates—For the

Informant-Petitioner.

Sheikh AKM Monir-uz-za&mn, DAG With Md

*Criminal Miscellaneous No, 51347 of 2015.
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Shahidul Islam Khan, AAG Md Miah Sirajul Islam, AAG—
For the State,

Ju dgment

M Enayetur Rahim J : The informant peti-
tioner has preferred this application under section
561A of the Code of Criminal Procedure for
quashing/setting aside the judgment and order
dated 9-11-2015 passed by the learned Sessions
Judge, Narayanganj in Criminal Revision No.150
of 2015 disallowing the same and thereby affirm-
ing the order dated 8-7-2015 passed by the
learned Judicial Magistrate in Fatullah Police
Station Case No.74 dated 28-4-2014 correspon-
ding to GR Case No.328 of 2014 rejecting the
Naraji petition.

2. The informant petitioner on 28-4-2014
lodged a First Information Report with the
Fatullah Model Police Station implicating 6(six)
persons and 5/6 unknown persons alleging, inter
alia, that on 27-4-2014 at about 1-30 pm her hus-
band Nazrul Islam, Panel Chairman of Narayan-
ganj City Corporation, along with Tajul, Liton and

Shawpan after giving hajira in a case in

‘Narayanganj Court started for Dhaka by his own
~car and when the said car reached near the Khan
Shaheb Osman Ali Stadium near Dhaka
"Narayanganj Link road two microbuses intercept-
ed the car of her husband and 15/20 persons iden-
tifying themselves as the RAB personnel forcibly

- took her husband and his companions to the said
microbuses. It was further alleged that there was:

longstanding enmity between the husband of the
informant and councillor Noor Hossain regarding
the wvarious affairs
Corporation and-local politics and the informant

suspected that accused Noor Hossain might have

abducted her husband and his companions as on
2-2-2014 accused Noor Hossain and other FIR
named accused persons openly threatened her
husband to kill him in an another incident. The

of Narayanganj City
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informant and her relatives made search in differ-
ent places to find out his husband but they failed
to trace him out and she informed the said fact to
the different law enforcing agencies including
Rapid Action Battalion [RAB].

3. On the basis of the said First Information
Report Fatullah Model Police Station Case No.74
dated 28-4-2014 under sections 170/341/365/34
of the Penal Code was started.

4. Eventually, on 30-4-2014, 07 [seven]
dead bodies including the dead bodies of Nazrul
Islam, Shawpan, Tajul and Liton were found float-

ing on the river Sitallakha.

5. The police after completing the investiga-
tion of the case submitted charge sheet on 8-4-
2015 under sections 364/302/201/109/114/34 of
the Penal Code against 35 persons including FIR
named accused Noor Hossain and in the said
charge sheet 15 persons including 5 FIR named
accused persons were recommended for dis-
charged.

6. Being dissatisfied with the said police
report [charge sheet] the informant petitioner filed
a Naraji petition before the learned Judicial

Magistrate, Narayanganj stating that the police

did not send up 5 [five] persons whose name were
mentioned in the First Information Report and the
persons whose names were disclosed by one of
the accused [Ali Mohammad] in his statement
under section 164 of the Code of Criminal
Procedure.

7. The learned Judicial Magistrate after
receiving the said Naraji petition examined the
informant in compliance with the provision of
section 200 of the Code of Criminal Procedure.
Thereafter, the learned Magistrate by its order.

dated 8-7-2015 rejecting the Naraji petition

accepted the charge sheet and took cognizance of
the offences under sections 364/302/201/109/114 |
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read with section 34 of the Penal Code against all
the 35 accused persons who were recommended
for prosecution.

8. Felling aggrieved by the said order the
informant petitioner preferred Criminal Revision
No. 150 of 2015 before the Sessions Judge, Nara-
yanganj, who having heard the said revision appli-
cation by the impugned judgment and order dated
9-11-2015 disallowed the same and affirmed the
order dated 8-7-2015 passed by the learned
Judicial Magistrate rejecting the Naraji petition.

9. Hence, the informant petitioner has pre-
ferred this application.

10. Mr Abdul Baset Mazumder, the learned

Advocate for the informant petitioner having

placed the application and the Annexures thereto
submits that the learned Judicial Magistrate acted
illegally in rejecting the Naraji petition without
considering the grounds taken in it. He further
submits that the informant in the First Information
Report categorically mentioned some names as
suspecting accused but the police did not make
recommendation for their prosecution and one of
the co-accused in his statement under section 164
of the Code of Criminal Procedure disclosed the
name of some persons with the commission of the

offence, despite those persons were also left out

from the charge sheet. He further submits that
accused Noor Hossain the main architect of the
abduction and murder has recently been brought
from India to Bangladesh and for the interest of
justice, he should be taken on remand for interro-
gation by the investigating agency in order to col-
lect more evidence and, as such, an order of fur-
ther investigation is néém otherwise justice
will be defeated.

11. Mr Majumder m to the cases of
Abdus Sabur vs State, reported in 8 BLC (4D)
166, Abdus Salam vs State, reported in 36 DLR
(AD) 58 and Syed Azharul Kabir vs Syed Ehsan
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Kabir, repoted in 4 MLR (AD) 343 = 5 BLC (AD)
20 submits that Naraji petition is in substance a
complaint and thus the Magistrate has to deal with
it according to law. But in the instant case the
learned Magistrate without following the provi-
sion of section 202 of the code of Criminal
Procedure that is without holding any inquiry
rejected the Naraji petition and thereby, occa-
sioned failure of justice.

12. However, Mr Sheikh AKM Monir-uz-
zaman, the learned Deputy Attorney General
appearing for the State opposite party supported
the impugned judgment and orders passed by the
Courts below.

13. Heard the learned Advocate for the
respective parties, perused the application under
section 561A of the Code of Criminal Procedure,
the supplementary affidavit and the Annexures
thereto.

14. On perusal of the impugned judgment
and order passed by the learned Judicial
Magistrate and the learned Sessions Judge respec-
tively, it appears to us that both the courts below
categorically addressed the grievances/protest
made by the informant petitioner in the Naraji
petition.

15. The learned Sessions Judge in maintain-
ing the order of the learned Judicial Magistrate
categorically held to the effect :

“That I have gone through the recorded
statements of accused-persons under section
164 of the Criminal Procedure Code and the
statements of witnesses recorded under sec-
tion 161 of the Criminal Procedure Code very
carefully and that on careful scrutiny at this -
stage it made me well cognitive of that from
alleged offence for causing abduction to
killing in question exclusively operated by
highly trained defense personnel’s and that
behind the scenes was mastermind of the
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allege abduction and killing accused namely
Md Noor Hossain

That as all ‘Ezahar’ named accused are
not sent up accused so, all sent up accused
persons are not Ezahar named and that in
senting up accused irrefutable evidence is to
be accumulated. That therefore sentmg up
defended upon strong corroborative evidence.
That in the instant case as there appeared
every corroborating and reasonable evinee so.
35 accused-persons treated as sent up aceused
persons and that investigating as there
appeared no irrefutable and tangible evidence
against the not sent up accused so; proposed
for not senting up in the charge-sheet. That
having careful scrutiny as I hold opinion that
the police report of the investigation officer
caused nothing perfunctory and that petition-
ers above noticed 2(two) folded pleas are not
sustainable and that therefore considering all
these I hold opinion that the impugned order
of the Id. Court below warrants no interfer-

That as ‘Ezahar’ named 6 (six) persons
were suspected and it was fully under com-
prehension and that as such conceived matter
corroborated with nothing tangible except
one so, only 1 (one) out of 6 (six) accused
persons was duly sent-up and that therefore
investigation officer senting up 1 (one) out of
6 (six) commuted no wrong and that has such
the impugned order warrants no interfer-

---------------------------------------------

That the investigation as corroborating
evidence sent up all these persons as accused-
persons in the instant case except Raiz (with
reasons stated therein}. That as investigation
officer through corroborating evidence filed
charge-sheet against said persons except Raiz
so, the investigation officer submitting the
charge-sheet committed no wrong and that
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therefore petitioners plea with senting up
Nurul Islam, Noor Salam, Jaj * Miah,
Nuruddin, Nurul Haque and Badal appeared
unreasonable and not supported by any tangi-
ble evidence causing for alleged abduction
and killing and that therefore considering all
these the impugned order of the Id. Court
below warrants no interference.”

16. The above well reasoned findings of the
learned Sessions Judge appear to be based on

proper appreciations and consideration of the
materials on record.

17. Thus, we do not find any legal infirmity
or illegality with the impugned judgment and
order and, as such, we are not inclined to interfere
with the Same invoking the power of section
S61A of the cods of Criminal Procedure.

18. Further, the informant petitioner at the
time of examination under section 200 of the
Code of Criminal Procedure stated to the effect:

............... L L e T MGELE
PR -1 Mo IR owen ww S e

Wikl seafR )"

And in the Naraji Petition the informant
prayed to the effect:

“ e T AT SRR Y w6
h‘rﬁﬁqﬁ WS Fe-20% OIfFe-b-8-305¢38
Sty Rern o wa [
TR @R A W iewE B wew
SHICE AR MY ©we fre f[ed wit 3fsm
FECS St T ("

[underlines supplied}

19. The above assertions of the inform
petitioner clearly indicate that, in fact, the info
ant by filing the Naraji petition sought for
investigation [%: wwe] of the case.

20. 1t is well settled proposition of law t
there can not be any re-investigation [%s
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into a case where once police has submitted
charge sheet . Further, there is no scope to re-open
the investigation of the case in the name of re-
investigation.

21. It was argued by Mr. Majumder that the
learned Judicial Magistrate ought to have fol-
lowed the provision of seetion 202 of the Code of
Criminal - Procedure after examination of the
informant as per provision of section 200 of the
said Code.

22. Tt is evident from the materials placed
before us that the learned Judicial Magistrate
upon receiving the Naraji Petition examined the
informant under section 200 of the Code of
Criminal Procedure and having not satisfied with
the allegations/protest made in the Naraji Petition
rejected the same assigning cogent reasons.

23. To hold an inquiry by the police or judi-
cial inquiry as provided in section 202 of the Code
of Criminal Procedure is not a routine procedure.
Such procedure depends on the satisfaction of the
concerned Magistrate. After examination of the
complainant or informant, as the case may be, if
the concerned Magistrate is not satisfied to pro-
ceed further with the complmnt or Naraji petition
considering the statements made under section
200 of the Code of Criminal Procedure before it
and the allegations made in the complaint or the
grounds taken in Naraji petition, he has the power
to reject the same in limine.

24. Thus, the learned Judicial Magistrate did
not commit any error of law in not sending the
Naraji Petition to the police for holding any
inquiry or to proceed further for a judicial inquiry
as provided in section M of the Code of
Criminal Procedure. =TT

25. It is pertinent to mention here that the
informant petitioner in the Naraji petition did not
make any allegation that the investigating officer
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did not record the statements of her witnesses
under section 161 of the Code of Criminal
Procedure properly or correctly.

26. Tt was also argued by Mr. Majumder that
for the interest of justice accused Noor Hossain,
against whom charge sheet has already been sub-
mitted, is required to be taken on remand for inter-
rogation with a view to collecting more evidence
and information regarding the occurrences,
because at the time of investigation he was in jail
in India and i'nvestigating officer could not inter-
rogate him. However, in support of the above
argument Mr. Majumder has failed to show us any
specific law or judicial Pronouncement to the
effect that after acceptance of the charge’ sheet an
accused can be taken on remand.

27. On perusal of the materials placed before
us particularly, the charge sheet and the state-
ments 164 of the Code of Criminal Procedure of
some of the accused persons, it has revealed that
the abduction and murder was taken place pur-
suant to an organized scheme and/or agreement .
In the charge sheet it has been disclosed to the
effect that:
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Partition Act av or1893)

Section 4—The suit lan&ﬁnofan undivided dwelling house rather itis admittedly a commercial pIace

on which petitioners and other co-sharers have been conducting their business treating the suit land as
commercial premises. sth land is not a undivided dwelling house buf a commercial place an
application under section 4 of the Partition Act cannot be invoked to buy out the share of 2 stranger pur-
chaser in the suit land.Hossain Shahid Chinu vs Abdu! Wahab (Civil) .. =

BEP——r0 ) |1y

& High Court Division

Section 32—The
objection under
the property. Promod

h scope to file an application before the Adalat by way of filing an
nst the execution of a decree passed by the Adalat relating to
1 Trust, Rangpur vs Momtaz Zafar Ahmed (Civi) ... 53

Code of Civi
Order IX, rule 13
Order XVII, rul
of the procedure o
parte decree under

m&cmw ex-parte on failure of the parties for non complaince
of Order XVII only then the question of setting aside the ex-
XVI1l is applicable. Torab Ali vs Madris Ali Saha (Civil)

44
Code of Criminal 2 ( -
Section 173(3B)—Sec 3B) of the Code has given power to the police to submit supplementary
charge sheet on further i mﬁhgabmmnst any person/persons, even who has earlier discharged on final
report, if it obtains furthe: sina Islam Beauty vs State (Cnmma!) LEAA 50
Code of Criminal Bmm;
Section 120A—The tmuﬁm doctrine only require overlapping chains of agreement that link
the physical perpet 1o the accused. However, the lack of a direct agreement between the defendant
and the physical pe risneba 10 applying the conspiracy doctrine as long as the chain of overlap-
ping agreements co: ing jf;lam Beauty vs State (Criminal) L4509

Prmclples of

48
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